This document has been prepared in accordance with the NSW Local Government Act 1993 (the Act) – Section 428
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Fax (02) 6392 3260
Email: council@cabonne.nsw.gov.au
www.cabonne.nsw.gov.au

About the Annual Report
The Annual Report is Council’s opportunity to provide information on
our performance in relation to the Delivery Program and Operational
Plan. The Annual Report serves as a corporate scorecard, which Council
uses as a tool for planning strategies that will maximise new
opportunities, improve areas of weakness, and minimise potential threats
to the financial health of the organisation.
The Local Government Act 1993 requires all NSW councils to present an
Annual Report to the Minister for Local Government by 30 November
each year.
Indigenous Acknowledgment
In the spirit of reconciliation, Council acknowledges and pays respect to
the Wiradjuri people, traditional custodians of the land referred to as
Cabonne.
The culture of elders past, present and future and their unique
contributions to the life of this area are acknowledged.
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About Cabonne
Cabonne Country, "Australia's Food Basket" is a rich rural shire in central west NSW,
covering the towns of Canowindra, Cargo, Cudal, Cumnock, Eugowra, Manildra,
Molong and Yeoval and other localities as shown in the “Villages of Cabonne
Country” map. The area is home to the site of Australia's first gold rush and is
famous for ballooning, food and wine, agriculture and mining.

Structure & Functions of Council
Basis of Constitution
Cabonne Council is constituted under the Local Government Act, 1993 as a body
politic of the State.
Council carries out its functions according to the principles stated in Section 8(1) of
the Act, which is Council’s Charter.
Structure

PUBLIC INPUT
FINANCE &
CORPORATE SERVICES
DIRECTOR
MAYOR
GENERAL
MANAGER

ENGINEERING &
TECHNICAL SERVICES
DIRECTOR

COUNCIL
ENVIRONMENTAL
SERVICES DIRECTOR
COUNCIL
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The council’s charter
A council has the following charter:
•

to provide directly or on behalf of other levels of government, after due
consultation, adequate, equitable and appropriate services and facilities for the
community and to ensure that those services and facilities are managed
efficiently and effectively

•

to exercise community leadership

•

to exercise its functions in a manner that is consistent with and actively
promotes the principles of multiculturalism

•

to promote and to provide and plan for the needs of children

•

to properly manage, develop, protect, restore, enhance and conserve the
environment of the area for which it is responsible, in a manner that is
consistent with and promotes the principles of ecologically sustainable
development

•

to have regard to the long term and cumulative effects of its decisions

•

to bear in mind that it is the custodian and trustee of public assets and to
effectively plan for, account for and manage the assets for which it is
responsible

•

to engage in long-term strategic planning on behalf of the local community

•

to exercise its functions in a manner that is consistent with and promotes
social justice principles of equity, access, participation and rights

•

to facilitate the involvement of councillors, members of the public, users of
facilities and services and council staff in the development, improvement and
co-ordination of local government

•

to raise funds for local purposes by the fair imposition of rates, charges and
fees, by income earned from investments and, when appropriate, by
borrowings and grants

•

to keep the local community and the State government (and through it, the
wider community) informed about its activities

•

to ensure that, in the exercise of its regulatory functions, it acts consistently
and without bias, particularly where an activity of the council is affected

•

to be a responsible employer
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General Manager’s Message
Fiscal responsibility has been the cornerstone of
Cabonne Council’s budgets for many years and
the 2014-2015 Operational Plan was no
different.
Council’s challenge is to balance the needs and
expectations of the community with the sound
economic management that has made Cabonne
one of the most financially sustainable councils
in the state.
I believe Council has met that challenge in the past year, with a budget that provides
for new facilities and infrastructure while maintaining assets and a wide range of
services.
As in previous years, a large focus of our expenditure was on roads and bridges.
Providing safe and well maintained roads and bridges to efficiently transport
agricultural products is a key objective of the Cabonne Community Strategic Plan
2025.
All facets of the 2014-2015 Budget related to the Community Strategic Plan - a longterm vision developed by the community to identify priorities and aspirations for the
next 20 years.
This means Council looks not only at the year ahead, but the ongoing future of
Cabonne and formulates a Long term Financial Plan to underpin its financial
sustainability.
This Annual Report covers Council’s official reporting requirements under Section 428
of the Local Government Act and ensures that Council is satisfying its statutory
obligations to relevant Government agencies.
The importance of this document in informing ratepayers, residents and other key
stakeholders cannot be underestimated and I invite you to examine this report.
Should you require any further information, please feel free to contact Council’s
Public Officer, Mr Gerard Aguila on (02) 6392 3221.

Andrew L Hopkins

General Manager
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Mayor’s Message
Future-proofing our vast roads network was the
centrepiece of Cabonne Council’s 2014/2015
Budget.
Council dedicated $11.8 million to roads
spending this financial year, which represented
almost a third of its $38 million Operational Plan.
A recent community survey showed 85 per cent
of Cabonne residents considered roads the most
important service delivered by the council.
That’s why Council increased its roads budget by $2.6 million – a rise of more
than 28 per cent. Cabonne has dedicated almost $60 million to road
construction and maintenance in the past five years and will allocate a record
amount to be spent on roads in the 2015-16 financial year.
Major projects in 2014-2015 included:
:
 $915,000 for construction work on Davys Plains Road near Cudal;


$850,000 for construction work on Bowan Park Road;



$865,000 on Marylebone Bridge on Davis Plain Road;



$546,000 for heavy patching on Icely Road;



$500,000 for heavy patching on Cadia Road;



$538,000 shoulder widening on Nangar Road and



$409,000 shoulder widening on Obley Road.

Many years of sound fiscal management have placed Cabonne Council in a very
strong financial position.
Council meets six of the seven key financial criteria included in the Government’s Fit
for the Future requirements and will meet all seven by June 2016.
This formed the basis for Council’s Improvement Proposal to the Independent Pricing
and Regulatory Tribunal (IPART) to continue as a strong and sustainable stand-alone
council in the future.

Clr Michael Hayes

Mayor
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Councillors 2012 - 2016

Molong Council chambers
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Achievements in Implementing the Community Strategic Plan
s428(2)

Council introduced an integrated planning and reporting (IPR) framework in 2012 which
replaced the former Management Plan and Social Plan.
The new framework, as pictured below, opens the way for the council and the community
to have important discussions about funding priorities, service levels, preserving local
identity and planning in partnership for a more sustainable future.
The result of these discussions is a community strategic plan (CSP), “Cabonne 2025”.
It is reiterated that the council alone cannot deliver all the strategic outcomes in the CSP,
rather cooperation across the various sectors of the community will be required.
Cabonne 2025 has various components. Of relevance here, are the performance measures
used to help us know if our efforts are making a difference and helping achieve the
preferred future.
A commentary on the council’s achievements in implementing the community strategic
plan over the previous 4 years of each Council Term will be included in the 2015-16 Annual
Report.
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Principal Activities of the Delivery Program
s428(1)

The Delivery Program deals with the work the council can do to achieve the CSP
strategic outcomes where the council has a role.
Council’s achievements in implementing the Delivery Program and the effectiveness
of the principal activities undertaken in achieving the objectives at which those
principal activities are directed are addressed in the council’s Operational Plan.
Performance achieved in these areas compared with the projected performance is
contained in the council’s Final Operational Plan (June review) for 2014/2015 which is
attached: a final progress comment is included for each item.
Where actions have not been able to be completed in the 2014/2015 year, if
appropriate, they have been transferred to the Operational Plan for 2015/2016.

Functions & Objectives
Council has adopted as its Vision:
“To

be a progressive and innovative Council which
maintains relevance through local governance to its
community and diverse rural area by facilitating the
provision of services to satisfy identified current and
future needs”
In support of this, Council’s functional areas and corresponding strategic objectives
(Future Directions) as defined within the Community Strategic Plan are:

1.

Connect Cabonne to each other and the world
1.

A safe, efficient, quality and well maintained urban and rural transport system
for vehicles and pedestrians on Cabonne's local, regional and state road
networks.

2.

Everywhere in Cabonne has access to contemporary information and
communication technology.

3.

A range of transport options in to, out of and around Cabonne are affordable
and available.

4.

Transport infrastructure meets agricultural needs to get goods to and from
market.

5.

Access to major metropolitan markets enables the growth of tourism.

2.

Build Business and Generate Employment
1.

A strong and vibrant local business sector.

2.

Coordinated tourism product and a thriving visitor industry in Cabonne.

3.

Increased viable, sustainable and value adding businesses in Cabonne.

4.

Jobs for Cabonne people in Cabonne.
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3.

Provide and Develop Community Facilities
1.

Pre school, play group, child care and youth facilities are available across the
Shire.

2.

Health and aged care facilities meet local community needs.

3.

Sporting, recreational, council and community facilities and services are
maintained and developed.

4.

Cabonne has the education services and facilities to be a contemporary
learning community.

4.

Grow Cabonne's Culture and Community
1.

A successful balance of village and rural living.

2.

A network of viable, relevant and cultural facilities exists in Cabonne.

3.

Beautiful towns and villages with historic assets cared for and preserved.

4.

Community events build visitation, generate investment and strengthen
community well being.

5. A Council that is effective and efficient.

5.

Manage our Natural Resources
1.

All villages have a secure and quality water supply.

2.

Flood mitigation processes are in place.

3.

Sustainable solid and liquid waste management practices are in place across
Cabonne.

4.

Primary producers use best practice methods and systems that respect the
environment.

5. All natural resources are managed sustainably in a planned way.
6. Risk management processes are in place for natural disaster events.
7. Alternative energy development is considered and utilised where appropriate.
Effect That Council Functions Have on the Public
The council’s functions are directed towards meeting the needs and expectations of
the public, which it serves, and to fulfil legislative and regulatory requirements. In
fulfilling these requirements, the council makes decisions that impact the public.
These include determining:





The rating structure and the amount of rates paid by property owners
Fees and charges levied by the council
Development and building applications
Policies and procedures in the provision of services
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Council Policy Development – Public Participation
Meetings of the Council and its committees are open to the members of the public
and all are welcome to attend.
In some instances the council in invites submission from the public to some of its
policies when they are reviewed e.g. Code of Meeting Policy and Payment of
Expenses and Provision of Facilities for Mayor and Councillors Policy.
The opportunity is also offered to members of the public to address Council on
matters that are within its jurisdiction. Prior arrangements should be made with the
general manager.
In addition, the council periodically holds informal meetings in towns and villages
across the local government area to allow residents to raise matters of particular
interest with councillors and senior staff.
Business papers and minutes of committee and ordinary council meetings are placed
on the council’s website under “Council”, “Council Business Papers and Minutes”
www.cabonne.nsw.gov.au. Council’s integrated planning and reporting documents,
annual financial statements and annual report can also be accessed on the website.
Types of Documents held by Council
Cabonne Council holds documents that relate to a number of different issues
concerning the Cabonne area. These documents cover a wide range including; files,
policy documents, general documents and legal documents.
Some of these documents may be made available to the public by either requesting
them over the phone, in person or in writing. Documents that are not normally
available to the public may require an access application form to be completed under
the Government Information (Public Access) Act 2009 in order that the release of
such documents can be assessed.
Because of the wide range of files, documents, manuals etc, held by Council, it may
well be that the information sought is not immediately available. Every effort will be
made to comply with requests for access to information as quickly as possible.
How Members of the Public May Access Council Documents
Any Government Information (Public Access) Act 2009 inquiries or other document
access inquiries should be directed to: Council’s Right to Information Officers,
Cabonne Council, Bank Street or PO Box 17, MOLONG NSW 2866. Tel: (02) 6392
3200 Fax: (02) 6392 3260 or email to council@cabonne.nsw.gov.au. Council’s
reporting obligations under the Government Information (Public Access) Act 2009
and Privacy and Personal Information Protection Act 1998 are also addressed in this
report.
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Management Structure

PUBLIC

MAYOR

COUNCIL

INPUT

COUNCIL

COMMITTEES

GENERAL MANAGER



Tourism



Economic Development



Media

FINANCE &

ENGINEERING &

ENVIRONMENTAL

CORPORATE

TECHNICAL

SERVICES

SERVICES DIRECTOR

SERVICES

DIRECTOR

.

Council image and
public relations
Council meeting and
committees

Council property and
assets
Parks & sporting
facilities
Town beautification

Corporate services
Council finances

Caravan parks
Swimming pools

Library facilities

Noxious weeds

Inter-government
relations

Water

Emergency services

Environmental
Planning
Waste management
Cemeteries
Dog & Stock control
Building control
Land Development

Sewerage
Plant & vehicles

Family Day Care

Molong Quarry

Home and Community
Care

Transport

Personnel

Environmental Health

Infrastructure—roads
& bridges
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Corporate Services
Financial Reports
s428(4)(a)

A copy of the Cabonne Council AUDITED FINANCIAL REPORTS General Purpose
Financial Statements is attached as an annexure to this report.
A copy is also available on the council’s website or by contacting Council’s Public
Officer on (02) 6392 3200.

Amount of rates and charges written off during the year
cl132

Total rates and charges abandoned during 2014/2015
Water/Sewer charges abandoned during 2014/2015
Total

$1220.97
$3554.46
$4775.43

Summary of the amounts incurred by the council in relation to legal
proceedings
cl 217(1)(a3)

Amounts, costs and expenses paid or received
Debt recovery:
All debt recovery proceedings are either finalised or
proceeding in accordance with Councils debt recovery
procedures.
Investment
Legal Advice (not proceeding to court)
Total
Legal Proceedings
Public Liability claims
Employment Advice
Total

$10,617.28
$ Nil
$123,557.41
$134,174.69
$48,288.00
0.00
0.00
$48,288.00
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Summary of the state of progress of each legal proceeding and (if it
has been finalised) result
With the exception of sundry legal advice, public liability and professional indemnity
claims, there were two matters – v - Cabonne Council before the Land and
Environment Court. Legal expenses incurred amounting to the sum of $36,000.
Council is also involved in relation to the collapse of Lehman Brothers and its
subsidiary companies.

Policy on the provision of facilities for use by Councillors and the
payment of Councillors Expenses
Council’s policy on the provision of facilities and payment of expenses for 2015 is
available for perusal on Council’s website or by contacting the Public Officer of
Council: a copy is annexed.

Overseas visits Funded by Council
During the period, Council did not fund any overseas visits.
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Mayoral/Councillors Fees and Total amount of money expensed on
the Provision of Facilities and Payment of Councillor Expenses
cl 217(1)(a1)

Mayoral allowance

$24,217.06

Councillors Fees & Allowances

$132,828.51

Councillor Expenses:
Provision of office equipment to Councillors

$Nil

Telephone Calls

$70.01

Attendance of Councillors at conferences & seminars

$13,808.30

Councillor Training

$Nil

Travelling

$35,725.79



Interstate Visits

$Nil



Overseas Visits

$Nil



Expenses of spouses/partners

$Nil



Carers Expenses

$Nil



Meals

$8,924.99



Miscellaneous (stationery, uniform, name tags, internet)

$5,756.63



Insurance

$36,240.53

Total

$257,571.82

Statement of the total Remuneration of the General Manager and
Senior Staff Members
cl217(1)(b) and cl217(1)(c)

Cabonne Council employs one (1) position as “senior staff” as defined under the s332
of the Local Government Act, that being the general manager.
Remuneration Package Break-up as at the 30th June 2015
General Manager - Andrew L Hopkins
Salary

Bonus,
perfor
mance
or
other
payme
nts
that do
not
form
part of

Total
Superannuati
on (salary
sacrifice and
employer
contribution)

Total value
non-cash
benefits

Total payable
fringe benefit
tax for noncash benefits

Total Contract
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salary
compo
nent
Included in
Contract

Nil

Included
Contract

in
Nil

Included
Contract

in

$230,690

Contracts Awarded
Detail of contracts awarded (for contract amounts greater than $150,000).
Name

Good or Service supplied

Total contract amount

IT Vision
Australia

Maintenance for Council’s
Corporate IT System

$206,114.00 (GST Exc) plus
annual fee of $50,635
(GST exc)

Multitrode

Molong Water Supply
Augmentation

$501,543.603 - Variation:
$15,651.46

Boral Asphalt

Supply and delivery of bitumen
emulsion
Puzzle Flat Creek Levee

$150,000 (GST exc)

Morse
Group
Accountants and
Advisors

Audit Services

$190,200 variations for
additional works as
required

Reliance,
fuels
Oilsplus

Fuel supply

$987,182.04 (GST exc)

Southern
Explosives
Supply Pty Ltd

Supply of Drill and Blast
Services

$190,200 variations for
additional works as
required.

WesTrac

Supply of one excavator

$250,398.86 (GST exc)

ARUP

Park
and

$167,900.50
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Social Performance
(prev. Social Plan)

Programs for Diverse Cultural and Linguistic Backgrounds
Frontline administrative staff cater for all sections of the community, including those
from diverse cultural and linguistic backgrounds. Council has benefitted from
employment of a culturally diverse workforce and aims to be sensitive to the needs of
all residents. Contact numbers for the telephone interpreter service are held at each
of Council’s offices.
Council’s Community Services section takes care to ensure that the special needs of
clients from diverse cultural and linguistic backgrounds are taken into account in the
provision of services.
Council conducts regular Citizenship Ceremonies in accordance with the Australian
Citizenship Act 2007 and seeks to welcome participants as full Australian Citizens
recognising their cultural contributions to our Society.
Citizenship Ceremonies are conducted when required and reflect the significance
and dignity of the occasion. In 2014/2015 20 residents became an Australian citizens
at a ceremony organised by Council.

Australia Day 2015

Activities to develop and promote service and programs that provide for the
needs of children
During 2014 / 15 Cabonne Council’s Family Links service has continued to promote
services for children, with a special emphasis upon identifying and assisting children
and families under stress and those with additional needs.
This has included sponsorship of Brekky Club at Cumnock, facilitating Community
reading days, encouraging young mothers to use playgroup, assisting Family Day Care
and preschool services with training sessions to implement and meet high quality
childcare standards, working with local schools, and the Homestart Service to identify
and meet the needs of children within the community and provision of information to
families and children.
Family Links has been worked closely with Orange and District Early Education
Program to provide additional support sessions for children in Cabonne with this
service now making weekly visits. The Cabonne Family Links Service terminated at the
30 June 2015 as it was unsuccessful in obtaining ongoing funding.
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The Cabonne/Blayney Family Day Care Scheme has been serving the community
through the provision of quality subsidised childcare in the homes of carers and has
outreached to families through monthly playgroups, National Families Week,
Children’s Week, Christmas parties and events held throughout the year within the
Cabonne and surrounding areas.
The Scheme has focussed on improving the quality of the service through regular
monthly support visits, training, and meetings for all educators and staff. The Family
Day Care Scheme encourages the use of their building at Molong by other
organisations. Early Intervention, community playgroups and the local mothers
group currently utilise the building and resources. This relationship with other early
childhood and health professionals strengthens the service’s quality and builds
positive relationships between organisations within the community.
Access and Equity
During 2014/2015 Council made significant progress in improving physical access to
Council assets and equitable service provision to all people in the Cabonne LGA.
Significant works to improve access for people with disabilities has been included in
Council’s budget. In the past year Council continued to implement its Pedestrian
Access and Mobility Plan (PAMP) with funding support from the RTA. The PAMP
targets key areas for improvement of accessibility.
Included in its Delivery Program and Operational Plan, Council’s budgeted over
$40,000 for improvement of access in Cabonne towns and villages in the 2014/2015
financial year.
Council’s Strategic Plan includes provisions for Council to provide a range of
Community Transport and Home and Community Care services for older people.
Services provided have included Meals on Wheels / Food Services, individualised and
group activities and trips, and minor home maintenance services for people who are
frail aged or have functional disabilities.
The needs of numerous disparate groups within the community are addressed in the
Community Strategic Plan and flow down through the Delivery Program and
Operational Plan. These groups include:
 Children
 Young people
 People with disabilities
 Older people
 Women
 Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander people
 People from culturally and linguistically diverse backgrounds
Giving particular consideration to these groups will help to ensure that all members
of the community receive a fair go in planning future services or facilities and that
the council meets the requirement to ensure the Community Strategic Plan is
founded on social justice principles.
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Carer Recognition Act
S8(2)

Council’s Services were provided in a manner sensitive to the needs of carers with
their requirements taken into consideration by Council’s Community Transport, HACC
and Childcare Services. Carers form part of the Home and Community Care target
group.
Council granted carer’s leave to staff members on numerous occasions throughout
the past year and has provided some flexibility for staff members with ongoing
caring responsibilities.

Financially Assist Others: Contributions and Grants under s356
Cl 217(1)(a5)

Council provided contributions and grants consistent with its Donations Policy.
Miscellaneous Financial Assistance

$19415.00

Commonwealth Grant Funding
During the subject year the following grants were received from the federal
government:
Financial Assistance Grants Program
$4,584,000.00
Others
$5,243,000.00
Total
$9,827,000.00

Delegation to External Bodies
cl 217(1)(a6)

Council delegates the care, control and management of a number of its
responsibilities to Community Committees under s377 of the Local Government Act,
1993. A list of these committees and their principal activities is detailed below.
Council reviews its delegations annually, in accordance with the Local Government
Act.
SECTION 355 COMMITTEES

WORK, PROPERTY OR UNDERTAKING

Acacia Lodge Management Committee

Molong Community Housing

Age of Fishes Museum Canowindra
Committee

Age of Fishes Museum

Amusu Theatre Inc

Amusu Theatre

Canowindra Beautification Committee

Canowindra Court House & Beautification of
Canowindra

Canowindra Pre-School Kindergarten

Canowindra Pre-School Building

Canowindra Sports Trust

Canowindra Sports Complex

Cargo Community Centre Committee

Cargo Community Centre
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Cudal Community Children’s Centre
Committee

(Pre-School) Cudal Community Children’s
Centre

Cudal Homes for Aged Persons
Committee

Boree Lodge

Cumnock & District Progress
Association

Crossroads Building Obley St Cumnock

Cudal Memorial Pool Committee

Cudal Memorial Swimming Pool

Cumnock Community Centre
Committee

Cumnock Community Centre

Cumnock Pool Committee

Cumnock Swimming Pool

Doctor for Cudal Committee

Doctors Residence – Cudal

Eugowra Community Children’s Centre
and Preschool Committee

Eugowra Community Centre & Preschool

Eugowra Medical Centre Committee

Doctors Residence & Surgery - 47 Nanima St
Eugowra

Eugowra Memorial Pool Committee

Eugowra Memorial Swimming Pool

Eugowra Promotion & Progress
Association

Eugowra Historical Museum & Bushranger
Centre

Eugowra Self Care Units
Committee

Eugowra Self Care Units

Manildra Memorial Hall
Committee

Manildra Memorial Hall

Manildra Memorial Pool
Committee

Manildra Memorial Swimming Pool

Manildra Sports Council

Manildra Sports Complex

Molong & District Health Watch
Committee

Molong Doctor’s Surgery

Molong Town Beautification
Committee

Beautification Projects in & around Molong

Moorbel Hall Committee

Moorbel Hall Canowindra

Yeoval Memorial Hall
Management Committee

Yeoval Memorial Hall
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Yeoval Pool Committee

Yeoval Swimming Pool

Yeoval Progress Association

O’Halloran’s Cottage and Buckinbah Park

Ventures, Syndicates or other bodies in which Council holds a
controlling interest
cl217(1)(a7)

Cabonne Council does not hold a controlling interest in any company.

Statement of all Corporations, Partnerships, Trusts, Joint Ventures,
Syndicates or other bodies Statement in which the Council
participated
cl217(1)(a8)



Statewide Insurance Group - bulk purchase of Public Liability, Professionals
Indemnity, Motor Vehicle and Fidelity Guarantee Insurance.



Central West Regional Organisation of Councils (CENTROC).



Central West Libraries - comprising Cabonne, Orange, Blayney, Forbes and
Cowra Councils.



Southern Phone Company – shareholder.



Wellington Blayney Cabonne Strategic Alliance.

Business Activities
Category 1- Businesses
Cabonne Council Agricultural Lime Quarry

Category 2 – Businesses
Cabonne Council Combined Water Supplies
Cabonne Council Combined Sewerage Supplies
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Report on special variation expenditure if required to do so by the
instrument made by the minister
s508(2) and s508A

There was no requirement to report on this matter.

Report on Capital Works Projects
DLG Capital Expenditure Guidelines

July 2014 – June 2015
Gravel Resheeting

$666,379

Gumble Road Sealing

$718,044

Bowan Park Road (R2R)

$836,995

Davys Plains Road (R2R)

$917,106

Cadia Road/Four Mile Creek Intersection Upgrade

$316,312

Cadia Road Heavy Patching

$408,633

Obley Road Shoulder Restoration

$409,653

Marylebone Bridge

$459,139

Marylebone Bridge Approaches

$408,004

Icely Road Heavy Patching

$546,317

MR234 Banjo
Cumnock

Patterson

Way

Repair

Program,

$326,779

MR237 Nangar Road Shoulder Widening

$538,341

Shared Pathway Gaskill Street to John Grant Bridge

$164,499

Canowindra Fitness Path

$171,697

MR377 The Escort Way Murga Shoulder Widening

$1,052,869

MR377 The Escort Way Heavy Patching Gavins Lane
Stage 1 & 2

$394,410

Sewer Relining Molong and Canowindra Sewer
Schemes

$280,000

Delgany Water Treatment Plant Upgrade

$190,000

Molong Water Treatment Plant Chemical Dosing
System

$315,000

King Street, Molong Water Main Renewal

$90,000

Molong Creek Flow Monitoring System

$25,000

Canowindra
Scheme

Disinfection

System

Effluent

Reuse

$196,000
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Sewer Pump Stations System

$122,000

Public Interest Disclosures
s31 Public Interest Disclosure Act, cl 4 Public Interest Disclosure Regulation

1. Statistical information on PIDs
July 2013 – June 2014
Number of public officials who made PIDs

2

Number of PIDs received

2

Of PIDs received, number primarily about:
Corrupt conduct

1

Maladministration
Serious and substantial waste

1

Government information contravention
Local government
contravention

pecuniary

Number of PIDs finalised

interest

0

2

2. Commentary on PID obligations
2.1.

Council adopted a Public Interest Disclosures (Internal Reporting) Policy at its
November 2011 Council meeting and reviewed this on 15 October, 2013.

2.2.

Staff awareness obligations regarding Public Interest Disclosures have been
made as follows: Policy briefing from senior managers, training provided by
the Ombudsman, training provided by Council, training to new staff during
inductions and messages in staff newsletters and bulletin boards.
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Government Information (Public Access) Act 2009
s125(1), cl 7 Schedule 2

The Government Information (Public Access) Act 2009 (GIPA) commenced from 1 July
2010. This replaced the Freedom of Information Act. The GIPA Act objective is to
open government information to the public by:
1. authorising and encouraging the proactive public release of government
information by agencies,
2. giving members of the public an enforceable right of access to government
information, and
3. providing that access to government information is restricted only when there
is an overriding public interest against disclosure.
Currently Council makes much of its information publicly available on its website.
Council will endeavour to proactively release any newly created documents that
should be made available in the public interest as well as:
1. Any information formally requested, not requiring third party consultation,
where the applicant has indicated that they will be requesting regular updates;
2. Media releases; and
3. Any Information considered to be of interest to the public (not already
required to be released) consistent with Council’s proactive release program.
Council will only require formal GIPA applications as a last resort where there would
appear an overriding public interest against disclosure.
In the 2014-15 year Council received four (4) formal access applications (including
withdrawn applications but not invalid applications).
The tables below set out information relating to the access applications made to
Council during the 2014/15 year.
The information is provided in the format required by the Government Information
(Public Access) Regulation.
For more information about GIPA visit
www.ipc.nsw.gov.au or phone 1800 472 679.
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GIPA access applications tables
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Customer Service

InfoXpert Statistics
14%

Unclassified Documents

6%

Email correspondence

18%

Email Reply Required

53%

Inwards Reply Required

1%
3%

Infocouncil Business Paper

Inwards Correspondence

3%

Outwards Correspondence

Council utilises an electronic document mangement system called InfoXpert as a
system to assist in monitoring customer service. The system is currently being reevaulated to provide more meaningful statistical data. While there has been a
substantial reduction in “Unclassified Documents” and an improvement in identifying
an indication of response times to various categories, further work is taking place.
The above graph has been included as a base line to enable council to gauge its
success or otherwise in future years.

Complaint Handling
Council is reviewing its complaint management framework and complaint handling
policy following the release of the Australian and New Zealand Standard “Guidelines
for complaint management in organizations [sic]” - AS/NZS 10002:2014 and a model
complaint handling policy by the NSW Ombudsman. Consistent with these
guidelines the general manager will in future years report publicly on the council’s
complaint handling in the annual report.

Statement of Activities to Implement Council’s Equal Employment
Opportunity Management Plan
cl217(1)(a9)

The statements of activities that have been completed in the EEO Management plan
are:
•

Ensuring that all employees and councillors are aware of their responsibilities
regarding EEO

•

Position Description have been reviewed for accountabilities to EEO principles
as a core competency

•

All advertisements are checked by the HR Officer prior to going to press to
ensure compliance to EEO principles and free from bias

•

All interview panel members are reminded of their responsibilities under EEO
prior to interviews, ensuring that all questions are relevant to the positions
and based on the position specification

•

Ensuring that all appointments are made on merit

•

Induction sessions are held, and all new employees are made aware of
Council’s Anti Discrimination & EEO and Bullying & Harassment policies.
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Human Resource Activities/Development Appraisal
Systems/Training Programs
The Local Government (State) Award 2014 provides for each Council to establish
and properly maintain a consultative committee which provides a forum for
consultation between Council and its employees. The committee comprises
representatives from Council, management, human resources, office and field staff.
During 2014/2015 the Cabonne Consultative Committee met on 5 occasions to
discuss matters relating to human resource activities and conditions of employment.
Council has a Development Appraisal System in place where all staff are reviewed
annually. As a result of the review the tasks required in the position are assessed
along with the staff member’s skills, knowledge and ability to undertake the job.
Goals are determined for the following 12 months and training requirements
identified for each staff member. In this years appraisal period, staff were also asked
to contribute feedback to Council’s progress in the areas of communication,
opportunities for advancement, local government reform and recognition processes
External training arrangements were undertaken by staff during 2014/2015. In
addition, in-house training was also provided to staff whose positions were of a
nature which enabled on-the-job instruction.
Council continued to dedicate a significant amount of the training budget to
Workplace Health and Safety, traffic control and other regulatory training and
related programs during the 2014/2015 financial year.
The major areas for training included traffic control, working near overhead power
lines, team leadership, chainsaw operation, confined spaces, first aid, chemical
applications relational selling and procurement. Council has also implemented an
online learning program for all staff that covers core organisational topics like code
of conduct, bullying and harassment, privacy, workplace health and safety, alcohol
and other drugs and equal employment opportunity.
A total of 6 staff members continue to study for qualifications with assistance from
Council, with qualifications ranging from Certificate III to Diploma level.
A number of professional development activities, seminars, and workshops were
also attended by both indoor and outdoor staff to ensure they were kept up to date
with current trends and changes in their areas of expertise.
Council continues to support apprenticeships and traineeships and currently hosts 7
fulltime trainees, apprentices and cadets in positions of heavy vehicle mechanic,
carpenter, community services, finance & corporate services, health and building
surveyor and civil engineering.
Council also supports a Work Experience program for local school students,
coordinated through the school’s Careers Advisor.
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Environmental Services
State of the Environment Report
s428A(1)

Council’s Community Strategic Plan has the following environmental strategic
objectives which are to be addressed within the Regional State of the Environment
Report.
All villages have a secure and quality water supply.
Flood mitigation processes are in place.
Sustainable solid and liquid waste management practices are in place across
Cabonne.
Primary producers use best practice methods and systems that respect the
environment.
All natural resources are managed sustainably in a planned way.
Risk management processes are in place for natural disaster events.
Alternative energy development is considered and utilised where
appropriate.
The Regional State of the Environment Report 2014 /2015 is being prepared and
will be available as a separate document accessible through Council’s website
www.cabonne.nsw.gov.au. The regional report is a collaborative project facilitated
through a partnership between local government and the Central Tablelands Local
Land Services.

Planning Agreements
s93G(5) [Environmental Planning And Assessment Act 1979]

Council did not enter into any planning agreements during 2014/2015.

Statement of Activities in Relation to Companion Animals
Management and Guidelines on the Exercise of Functions Under the
Companion Animals Act
cl217(1)(f) and Guidelines on the Exercise of functions under the Companion Animals Act

1.

Lodgement of pound data collection returns with the Office of Local
Government (OLG) - 16.2(a) Guidelines
A return of Council seizures of cats and dogs for 2014/2015 was completed and
returned to the Department of Local Government by 30th September 2015.
2.
Lodgement of data relating to dog attacks with the OLG - 16.2(b) Guidelines
There were two (2) dog attacks registered with the OLG in the 2014/2015 financial
year.
3.
Amount of funding spent on companion animal management and
activities - 16.2(c) Guidelines
The amount of $193,548 was spent on companion animal management and
activities
in
the
2014/2015
financial
year.
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4.

Companion animal community education programs carried out -

16.2(d)

Guidelines

Cabonne Council held a half price vaccination and micro chipping day in Molong &
Canowindra. Council’s ranger continues to promote responsible pet ownership.
5.
Strategies council has in place to promote and assist the de-sexing of
dogs and cats - 16.2(e) Guidelines
Cabonne Council continued to run a voucher system that aimed to encourage
desexing of companion animals. This system was targeted towards low income
earners and vouchers were to the value of the following;
Female dog $100
Male dog $50
Female cat $50
Male cat $25
6. Strategies in place to comply with the requirement under section 64
(Companion Animals Act) to seek alternatives to euthanasia for unclaimed
animals - 16.2(e) Guidelines
Council delivers unclaimed animals to the RSPCA to be re-homed. Cabonne Council
also works with the RSPCA and the following rescue groups;
Lost Pet Coordinator (Central West)
Lost & Found Pets in Cowra & Surrounding Areas
Central West Pet Rescue (Eugowra)
Golden Oldies Rescue (Mudgee)
Companions
for
Life
Rescue
(Portland)
7. Off leash areas provided in council area - 16.2(f) Guidelines
An off leash area has been established at Rotary

Park,

Molong.

8. Detailed information on the use of companion animals fund money for
management and control of companion animals in the area – 16.5 Guidelines
The amount of $3,351 companion animal fund money was received for 2014/2015
year and went towards Ranger salary, animal shelter maintenance and operating
costs.
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Engineering and Technical Services
Condition of Public Works
The condition of Public Works infrastructure for 2014/15 has been reported in
accordance with the status of the infrastructure data collection required by AAS27,
and bearing in mind the limitations as detailed in the previous section associated
with performance in principal activities.
Special Schedules report refers to the relative value, condition and maintenance
requirements of those assets, as at 30 June 2014.


Estimate of cost to bring to satisfactory standard

Council completed “fair value” evaluation of its Buildings and Recreation assets in
2013. The results of this valuation are reported in Special Schedules and establish
the cost to bring to a satisfactory standard.


Estimated Annual Maintenance Expense

This figure as outlined in Special Schedule report is based on the predicted
maintenance vote for the upcoming financial year.


Maintenance program for 2014/2015

These figures as outlined in Special Schedules report relate to the maintenance and
repair
costs
for
the
various
assets
finalized
in
the
2014/2015
statements. Improvement items have not been included in these figures.
Water and Sewerage Schemes
Special Schedules report refers to the relative value, condition and maintenance
requirements of those assets, as at 30 June 2015.
Public Roads and Bridges
Special Schedules report refers to the relative value, condition and maintenance
requirements of those assets, as at 30 June 2015.
This register includes all regional and local roads within the Local Government Area.
Currently there are some 210km of sealed regional road, 1126.24km of unsealed
gravel local road and 613km of sealed local road that have been inspected, recorded
and evaluated both in terms of service condition and replacement value.
Urban roads (including laneways) are defined by all road reserves within the
townships and villages that are zoned RU5 village under the Environmental Planning
and Assessment Act, 1979.
Roads beyond this zoning are classified as rural local or rural regional. Council also
maintains some 167 kilometres of state road (RMS controlled) under the RMCC
agreement between Council and RMS.
 Data Collection
Road asset data collected to date includes the full inspection and condition rating
of rural and urban, local and regional roads throughout the Local Government
Area. The full condition rating and data collection was performed according to
Council policy.
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Council Roads Assets have undergone “fair value” re-evaluation in 2014/2015.
Council’s Road Asset Register identifies rural roads by number and name and is
segmented by surface type and condition as well as by intersections and bridge
locations.


Condition Rating
The condition rating systems used in the evaluation of road assets were based on
that as presented in Infrastructure Management Guidelines.
The Road Asset Group is rated from a 1 ‘as new’ to a 5 ‘very poor’ or ‘for
replacement’.



Depreciation
Depreciation rates are disclosed against each category of rate in the Special
Schedule report.



Level of Service Considerations and a Satisfactory Condition
In more recent times Council has considered road asset condition data to aid in
policy development and the definition of service levels for the road network.
Asset renewal has been included in Council’s Asset Plans as a standing item.
Council’s Transport Asset Management Plan (TAMP) establishes a road hierarchy
and associated levels of service. The TAMP will also provide Council with financial
consideration.



Bridges on Local Roads
Council is the custodian of 150 bridges and major culverts on local roads which it
is required to fund itself. All but five (5) of these structures are new steel or
reinforced concrete structures. The remaining timber structures are:
1.
2.

“St Germains” – Bocobora Road
“Orana” – Paling Yards Loop

3.

“Bangaroo” – Cabonne/Cowra

4.
5.

“Hanover Creek Bridge – Regional Road
“Baghdad” – Baghdad Road

Some existing drainage infrastructures identified in the 2014/2015 condition rating
also require replacement:
1.

“Washpen” Gundong Road Yeoval

2.

Hillans Creek Bridge, Eurimbla Road

“Marylebone” Davys Plain Road Cudal has been replaced.


Bridges on Regional Roads
Council is also responsible for a further 12 bridges on regional roads which are
funded by the RMS of these structures the following project has been identified
as priority replacement:
 “Hanover Bridge” between Cumnock and Yeoval is listed for future
replacement.

A statement detailing the stormwater management services
provided (if levied)
cl217(1)(e)
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Storm Water Drainage Systems
Council’s Storm Water Drainage Asset Management plan involves all of the Cabonne
villages and is subject to annual review.
Council’s 2014/2015 Asset Management Plan includes a program for storm water
improvements funded from the levy. The Urban Storm Water Works Service Levy
program identifies projects through to 2014/2015 and is reviewed annually.
Council commenced work on projects identified in the Urban Storm Water Works
Service levy in 2007. The Urban Storm Water Levy is included in the Cabonne’s
Annual Budget which is part of Council’s Asset Management Plan.
Condition Rating
The condition rating systems used in the evaluation of drainage assets in 1997 was
based on the RMS ROCOND 90 and has since been converted to that as specified in
the Special Schedules report.
The tables labelled as Special Schedule No. 7 - Condition of Public Works in
Council’s Financial Statements summarise the estimated costs to bring Council’s
public works assets to a satisfactory standard. They also provide a summary of
estimated annual maintenance expenses and programmed maintenance work.

Canowindra Pool
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Private Works carried out under s67 of the Local Government Act
s67(3) cl 217(1)(a4)

During 2014/2015, Council carried out private works comprising of things such as
noxious weeds spraying, water delivery, gravel re sheeting, slashing of fire breaks
etc., the expenditure on which totalled $211,488. None of these works were
subsidised under s67 of the Local Government Act, 1993.
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Overview
(i)

These financial statements are General Purpose Financial Statements and cover the consolidated operations
for Cabonne Council.

(ii)

Cabonne Council is a body politic of NSW, Australia - being constituted as a Local Government area
by proclamation and is duly empowered by the Local Government Act (LGA) 1993 of NSW.
Council's Statutory Charter is detailed in Paragraph 8 of the LGA and includes giving Council;
 the ability to provide goods, services & facilities, and to carry out activities appropriate to the current & future

needs of the local community and of the wider public,

 the responsibility for administering regulatory requirements under the LGA and
 a role in the management, improvement and development of the resources in the area.

A description of the nature of Council's operations and its principal activities are provided in Note 2(b).
(iii)

All figures presented in these financial statements are presented in Australian Currency.

(iv)

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Council on 28 October 2015.
Council has the power to amend and reissue these financial statements.
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Cabonne Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2015

Understanding Council's Financial Statements
Introduction
Each year, individual Local Governments across
NSW are required to present a set of audited
financial statements to their Council & Community.

What you will find in the Statements
The financial statements set out the financial
performance, financial position & cash flows of
Council for the financial year ended 30 June 2015.
The format of the financial statements is standard
across all NSW Councils and complies with both the
accounting & reporting requirements of Australian
Accounting Standards and requirements as set
down by the Office of Local Government.

About the Councillor/Management Statement

5. The Statement of Cash Flows
Indicates where Council's cash came from and
where it was spent.
This statement also displays Council's original
adopted budget to provide a comparison between
what was projected and what actually occurred.

About the Notes to the Financial Statements
The Notes to the financial statements provide greater
detail and additional information on the 5 primary
financial statements.

About the Auditor's Reports
Council's financial statements are required to be
audited by external accountants (that generally
specialize in Local Government).

The financial statements must be certified by Senior
staff as "presenting fairly" the Council's financial
results for the year, and are required to be adopted
by Council - ensuring both responsibility for &
ownership of the financial statements.

In NSW, the Auditor provides 2 audit reports:

About the Primary Financial Statements

2. Their observations on the conduct of the Audit
including commentary on the Council's financial
performance & financial position.

The financial statements incorporate 5 "primary"
financial statements:
1. The Income Statement
Summarises Council's financial performance for the
year, listing all income & expenses.
This statement also displays Council's original
adopted budget to provide a comparison between
what was projected and what actually occurred.
2. The Statement of Comprehensive Income
Primarily records changes in the fair values of
Council's Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment.
3. The Statement of Financial Position

1. An opinion on whether the financial statements
present fairly the Council's financial performance
& position, &

Who uses the Financial Statements ?
The financial statements are publicly available
documents & must be presented at a Council
meeting between 7 days & 5 weeks after the date of
the Audit Report.
Submissions from the public can be made to Council
up to 7 days subsequent to the public presentation of
the financial statements.
Council is required to forward an audited set of
financial statements to the Office of Local
Government.

A 30 June snapshot of Council's financial position
indicating its Assets, Liabilities & “Net Wealth”.

More information

4. The Statement of Changes in Equity

A review of Council's financial performance and
position for the 14/15 financial year can be found at
Note 28 of the financial statements.

The overall change for the year (in dollars) of
Council's "Net Wealth".
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Cabonne Council
Income Statement

for the financial year ended 30 June 2015
Budget
2015

1

$ '000

Actual
2015

Actual
2014

12,269
9,771
1,414
542
10,371
3,619

11,989
10,124
1,660
540
8,325
6,473

5

-

461

19

227

590

38,213

40,162

11,959
243
5,778
9,936
5,989
317

11,804
248
4,739
9,381
6,113
-

34,222

32,285

3,991

7,877

-

-

3,991

7,877

3,991
-

7,877
-

372

1,404

Notes

Income from Continuing Operations
12,338
7,532
1,370
355
9,393
2,594
33,582

Revenue:
Rates & Annual Charges
User Charges & Fees
Interest & Investment Revenue
Other Revenues
Grants & Contributions provided for Operating Purposes
Grants & Contributions provided for Capital Purposes
Other Income:
Net gains from the disposal of assets
Net Share of interests in Joint Ventures &
Associates using the equity method

3b
3c
3d
3e,f
3e,f

Total Income from Continuing Operations
Expenses from Continuing Operations

12,336
170
6,066
9,240
5,544
(200)

Employee Benefits & On-Costs
Borrowing Costs
Materials & Contracts
Depreciation & Amortisation
Impairment
Other Expenses
Net Losses from the Disposal of Assets

33,156

Total Expenses from Continuing Operations

426

3a

4a
4b
4c
4d
4d
4e
5

Operating Result from Continuing Operations

2

Discontinued Operations
-

Net Profit/(Loss) from Discontinued Operations

426

Net Operating Result for the Year

426
-

(2,168)
1
2

24

Net Operating Result attributable to Council
Net Operating Result attributable to Non-controlling Interests

Net Operating Result for the year before Grants and
Contributions provided for Capital Purposes

Original Budget as approved by Council - refer Note 16
Financial Assistance Grants for 13/14 were lower reflecting one off timing differences due to changes in how the grant was paid in prior years - refer Note 3 (e)

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Notes.
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Cabonne Council
Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the financial year ended 30 June 2015

$ '000

Notes

Net Operating Result for the year (as per Income statement)

Actual
2015

Actual
2014

3,991

7,877

39,030
-

14,301
(48)

39,030

14,253

39,030

14,253

43,021

22,130

43,021
-

22,130
-

Other Comprehensive Income:
Amounts which will not be reclassified subsequently to the Operating Result
Gain (loss) on revaluation of I,PP&E
Impairment (loss) reversal relating to I,PP&E
Total Items which will not be reclassified subsequently
to the Operating Result

20b (ii)
20b (ii)

Amounts which will be reclassified subsequently to the Operating Result
when specific conditions are met
Nil

Total Other Comprehensive Income for the year

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year
Total Comprehensive Income attributable to Council
Total Comprehensive Income attributable to Non-controlling Interests

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Notes.
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Cabonne Council
Statement of Financial Position
as at 30 June 2015

$ '000

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Investments
Receivables
Inventories
Other
Total Current Assets
Non-Current Assets
Investments
Receivables
Inventories
Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
Investments accounted for using the equity method
Intangible Assets
Other
Total Non-Current Assets

Notes

6a
6b
7
8
8

6b
7
8
9
19
25
8

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables
Borrowings
Provisions
Total Current Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Payables
Borrowings
Provisions
Total Non-Current Liabilities

10
10
10

10
10
10

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Net Assets
EQUITY
Retained Earnings
Revaluation Reserves
Council Equity Interest
Non-controlling Equity Interests

Total Equity

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Notes.

20
20

Actual
2015

Actual
2014

20,594
20,500
3,759
1,030
103
45,986

9,969
29,600
4,317
1,258
12
45,156

561
371
507,827
19,862
238
282
529,141

694
410
466,040
19,635
203
282
487,264

575,127

532,420

2,535
192
3,601
6,328

2,951
180
3,405
6,536

38
2,521
1,602
4,161

26
2,712
1,529
4,267

10,489

10,803

564,638

521,617

317,985
246,653
564,638
-

313,796
207,821
521,617
-

564,638

521,617
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Cabonne Council
Statement of Changes in Equity
for the financial year ended 30 June 2015

$ '000

Notes

Retained Reserves
Earnings (Refer 20b)

NonCouncil controlling
Interest
Interest

Total
Equity

2015

Opening Balance (as per Last Year's Audited Accounts)

294,751

207,821

502,572

-

502,572

a. Correction of Prior Period Errors

20 (c)

-

-

-

-

-

b. Changes in Accounting Policies (prior year effects)

20 (d)

19,045
313,796

207,821

19,045

19,045

521,617

-

521,617

3,991

-

3,991

-

3,991

Revised Opening Balance (as at 1/7/14)
c. Net Operating Result for the Year
d. Other Comprehensive Income
- Revaluations : IPP&E Asset Revaluation Rsve

20b (ii)

-

39,030

39,030

-

39,030

- Revaluations: Other Reserves

20b (ii)

-

-

-

-

-

- Transfers to Income Statement

20b (ii)

-

-

-

-

-

- Impairment (loss) reversal relating to I,PP&E

20b (ii)

-

39,030

39,030

-

39,030

3,991

39,030

43,021

-

43,021

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

564,638

-

564,638

Other Comprehensive Income
Total Comprehensive Income (c&d)
e. Distributions to/(Contributions from) Non-controlling Interests
f. Transfers between Equity

198

Equity - Balance at end of the reporting period

$ '000

Notes

317,985

(198)
246,653

Retained Reserves
Earnings (Refer 20b)

NonCouncil controlling
Interest
Interest

-

Total
Equity

2014

Opening Balance (as per Last Year's Audited Accounts)

286,874

193,568

480,442

-

480,442

a. Correction of Prior Period Errors

20 (c)

-

-

-

-

-

b. Changes in Accounting Policies (prior year effects)

20 (d)

19,045
305,919

193,568

19,045
499,487

-

499,487

7,877

-

7,877

-

7,877

Revised Opening Balance (as at 1/7/13)
c. Net Operating Result for the Year

19,045

d. Other Comprehensive Income
- Revaluations : IPP&E Asset Revaluation Rsve

20b (ii)

-

14,301

14,301

-

14,301

- Revaluations: Other Reserves

20b (ii)

-

-

-

-

-

- Transfers to Income Statement

20b (ii)

-

-

-

- Impairment (loss) reversal relating to I,PP&E

20b (ii)

-

(48)
14,253

7,877

e. Distributions to/(Contributions from) Non-controlling Interests
f. Transfers between Equity

Equity - Balance at end of the reporting period

(48)

14,253

-

14,253

14,253

22,130

-

22,130

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

313,796

207,821

521,617

-

521,617

Other Comprehensive Income
Total Comprehensive Income (c&d)

(48)

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Notes.
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Cabonne Council
Statement of Cash Flows

for the financial year ended 30 June 2015
Budget
2015

Actual
2015

Actual
2014

12,444
9,741
1,626
14,941
132
1,956

13,137
9,975
1,414
15,457
273
1,429

(12,035)
(5,836)
(171)
(196)
(8,312)

(12,084)
(5,128)
(182)
(7,898)

14,290

16,393

29,500
105
1,384
212

18,569
38
784
210

Purchase of Investment Securities
Purchase of Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
Purchase of Real Estate Assets

(20,500)
(14,187)
-

(29,500)
(17,492)
(243)

Net Cash provided (or used in) Investing Activities

(3,486)

(27,634)

$ '000

Notes

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts:

12,338
7,532
1,370
11,986
355

Rates & Annual Charges
User Charges & Fees
Investment & Interest Revenue Received
Grants & Contributions
Bonds, Deposits & Retention amounts received
Other
Payments:

(12,336)
(6,065)
(171)
(5,543)

9,466

Employee Benefits & On-Costs
Materials & Contracts
Borrowing Costs
Bonds, Deposits & Retention amounts refunded
Other
Net Cash provided (or used in) Operating Activities

11b

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Receipts:

600
-

Sale of Investment Securities
Sale of Real Estate Assets
Sale of Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
Deferred Debtors Receipts
Payments:

(8,309)
(1,730)

(9,439)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Receipts:

Nil
Payments:

(171)

Repayment of Borrowings & Advances

(179)

(170)

(171)

Net Cash Flow provided (used in) Financing Activities

(179)

(170)

(144)

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents

37,929

37,785

10,625

(11,411)

Cash & Cash Equivalents - beginning of year

11a

9,969

21,380

Cash & Cash Equivalents - end of the year

11a

20,594

9,969

6b

20,500

29,600

41,094

39,569

plus:

Additional Information:
plus:

Investments on hand - end of year

Total Cash, Cash Equivalents & Investments
Please refer to Note 11 for additional cash flow information
This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Notes.
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Contents of the Notes accompanying the Financial Statements
Note

Details

Page
10
28
29
30
35
39
40
40
42
44
45
46
47
47
48
49
50
52

14
15
16
17
18
19
20

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Council Functions / Activities - Financial Information
Council Functions / Activities - Component Descriptions
Income from Continuing Operations
Expenses from Continuing Operations
Gains or Losses from the Disposal of Assets
Cash & Cash Equivalent Assets
Investments
Restricted Cash, Cash Equivalents & Investments - Details
Receivables
Inventories and Other Assets
Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
Externally Restricted Infrastructure, Property, Plant and Equipment
Infrastructure, Property, Plant and Equipment - Current Year Impairments
Payables, Borrowings and Provisions
Description of (and movements in) Provisions
Statement of Cash Flows - Additional Information
Commitments for Expenditure
Statement of Performance Measures:
13a (i) Local Government Industry Indicators
(Consolidated)
13a (ii) Local Government Industry Graphs
(Consolidated)
13b
Local Government Industry Indicators
(by Fund)
Investment Properties
Financial Risk Management
Material Budget Variations
Statement of Developer Contributions
Contingencies and Other Liabilities/Assets not recognised
Interests in Other Entities
Equity - Retained Earnings and Revaluation Reserves

53
54
56
57 n/a
57
61
63
65
68
72

21
22
23
24
25
26
27

Financial Result & Financial Position by Fund
"Held for Sale" Non Current Assets & Disposal Groups
Events occurring after the Reporting Date
Discontinued Operations
Intangible Assets
Reinstatement, Rehabilitation and Restoration Liabilities
Fair Value Measurement

73
75 n/a
75 n/a
75 n/a
76
77
78

1
2(a)
2(b)
3
4
5
6(a)
6(b)
6(c)
7
8
9(a)
9(b)
9(c)
10(a)
10(b)
11
12
13

Additional Council Disclosures
28
29

Financial Review
Council Information and Contact Details

95
96

n/a - not applicable
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The principal accounting policies adopted by Council
in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below in order to assist in its
general understanding.
Under Australian Accounting Standards (AASBs),
accounting policies are defined as those specific
principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices
applied by a reporting entity (in this case Council) in
preparing and presenting its financial statements.

(a) Basis of preparation
(i) Background
These financial statements are general purpose
financial statements which have been prepared in
accordance with;


Australian Accounting Standards and Australian
Accounting Interpretations issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board,

 the Local Government Act (1993) & Regulation,
and
 the Local Government Code of Accounting
Practice and Financial Reporting.
For the purpose of preparing these financial
statements, Council has been deemed to be a notfor-profit entity.

Under the Local Government Act (LGA), Regulations
and Local Government Code of Accounting Practice
& Financial Reporting, it should be noted that
Councils in NSW only have a requirement to comply
with AASBs.
(iii) New and amended standards adopted by
Council
During the current year, the following relevant
accounting standards became mandatory and have
been adopted by Council:



AASB 11 Joint Arrangements
AASB 12 Disclosures of Interests in Other
Entities

AASB 11 classified joint arrangements into either
joint ventures (equity accounting) or joint operations
(accounting for share of assets and liabilities).
AASB 12 has increased the level of disclosures
required where Council has any interests in
subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates or
unconsolidated structured entities.
(iv) Early adoption of Accounting Standards
Council
has
not
elected
to
apply
any
pronouncements before their operative date in the
annual reporting period beginning 1 July 2014.
(v) Basis of Accounting

(ii) Compliance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs)

These financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention except for:

Because AASBs are sector neutral, some standards
either:

(i)

(a) have

local
Australian
content
and
prescription that is specific to the Not-ForProfit sector (including Local Government)
which are not in compliance with IFRS’s, or

(b) specifically exclude application by Not for

Profit entities.

Accordingly in preparing these financial statements
and accompanying notes, Council has been unable
to comply fully with International Accounting
Standards, but has complied fully with Australian
Accounting Standards.

certain financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss and available-forsale financial assets which are all valued at fair
value,

(ii) the write down of any Asset on the basis of
Impairment (if warranted) and
(iii) certain classes of non current assets (eg.
Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment and
Investment Property) that are accounted for at
fair valuation.
The accrual basis of accounting has also been
applied in their preparation.
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(vi) Changes in Accounting Policies

(ii)

Council’s accounting policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.
There have also been no changes in accounting
policies when compared with previous financial
statements unless otherwise stated [refer Note 20(d)].
(vii) Critical Accounting Estimates
The preparation of financial statements requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates (in
conformity with AASBs).
Accordingly this requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Council's
accounting policies.
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that
may have a financial impact on Council and that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
Council makes estimates
concerning the future.

and

assumptions

The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results.
The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are set out below:
(i)

Estimated fair values of investment properties

(ii)

Estimated fair values of infrastructure, property,
plant and equipment.

(iii) Estimated remediation provisions.
Critical judgements
accounting policies
(i)

in

applying

Council's

Impairment of Receivables - Council has made
a significant judgement about the impairment of
a number of its receivables in Note 7.

Projected Section 94 Commitments - Council
has used significant judgement in determining
future Section 94 income and expenditure in
Note 17.

(b) Revenue recognition
Council recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to it and specific
criteria have been met for each of the Council’s
activities as described below.
Council bases any estimates on historical results,
taking into consideration the type of customer, the
type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable.
Revenue is measured on major income categories as
follows:
Rates, Annual Charges, Grants and Contributions
Rates, annual charges, grants and contributions
(including developer contributions) are recognised as
revenues when the Council obtains control over the
assets comprising these receipts.
Control over assets acquired from rates and annual
charges is obtained at the commencement of the
rating year as it is an enforceable debt linked to the
rateable property or, where earlier, upon receipt of
the rates.
A provision for the impairment on rates receivables
has not been established as unpaid rates represent a
charge against the rateable property that will be
recovered when the property is next sold.
Control over granted assets is normally obtained
upon their receipt (or acquittal) or upon earlier
notification that a grant has been secured, and is
valued at their fair value at the date of transfer.
Revenue from Contributions is recognised when the
Council either obtains control of the contribution or
the right to receive it, (i) it is probable that the
economic benefits comprising the contribution will
flow to the Council and (ii) the amount of the
contribution can be measured reliably.
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Where grants or contributions recognised as
revenues during the financial year were obtained on
condition that they be expended in a particular
manner or used over a particular period and those
conditions were undischarged at balance date, the
unused grant or contribution is disclosed in Note
3(g).
Note 3(g) also discloses the amount of unused grant
or contribution from prior years that was expended
on Council’s operations during the current year.

Sale of Infrastructure,
Equipment

Property,

Plant

and

The profit or loss on sale of an asset is determined
when control of the asset has irrevocably passed to
the buyer.
Interest and Rents
Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

The Council has obligations to provide facilities from
contribution revenues levied on developers under
the provisions of S94 of the EPA Act 1979.

Interest Income from Cash & Investments is
accounted for using the effective interest rate at the
date that interest is earned.

Whilst Council generally incorporates these amounts
as part of a Development Consents Order, such
developer contributions are only recognised as
income upon their physical receipt by Council, due to
the possibility that individual Development Consents
may not be acted upon by the applicant and
accordingly would not be payable to Council.

Dividend Income

Developer contributions may only be expended for
the purposes for which the contributions were
required but the Council may apply contributions
according to the priorities established in work
schedules.

Other income is recorded when the payment is due,
the value of the payment is notified or the payment is
received, whichever occurs first.

A detailed Note relating to developer contributions
can be found at Note 17.
User Charges, Fees and Other Income
User charges, fees and other income (including
parking fees and fines) are recognised as revenue
when the service has been provided, the payment is
received, or when the penalty has been applied,
whichever first occurs.
A provision for the impairment of these receivables
is recognised when collection in full is no longer
probable.
A liability is recognised in respect of revenue that is
reciprocal in nature to the extent that the requisite
service has not been provided as at balance date.

Revenue is recognised when the Council’s right to
receive the payment is established, which is
generally when shareholders approve the dividend.
Other Income

(c) Principles of Consolidation
These financial statements incorporate (i) the assets
and liabilities of Council and any entities (or
operations) that it controls (as at 30 June 2015) and
(ii) all the related operating results (for the financial
year ended the 30th June 2015).
Detailed information relating to the entities that
Council Controls can be found at Note 19 (a).
In the process of reporting on Council’s activities as a
single unit, all inter-entity year end balances and
reporting period transactions have been eliminated in
full between Council and its controlled entities.
(i) The Consolidated Fund
In accordance with the provisions of Section 409(1)
of the LGA 1993, all money and property received by
Council is held in the Council’s Consolidated Fund
unless it is required to be held in the Council’s Trust
Fund.
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The Consolidated Fund and other entities through
which the Council controls resources to carry on its
functions have been included in the financial
statements forming part of this report.
The following entities have been included as part of
the Consolidated Fund:
 General Purpose Operations
 Cabonne Water Fund
(Molong, Cumnock & Yeoval)

 Cabonne Sewer Fund
(Molong, Canowindra & Eugowra)

 Small Town Sewer Fund
(Cudal, Manildra, Cumnock & Yeoval)

(ii) The Trust Fund
In accordance with the provisions of Section 411 of
the Local Government Act 1993 (as amended), a
separate and distinct Trust Fund is maintained to
account for all money and property received by the
Council in trust which must be applied only for the
purposes of or in accordance with the trusts relating
to those monies.
Trust monies and property subject to Council’s
control have been included in these statements.
Trust monies and property held by Council but not
subject to the control of Council, have been
excluded from these statements.
A separate statement of monies held in the Trust
Fund is available for inspection at the Council office
by any person free of charge.
(iii) Joint Arrangements
Joint Ventures
Joint Ventures represent operational arrangements
where the parties joint control parties have rights to
the net assets of the arrangement.

retained earnings & reserves are recognised in the
balance sheet.
Detailed information relating to Council’s Joint
Ventures can be found at Note 19 (b).
(iv) Associates
Where Council has the power to participate in the
financial and operating decisions of another entity,
(ie. where Council is deemed to have “significant
influence” over another entities operations but neither
controls nor jointly controls the entity), then Council
accounts for such interests using the equity method
of accounting – in a similar fashion to Joint Ventures.
Such entities are usually termed Associates.
Any interests in Associates are accounted for using
the equity method and are carried at cost.
Detailed information relating to Council’s interest in
Associates can be found at Note 19 (b).
(v) County Councils
Council is a member of the following County Councils
(which are bodies corporate under the Local
Government Act);
 Central Tablelands County Council
The governing body of each County Council is
responsible for managing its own affairs.
Council is of the opinion that it has significant
influence over the County Council/s and has
accordingly accounted for it as an Associate.
Detailed information relating to Council’s interest in
the above County Council/s can be found at Note 19
(b).
(vi) Unconsolidated Structured Entities
Council has no interest in any Unconsolidated
Structured Entities.

Any interests in Joint Ventures are accounted for
using the equity method and are carried at cost.

(d) Leases

Under the equity method, Council’s share of the
operation’s profits/(losses) are recognised in the
income statement, and its share of movements in

All Leases entered into by Council are reviewed and
classified on inception date as either a Finance
Lease or an Operating Lease.
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Finance Leases
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the
Council has substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases.
Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s
inception at the lower of the fair value of the leased
property and the present value of the minimum lease
payments.
The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in borrowings.
Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
outstanding and the recognition of a finance charge.

and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and
 bank overdrafts.
Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in
current liabilities on the balance sheet but are
incorporated into Cash & Cash Equivalents for
presentation of the Cash Flow Statement.

(f) Investments and Other Financial Assets
Council (in accordance with AASB 139) classifies
each of its investments into one of the following
categories for measurement purposes:

The interest element of the finance charge is costed
to the income statement over the lease period so as
to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.

 financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss,

Property, plant and equipment acquired under
finance leases is depreciated over the shorter of
each leased asset’s useful life and the lease term.

 held-to-maturity investments, and

Operating Leases

Each classification depends on the purpose/intention
for which the investment was acquired & at the time it
was acquired.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to
the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease.
Lease income from operating leases is recognised in
income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(e) Cash and Cash Equivalents
For Statement of Cash Flows (and Statement of
Financial Position) presentation purposes, cash and
cash equivalents includes;
 cash on hand,

 loans and receivables,

 available-for-sale financial assets.

Management
determines
each
Investment
classification at the time of initial recognition and reevaluates this designation at each reporting date.
(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets that are “held for trading”.
A financial asset is classified in the “held for trading”
category if it is acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the short term.
Assets in this category are primarily classified as
current assets as they are primarily held for trading
&/or are expected to be realised within 12 months of
the balance sheet date.

 deposits held at call with financial institutions,
 other short-term, highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
page 14

Financial Statements 2015

_

Cabonne Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2015

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(ii) Loans and receivables

Financial Assets – Reclassification

Loans and receivables are non derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market.
They arise when the Council provides money, goods
or services directly to a debtor with no intention (or in
some cases ability) of selling the resulting
receivable.

Council may choose to reclassify a non-derivative
trading financial asset out of the held-for-trading
category if the financial asset is no longer held for the
purpose of selling it in the near term.
Financial assets other than loans and receivables are
permitted to be reclassified out of the held-for-trading
category only in rare circumstances arising from a
single event that is unusual and highly unlikely to
recur in the near term.

They are included in current assets, except for those
with maturities greater than 12 months after the
balance sheet date which are classified as noncurrent assets.
(iii) Held-to-maturity investments
Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturities that the Council’s management
has the positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity.
In contrast to the “Loans & Receivables”
classification, these investments are generally
quoted in an active market.
Held-to-maturity financial assets are included in noncurrent assets, except for those with maturities less
than 12 months from the reporting date, which are
classified as current assets.
(iv) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are nonderivatives that are either designated in this category
or not classified in any of the other categories.
Investments must be designated as available-forsale if they do not have fixed maturities and fixed or
determinable payments and management intends to
hold them for the medium to long term.
Accordingly, this classification principally comprises
marketable equity securities, but can include all
types of financial assets that could otherwise be
classified in one of the other investment categories.
They are generally included in non-current assets
unless management intends to dispose of the
investment within 12 months of the balance sheet
date or the term to maturity from the reporting date is
less than 12 months.

Council may also choose to reclassify financial
assets that would meet the definition of loans and
receivables out of the held-for-trading or availablefor-sale categories if it has the intention and ability to
hold these financial assets for the foreseeable future
or until maturity at the date of reclassification.
Reclassifications are made at fair value as of the
reclassification date. Fair value becomes the new
cost or amortised cost as applicable, and no
reversals of fair value gains or losses recorded
before reclassification date are subsequently made.
Effective interest rates for financial assets
reclassified to loans and receivables and held-tomaturity categories are determined at the
reclassification date. Further increases in estimates
of cash flows adjust effective interest rates
prospectively.
General Accounting & Measurement of Financial
Instruments:
(i) Initial Recognition
Investments are initially recognised (and measured)
at fair value, plus in the case of investments not at
“fair value through profit or loss”, directly attributable
transactions costs
Purchases and sales of investments are recognised
on trade-date - the date on which the Council
commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Council has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(ii) Subsequent Measurement
Available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets at fair value through profit and loss are
subsequently carried at fair value.
Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity
investments are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract.
As a practical expedient, the group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value
using an observable market price.
(iii) Types of Investments

Realised and unrealised gains and losses arising
from changes in the fair value of the financial assets
classified as “fair value through profit or loss”
category are included in the income statement in the
period in which they arise.

Council has an approved Investment Policy in order
to undertake its investment of money in accordance
with (and to comply with) Section 625 of the Local
Government Act and S212 of the LG (General)
Regulation 2005.

Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in
the fair value of non monetary securities classified
as "available-for-sale" are recognised in equity in
the available-for-sale investments revaluation
reserve.

Investments are placed and managed in accordance
with the Policy and having particular regard to
authorised investments prescribed under the
Ministerial Local Government Investment Order.

When securities classified as "available-for-sale"
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments are included in the income statement as
gains and losses from investment securities.
Impairment
Council assesses at each balance date whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired.
A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
If there is evidence of impairment for any of
Council’s financial assets carried at amortised cost
(eg. loans and receivables), the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the
amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss. If a
loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable

Council maintains its investment Policy in compliance
with the Act and ensures that it or its representatives
exercise care, diligence and skill that a prudent
person would exercise in investing Council funds.
Council amended its policy following revisions to the
Ministerial Local Government Investment Order
arising from the Cole Inquiry recommendations.
Certain investments that Council holds are no longer
prescribed (eg. managed funds, CDOs, and equity
linked notes), however they have been retained
under grandfathering provisions of the Order. These
will be disposed of when most financially
advantageous to Council.

(g) Fair value estimation
The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities must be estimated for recognition and
measurement or for disclosure purposes.
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the
balance sheet date.
The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined using
valuation techniques.
Council uses a variety of methods and makes
assumptions that are based on market conditions
existing at each balance date.
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar
instruments are used for long-term debt instruments
held.
If the market for a financial asset is not active (and
for unlisted securities), the Council establishes fair
value by using valuation techniques.
These include reference to the fair values of recent
arm’s length transactions, involving the same
instruments or other instruments that are
substantially the same, discounted cash flow
analysis, and option pricing models refined to reflect
the issuer’s specific circumstances.
The nominal value less estimated credit adjustments
of trade receivables and payables are assumed to
approximate their fair values.
The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure
purposes is estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market interest
rate that is available to the Council for similar
financial instruments.

(h) Receivables
Receivables are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, less any
provision for impairment.
Receivables (excluding Rates & Annual Charges)
are generally due for settlement no more than 30
days from the date of recognition.
The collectibility of receivables is reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Debts which are known to be
uncollectible are written off in accordance with
Council’s policy.
A provision for impairment (ie. an allowance
account) relating to receivables is established when
there is objective evidence that the Council will not
be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of each receivable.
The amount of the provision is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the effective interest rate.

Impairment losses are recognised in the Income
Statement within other expenses.
When a receivable for which an impairment
allowance
had
been
recognised
becomes
uncollectible in a subsequent period, it is written off
against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited against other expenses in the income
statement.

(i) Inventories
Raw Materials and Stores, Work in Progress and
Finished Goods
Raw materials and stores, work in progress and
finished goods in respect of business undertakings
are all stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.
Cost comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead
expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of
normal operating capacity.
Costs are assigned to individual items of inventory on
the basis of weighted average costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.
Inventories held in respect of non-business
undertakings have been valued at cost subject to
adjustment for loss of service potential.
Land Held for Resale/Capitalisation of Borrowing
Costs
Land held for resale is stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.
Cost is assigned by specific identification and
includes the cost of acquisition, and development
and borrowing costs during development.
When development is completed borrowing costs
and other holding charges are expensed as incurred.
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Borrowing costs included in the cost of land held for
resale are those costs that would have been avoided
if the expenditure on the acquisition and
development of the land had not been made.
Borrowing costs incurred while active development
is interrupted for extended periods are recognised as
expenses.

(j) Infrastructure, Property, Plant and
Equipment (I,PP&E)
Acquisition of assets
Council’s non current assets are continually revalued
(over a 5 year period) in accordance with the fair
valuation policy as mandated by the Office of Local
Government.
At balance date, the following classes of I,PP&E
were stated at their Fair Value;
-

Water and Sewerage Networks (External Valuation)

-

Operational Land (External Valuation)

-

Buildings – Specialised/Non Specialised

(External Valuation)

Initial Recognition
On initial recognition, an assets cost is measured at
its fair value, plus all expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition.
Where settlement of any part of an asset’s cash
consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the
future are discounted to their present value as at the
date of recognition (ie. date of exchange) of the asset
to arrive at fair value.
The discount rate used is the Council’s incremental
borrowing rate, being the rate at which a similar
borrowing could be obtained from an independent
financier under comparable terms and conditions.
Where infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
assets are acquired for no cost or for an amount
other than cost, the assets are recognised in the
financial statements at their fair value at acquisition
date - being the amount that the asset could have
been exchanged between knowledgeable willing
parties in an arm’s length transaction.
Subsequent costs
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to Council and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably.

-

Plant and Equipment (as approximated by depreciated

-

Roads Assets incl. roads, bridges & footpaths

-

Drainage Assets (Internal Valuation)

-

Bulk Earthworks (Internal Valuation)

Asset Revaluations (including Indexation)

-

Community Land (Internal Valuation)
Land Improvements (a combination

In accounting for Asset Revaluations relating to
Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment:

-

Other Structures

(a combination of External valuations
and approximated by depreciated historical cost)

 Increases in the combined carrying amounts of
asset classes arising on revaluation are credited
to the asset revaluation reserve.

-

Other Assets

historical cost)

(A combination of External Valuation and Internal Valuation)

of External
valuations and approximated by depreciated historical cost)

cost)

(as approximated by depreciated historical

All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the
income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

 To the extent that a net asset class increase
reverses a decrease previously recognised via
the profit or loss, then increase is first recognised
in profit or loss.
 Net decreases that reverse previous increases of
the same asset class are first charged against
revaluation reserves directly in equity to the
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extent of the remaining reserve attributable to the
asset, with all other decreases charged to the
Income statement.
Water and sewerage network assets are indexed
annually between full revaluations in accordance
with the latest indices provided in the NSW Office of
Water - Rates Reference Manual.
For all other assets, Council assesses at each
reporting date whether there is any indication that a
revalued asset’s carrying amount may differ
materially from that which would be determined if the
asset were revalued at the reporting date.
If any such indication exists, Council determines the
asset’s fair value and revalues the asset to that
amount.
Full revaluations are undertaken for all assets on a 5
year cycle.
Capitalisation Thresholds
Items of infrastructure, property, plant and
equipment are not capitalised unless their cost of
acquisition exceeds the following;
Land
- council land
- open space
- land under roads (purchases after 30/6/08)
Plant & Equipment
Office Furniture
Office Equipment
Other Plant &Equipment
Buildings & Land Improvements
Park Furniture & Equipment
Building
- construction/extensions
- renovations
Other Structures
Water & Sewer Assets
Reticulation extensions
Other
Stormwater Assets
Drains & Culverts
Other

100% Capitalised
100% Capitalised
100% Capitalised

> $1,000
> $1,000
> $1,000

> $1,000
100% Capitalised
> $1,000
> $1,000

> $1,000
> $1,000

> $1,000
> $1,000

Transport Assets
Road construction & reconstruction
Reseal/Re-sheet & major repairs:
Bridge construction & reconstruction
Other Infrastructure Assets
Swimming Pools
Other Open Space/Recreational Assets
Other Infrastructure

> $1,000
> $1,000
> $1,000
> $1,000
> $1,000
> $1,000

Depreciation
Depreciation on Council's infrastructure, property,
plant and equipment assets is calculated using the
straight line method in order to allocate an assets
cost (net of residual values) over its estimated useful
life.
Land is not depreciated.
Estimated useful lives for Council's I,PP&E include:
Plant & Equipment
- Office Equipment
- Office furniture
- Computer Equipment
- Vehicles
- Heavy Plant/Road Making equip.
- Other plant and equipment

10 years
10 years
5 years
5 to 10 years
7 to 10 years
5 to 7 years

Other Equipment
- Playground equipment
- Benches, seats etc

5 to 15 years
10 to 20 years

Buildings
- Buildings : Masonry
- Buildings : Other

100 years
33 to 50 years

Stormwater Drainage
- Drains
- Culverts

60 years
60 years

Transportation Assets
- Sealed Roads : Surface
- Sealed Roads : Structure
- Unsealed roads
- Bridge :
- Kerb, Gutter & paths
Water & Sewer Assets
- Dams and reservoirs
- Bores
- Reticulation pipes : PVC

30 years
75 years
40 years
150 years
100 years

100 years
30 years
40 to 80 years
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- Reticulation pipes : Other
- Pumps and telemetry
Other Infrastructure Assets
- Bulk earthworks
- Swimming Pools
- Other Open Space/
Recreational Assets

25 to 75 years
10 to 70 years

Infinite
50 years
10-60 years

All asset residual values and useful lives are
reviewed and adjusted (if appropriate), at each
reporting date.
An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount – refer Note 1(s) on Asset
Impairment.
Disposal and De-recognition
An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no further
future economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in Council’s Income Statement in
the year the asset is derecognised.

(k) Land
Land (other than Land under Roads) is in
accordance with Part 2 of Chapter 6 of the Local
Government Act (1993) classified as either
Operational or Community.
This classification of Land is disclosed in Note 9(a).

(l) Land under roads
Land under roads is land under roadways and road
reserves including land under footpaths, nature
strips and median strips.

Land under roads acquired after 1 July 2008 is
recognised in accordance with AASB 116 – Property,
Plant and Equipment.

(m) Intangible Assets
IT Development and Software
Costs incurred in developing products or systems
and costs incurred in acquiring software and licenses
that will contribute to future period financial benefits
through revenue generation and/or cost reduction are
capitalised to software and systems.
Costs capitalised include external direct costs of
materials and service, direct payroll and payroll
related costs of employees’ time spent on the project.
Amortisation is calculated on a straight line bases
over periods generally ranging from 3 to 5 years.
IT development costs include only those costs
directly attributable to the development phase and
are only recognised following completion of technical
feasibility and where Council has an intention and
ability to use the asset.

(n) Crown Reserves
Crown Reserves under Council’s care and control
are recognised as assets of the Council.
While ownership of the reserves remains with the
Crown, Council retains operational control of the
reserves and is responsible for their maintenance
and use in accordance with the specific purposes to
which the reserves are dedicated.
Improvements on Crown Reserves are also recorded
as assets, while maintenance costs incurred by
Council and revenues relating the reserves are
recognised within Council’s Income Statement.
Representations are currently being sought across
State and Local Government to develop a consistent
accounting treatment for Crown Reserves across
both tiers of government.

Council has elected not to recognise land under
roads acquired before 1 July 2008 in accordance
with AASB 1051.
page 20

Financial Statements 2015

_

Cabonne Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2015

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(o) Rural Fire Service assets

or during the operation phase, based on the net
present value of estimated future costs.

Under section 119 of the Rural Fires Act 1997, “all
fire fighting equipment purchased or constructed
wholly or from money to the credit of the Fund is to
be vested in the council of the area for or on behalf
of which the fire fighting equipment has been
purchased or constructed”.

Provisions for close down and restoration costs do
not include any additional obligations which are
expected to arise from future disturbance.
Costs are estimated on the basis of a closure plan.

At present, the accounting for such fire fighting
equipment is not treated in a consistent manner
across all Councils.

The cost estimates are calculated annually during the
life of the operation to reflect known developments,
eg updated cost estimates and revisions to the
estimated lives of operations, and are subject to
formal review at regular intervals.

Until such time as discussions on this matter have
concluded and the legislation changed, Council will
continue to account for these assets as it has been
doing in previous years, which is to exclude the
assets, their values and depreciation charges from
these financial statements.

Close down, Restoration and Remediation costs are
a normal consequence of tip and quarry operations,
and the majority of close down and restoration
expenditure is incurred at the end of the life of the
operations.

(p) Investment property

Although the ultimate cost to be incurred is uncertain,
Council estimates the respective costs based on
feasibility and engineering studies using current
restoration standards and techniques.

Investment property comprises land &/or buildings
that are principally held for long-term rental yields,
capital gains or both that is not occupied by Council.
Investment property is carried at fair value,
representing an open-market value determined
annually by external valuers.
Annual changes in the fair value of Investment
Properties are recorded in the Income Statement as
part of “Other Income”.
Full revaluations are carried out three years with an
appropriate index utilised each year in between the
full revaluations.

(q) Provisions for close down, restoration
and for environmental clean up costs –
including Tips and Quarries

The amortisation or ‘unwinding’ of the discount
applied in establishing the net present value of
provisions is charged to the income statement in
each accounting period.
This amortisation of the discount is disclosed as a
borrowing cost in Note 4(b).
Other movements in the provisions for Close down,
Restoration and Remediation costs including those
resulting from new disturbance, updated cost
estimates, changes to the estimated lives of
operations and revisions to discount rates are
capitalised within property, plant and equipment.
These costs are then depreciated over the lives of
the assets to which they relate.

Close down, Restoration and Remediation costs
include the dismantling and demolition of
infrastructure, the removal of residual materials and
the remediation of disturbed areas.

Where rehabilitation is conducted systematically over
the life of the operation, rather than at the time of
closure, provision is made for the estimated
outstanding continuous rehabilitation work at each
balance sheet date and the cost is charged to the
income statement.

Estimated close down and restoration costs are
provided for in the accounting period when the
obligation arising from the related disturbance
occurs, whether this occurs during the development

Provision is made for the estimated present value of
the costs of environmental clean up obligations
outstanding at the balance sheet date.
These costs are charged to the income statement.
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Movements in the environmental clean up provisions
are presented as an operating cost, except for the
unwind of the discount which is shown as a
borrowing cost.

For any assets or disposal groups classified as NonCurrent Assets “held for sale”, an impairment loss is
recognised at any time when the assets carrying
value is greater than its fair value less costs to sell.

Remediation procedures generally commence soon
after the time the damage, remediation process and
estimated remediation costs become known, but
may continue for many years depending on the
nature of the disturbance and the remediation
techniques.

Non-current assets “held for sale” are not
depreciated or amortised while they are classified as
“held for sale”.

As noted above, the ultimate cost of environmental
remediation is uncertain and cost estimates can vary
in response to many factors including changes to the
relevant legal requirements, the emergence of new
restoration techniques or experience at other
locations.
The expected timing of expenditure can also
change, for example in response to changes in
quarry reserves or production rates.
As a result there could be significant adjustments to
the provision for close down and restoration and
environmental clean up, which would affect future
financial results.
Specific Information relating to Council's provisions
relating to Close down, Restoration and Remediation
costs can be found at Note 26.

(r) Non-Current Assets (or Disposal Groups)
“Held for Sale” & Discontinued
Operations
Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are
classified as held for sale and stated at the lower of
either (i) their carrying amount and (ii) fair value less
costs to sell, if their carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use.
The exception to this is plant and motor vehicles
which are turned over on a regular basis. Plant and
motor vehicles are retained in Non Current Assets
under the classification of Infrastructure, Property,
Plant and Equipment - unless the assets are to be
traded in after 30 June and the replacement assets
were already purchased and accounted for as at 30
June.

Non-current assets classified as “held for sale” are
presented separately from the other assets in the
balance sheet.
A Discontinued Operation is a component of Council
that has been disposed of or is classified as “held for
sale” and that represents a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations, is part
of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of such a line
of business or area of operations, or is a subsidiary
acquired exclusively with a view to resale.
The results of discontinued operations are presented
separately on the face of the income statement.

(s) Impairment of assets
All Council's I,PP&E is subject to an annual
assessment of impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
Where an asset is not held principally for cash
generating purposes (for example Infrastructure
Assets) and would be replaced if the Council was
deprived of it then depreciated replacement cost is
used as value in use, otherwise value in use is
estimated by using a discounted cash flow model.
Non-financial assets (other than goodwill) that
suffered a prior period impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.
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Goodwill & other Intangible Assets that have an
indefinite useful life and are not subject to
amortisation are tested annually for impairment.

(t) Payables
These amounts represent liabilities and include
goods and services provided to the Council prior to
the end of financial year which are unpaid.
The amounts for goods and services are unsecured
and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.

(u) Borrowings
Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost.
Amortisation results in any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption amount being recognised in the Income
Statement over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method.
Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet
when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired.
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Council has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the balance sheet date.

(v) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are expensed.

(w) Provisions
Provisions for legal claims, service warranties and
other like liabilities are recognised when:
 Council has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events;

 it is more likely than not that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and
 the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.
Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole.
A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.
Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the
reporting date.
The discount rate used to determine the present
value reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability.
The increase in the provision due to the passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.

(x) Employee benefits
(i) Short Term Obligations
Short term employee benefit obligations include
liabilities for wages and salaries (including nonmonetary benefits), annual leave and vesting sick
leave expected to be wholly settled within the 12
months after the reporting period.
Leave liabilities are recognised in the provision for
employee benefits in respect of employees’ services
up to the reporting date with other short term
employee benefit obligations disclosed under
payables.
These provisions are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.
All other short-term employee benefit obligations are
presented as payables.
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Liabilities for non vesting sick leave are recognised
at the time when the leave is taken and measured at
the rates paid or payable, and accordingly no
Liability has been recognised in these reports.
Wages & salaries, annual leave and vesting sick
leave are all classified as Current Liabilities.
(ii) Other Long Term Obligations
The liability for all long service and annual leave in
respect of services provided by employees up to the
reporting date (which is not expected to be wholly
settled within the 12 months after the reporting
period) are recognised in the provision for employee
benefits.
These liabilities are measured at the present value
of the expected future payments to be made using
the projected unit credit method.
Consideration is given to expected future wage and
salary levels, experience of employee departures
and periods of service.
Expected future payments are then discounted using
market yields at the reporting date based on national
government bonds with terms to maturity and
currency that match as closely as possible the
estimated future cash outflows.
Due to the nature of when and how Long Service
Leave can be taken, all Long Service Leave for
employees with 4 or more years of service has been
classified as Current, as it has been deemed that
Council does not have the unconditional right to
defer settlement beyond 12 months – even though it
is not anticipated that all employees with more than
4 years service (as at reporting date) will apply for
and take their leave entitlements in the next 12
months.
(iii) Retirement benefit obligations

Defined Benefit Plans
A liability or asset in respect of defined benefit
superannuation plans would ordinarily be recognised
in the balance sheet, and measured as the present
value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting
date plus unrecognised actuarial gains (less
unrecognised actuarial losses) less the fair value of
the superannuation fund’s assets at that date and
any unrecognised past service cost.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is
based on expected future payments which arise from
membership of the fund to the reporting date,
calculated annually by independent actuaries using
the projected unit credit method. Consideration is
given to expected future wage and salary levels,
experience of employee departures and periods of
service.
However, when this information is not reliably
available, Council can account for its obligations to
defined benefit plans on the same basis as its
obligations to defined contribution plans – i.e. as an
expense when they become payable.
Council is party to an Industry Defined Benefit Plan
under the Local Government Superannuation
Scheme,
named
the
“Local
Government
Superannuation Scheme – Pool B”
This Scheme has been deemed to be a “multi
employer fund” for the purposes of AASB 119.
Sufficient information is not available to account for
the Scheme as a defined benefit plan (in accordance
with AASB 119) because the assets to the scheme
are pooled together for all Councils.
The last valuation of the Scheme was performed by
Mr Martin Stevenson,( BSc, FIA, FIAA ) on 13/02/13
and covers the period ended 30/06/15.

All employees of the Council are entitled to benefits
on retirement, disability or death.

However the position is monitored annually and the
Actuary has estimated that as at 30 June 2015 the
prior period deficit still exists.

Council contributes to various defined benefit plans
and defined contribution plans on behalf of its
employees.

Effective from 1 July 2009, employers are required to
contribute additional contributions to assist in
extinguishing this deficit.
The amount of employer contributions to the defined
benefit section of the Local Government
Superannuation Scheme and recognised as an
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expense and disclosed as part of Superannuation
Expenses at Note 4(a) for the year ending 30 June
2015 was $ 368,155

The asset or liability is classified as current if it is
expected to be settled within the next 12 months,
being the Council’s operational cycle.

Council’s share of that deficiency cannot be
accurately calculated as the Scheme is a mutual
arrangement where assets and liabilities are pooled
together for all member councils.

Exceptions

For this reason, no liability for the deficiency has
been recognised in these financial statements.

In the case of liabilities where Council does not have
the unconditional right to defer settlement beyond 12
months (such as vested long service leave), the
liability is classified as current even if not expected to
be settled within the next 12 months.

Council has, however, disclosed a contingent liability
in Note 18 to reflect the possible obligation that may
arise should the Scheme require immediate payment
to correct the deficiency.

In the case of inventories that are “held for trading”,
these are also classified as current even if not
expected to be realised in the next 12 months.

Defined Contribution Plans

(aa) Taxes

Contributions to Defined Contribution Plans are
recognised as an expense as they become payable.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

The Council is exempt from both Commonwealth
Income Tax and Capital Gains Tax.

(iv) Employee Benefit On-Costs
Council has recognised at year end the aggregate
on-cost liabilities arising from employee benefits,
and in particular those on-cost liabilities that will
arise when payment of current employee benefits is
made in future periods.
These amounts include Superannuation and
Workers Compensation expenses which will be
payable upon the future payment of certain Leave
Liabilities accrued as at 30/06/15.

(y) Self insurance
Council does not self insure.

(z) Allocation between current and
non-current assets & liabilities
In the determination of whether an asset or liability is
classified as current or non-current, consideration is
given to the time when each asset or liability is
expected to be settled.

Council does however have to comply with both
Fringe Benefits Tax and Goods and Services Tax
(GST).
Goods & Services Tax (GST)
Income, expenses and assets are all recognised net
of the amount of GST, except where the amount of
GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian
Tax Office (ATO).
In these circumstances the GST is recognised as
part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part
of the revenue / expense.
Receivables and payables within the Balance Sheet
are stated inclusive of any applicable GST.
The net amount of GST recoverable from or payable
to the ATO is included as a current asset or current
liability in the Balance Sheet.
Operating cash flows within the Cash Flow
Statement are on a gross basis, ie. they are inclusive
of GST where applicable.
Investing and Financing cash flows are treated on a
net basis (where recoverable form the ATO), ie. they
are exclusive of GST. Instead, the GST component
of investing and financing activity cash flows which
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are recoverable from or payable to the ATO are
classified as operating cash flows.

AASB 15 - Revenue from contracts with
customers and associated amending standards

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net
of the amount of GST recoverable from (or payable
to) the ATO.

AASB 15 will introduce a five step process for
revenue recognition with the core principle of the new
Standard being that entities recognise revenue so as
to depict the transfer of goods or services to
customers in amounts that reflect the consideration
(that is, payment) to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

(ab) New accounting standards and
interpretations
Certain new (or amended) accounting standards and
interpretations have been published that are not
mandatory for reporting periods ending 30 June
2015.
Council has not adopted any of these standards
early.
Council’s assessment of the impact of these new
standards and interpretations is set out below.
Apart from the AASB disclosures below, there are no
other standards that are “not yet effective” which are
expected to have a material impact on Council in the
current or future reporting periods and on
foreseeable future transactions.

The changes in revenue recognition requirements in
AASB 15 may cause changes to accounting policies
relating to the timing and amount of revenue
recorded in the financial statements as well as
additional disclosures.
The full impact of AASB 15 has not yet been
ascertained or quantified.
AASB 15 will replace AASB 118 which covers
contracts for goods and services and AASB 111
which covers construction contracts.
The effective date of this standard is for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017.

Applicable to Local Government:

AASB 124 - Related Party Disclosures

AASB 9 - Financial Instruments (and associated
amending standards)

From 1 July 2016, AASB 124 Related Party
Disclosures will apply to Council.

AASB 9 replaces AASB 139 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement and has an effective
date for reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018 (and must be applied retrospectively).
The overriding impact of AASB 9 is to change the
requirements for the classification, measurement
and disclosures associated with financial assets.
Under the new requirements the four current
categories of financial assets stipulated in AASB 139
will be replaced with two measurement categories:


fair value and



amortised cost (where financial assets will only be
able to be measured at amortised cost where very
specific conditions are met).

This means that Council will be required to disclose
information about related parties and Council
transactions with those related parties.
Related parties will more than likely include the
Mayor, Councillors and certain Council staff. In
addition, the close family members of those people
and any organisations that they control or are
associated with will be classified as related parties
(and fall under the related party reporting
requirements).
AASB 2014 - 10 Sale or contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture
The amendments address an acknowledged
inconsistency between the requirements in AASB 10
and those in AASB 128 (2011), in dealing with the
sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture.
page 26

Financial Statements 2015

_

Cabonne Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2015

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The main consequence of the amendments is that a
full gain or loss is recognised when a transaction
involves a business (whether it is housed in a
subsidiary or not).

assets and liabilities acquired to be measured at fair
value.

A partial gain or loss is recognised when a
transaction involves assets that do not constitute a
business, even if these assets are housed in a
subsidiary.

None

The effective date of this standard is for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016.

Unless otherwise indicated, amounts in the financial
statements have been rounded off to the nearest
thousand dollars.

This standard will only impact Council where there
has been a sale or contribution of assets between
the entity and the associate/joint venture.

Not applicable to Local Government per se;

(ac) Rounding of amounts

(ad) Comparative Figures

AASB 2014 - 3 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards - Accounting for
Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations
[AASB 1 and AASB 11]

To ensure comparability with the current reporting
period’s figures, some comparative period line items
and amounts may have been reclassified or
individually reported for the first time within these
financial statements and/or the notes.

This Standard amends AASB 11 to provide guidance
on the accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint
operations in which the activity constitutes a
business.

(ae) Disclaimer

The amendments require:

Nothing contained within these statements may be
taken to be an admission of any liability to any
person under any circumstance.

(a) the acquirer of an interest in a joint operation in
which the activity constitutes a business, as
defined in AASB 3 Business Combinations, to
apply all of the principles on business
combinations accounting in AASB 3 and other
Australian Accounting Standards except for
those principles that conflict with the guidance
in AASB 11; and
(b) the acquirer to disclose the information required
by AASB 3 and other Australian Accounting
Standards for business combinations.
This Standard also makes an editorial correction to
AASB 11.
The effective date of this standard is for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016.
If a joint operation is acquired during the reporting
period, then this standard clarifies the accounting for
the acquisition to be in accordance with AASB 3, i.e.
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$ '000

Income, Expenses and Assets have been directly attributed to the following Functions / Activities.
Details of these Functions/Activities are provided in Note 2(b).

Functions/Activities

Income from Continuing
Operations
Original

Governance
Administration
Public Order & Safety
Health
Environment
Community Services & Education
Housing & Community Amenities
Water Supplies
Sewerage Services
Recreation & Culture
Mining, Manufacturing & Construction
Transport & Communication
Economic Affairs

Total Functions & Activities

Expenses from Continuing
Operations

Operating Result from
Continuing Operations

Original

Grants included in
Income from
Continuing
Operations

Total Assets held
(Current &
Non-current)

Original

Budget

Actual

Actual

Budget

Actual

Actual

Budget

Actual

Actual

Actual

Actual

Actual

2015

2015

2014

2015

2015

2014

2015

2015

2014

2015

2014

2015

2014

159
337
13
90
3,775
1,627
381
983
2,367
95
1,579
6,796
441

194
479
223
110
3,050
1,637
433
995
3,106
643
1,746
10,011
432

130
856
283
97
3,246
1,669
318
1,036
4,974
103
2,044
11,464
522

1,290
3,624
718
487
3,209
1,838
654
1,078
1,621
2,304
1,368
13,861
980

955
2,673
795
581
4,669
2,069
688
1,092
2,133
2,888
1,855
12,436
1,388

583
4,551
722
458
3,117
1,941
698
1,122
1,852
2,092
1,651
12,588
910

(1,131)
(3,287)
(705)
(397)
566
(211)
(273)
(95)
746
(2,209)
211
(7,065)
(539)

(761)
(2,194)
(572)
(471)
(1,619)
(432)
(255)
(97)
973
(2,245)
(109)
(2,425)
(956)

(453)
(3,695)
(439)
(361)
129
(272)
(380)
(86)
3,122
(1,989)
393
(1,124)
(388)

1,414
729
40
12
1,494
570
984
-

3,981
6
1,245
697
63
1,251
-

37,455
17,196
3,993
3,695
54,937
4,220
2,296
28,987
45,082
28,565
2,345
323,952
2,542

38,065
17,623
4,176
3,102
2,213
3,615
3,817
28,768
43,684
28,249
2,451
333,136
3,886

18,643

23,059

26,742

33,032

34,222

32,285

(14,389)

(11,163)

(5,543)

5,243

7,243

555,265

512,785

14,939

227
14,927

590
12,830

124

-

-

14,815

227
14,927

590
12,830

4,584

2,314

19,862
-

19,635
-

33,582

38,213

40,162

33,156

34,222

32,285

426

3,991

7,877

9,827

9,557

575,127

532,420

Actual

Share of gains/(losses) in Associates &
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Note 2(b). Council Functions / Activities - Component Descriptions
Details relating to the Council's functions / activities as reported in Note 2(a) are as follows:
GOVERNANCE
Costs relating to the Council’s role as a component of democratic government, including elections, members’
fees and expenses, subscriptions to local authority associations, meetings of council and policy making
committees, area representation and public disclosure and compliance.
ADMINISTRATION
Corporate Support and Other Support Services (not otherwise attributed to the listed functions / activities).
PUBLIC ORDER & SAFETY
Fire protection, animal control, beach control, enforcement of local government regulations, emergency
services, other.
HEALTH
Inspection, immunisations, food control, health centres, other, administration.
ENVIRONMENT
Noxious plants and insect/vermin control, other environmental protection, solid waste management, street
cleaning, drainage, stormwater management.
COMMUNITY SERVICES & EDUCATION
Administration, family day care, child care, youth services, other family and children, aged and disabled, migrant
services, Aboriginal services, other community services, education.
HOUSING & COMMUNITY AMENITIES
Housing, town planning, street lighting, other sanitation and garbage, public cemeteries, public conveniences,
WATER SUPPLIES
SEWERAGE SERVICES
RECREATION & CULTURE
Public libraries, museums, art galleries, community centres, public halls, other cultural services, swimming
pools, sporting grounds, parks and gardens (lakes), other sport and recreation.
MINING, MANUFACTURING & CONSTRUCTION
Building control, abattoirs, quarries & pits, other.
TRANSPORT & COMMUNICATION
Urban roads, sealed rural roads, unsealed rural roads, bridges, footpaths, aerodromes, parking areas, bus
shelters and services, water transport, RMS works, other.
ECONOMIC AFFAIRS
Camping areas, caravan parks, tourism and area promotion, industrial development promotion, saleyards and
markets, real estate development, commercial nurseries, other business undertakings.
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Note 3. Income from Continuing Operations
$ '000

Notes

Actual
2015

Actual
2014

2,645
4,680
1,669
218
9,212

2,489
4,573
1,843
211
9,116

1,007
362
1,392
215
7
74
3,057

929
312
1,325
209
24
74
2,873

12,269

11,989

(a) Rates & Annual Charges
Ordinary Rates
Residential
Farmland
Mining
Business
Total Ordinary Rates
Special Rates
Nil
Annual Charges (pursuant to s.496, s.496A, s.496B, s.501 & s.611)
Domestic Waste Management Services
Water Supply Services
Sewerage Services
Waste Management Services (non-domestic)
Section 611 Charges
Stormwater Levy
Total Annual Charges

TOTAL RATES & ANNUAL CHARGES

Council has used 2011 year valuations provided by the NSW Valuer General in calculating its rates.
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Note 3. Income from Continuing Operations (continued)
$ '000

Notes

Actual
2015

Actual
2014

507
50
557

550
43
593

328
261
319
22
105
1,035

338
289
376
22
108
1,133

124
75
521
99
1,639
5,705
7
9
8,179

116
75
503
110
1,848
5,737
8
1
8,398

9,771

10,124

(b) User Charges & Fees
Specific User Charges (per s.502 - Specific "actual use" charges)
Water Supply Services
Sewerage Services
Total User Charges
Other User Charges & Fees
(i) Fees & Charges - Statutory & Regulatory Functions (per s.608)

Discretionary Fees - Other
Planning & Building Regulation
Private Works - Section 67
Section 603 Certificates
Waste Management
Total Fees & Charges - Statutory/Regulatory
(ii) Fees & Charges - Other (incl. General User Charges (per s.608)

Caravan Park
Cemeteries
Child Care
Lease Rentals
Quarry Revenues
RMS (formerly RTA) Charges (State Roads not controlled by Council)
Trade Waste
Other
Total Fees & Charges - Other

TOTAL USER CHARGES & FEES
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Note 3. Income from Continuing Operations (continued)
$ '000

Notes

Actual
2015

Actual
2014

84
1,375
55

89
1,452
42

(c) Interest & Investment Revenue (incl. losses)
Interest & Dividends
- Interest on Overdue Rates & Annual Charges (incl. Special Purpose Rates)
- Interest earned on Investments (interest & coupon payment income)
- Interest & Dividend Income (Other)
Fair Value Adjustments
- Fair Valuation movements in Investments (at FV or Held for Trading)

TOTAL INTEREST & INVESTMENT REVENUE

(100)

77

1,414

1,660

Unrestricted Investments/Financial Assets:
Overdue Rates & Annual Charges (General Fund)
General Council Cash & Investments

54
1,077

60
1,340

Restricted Investments/Funds - External:
Development Contributions
- Section 94
Water Fund Operations
Sewerage Fund Operations
Domestic Waste Management operations
Other Externally Restricted Assets
Total Interest & Investment Revenue Recognised

13
95
80
62
33
1,414

16
113
64
34
33
1,660

11
151
127
77
51
112
13

13
139
96
23
46
67
113
43

Interest Revenue is attributable to:

(d) Other Revenues
Legal Fees Recovery - Rates & Charges (Extra Charges)
Commissions & Agency Fees
Diesel Rebate
Gravel Pit Restoration
Insurance Claim Recoveries
Rebates Received
Recycling Income (non domestic)
Other

TOTAL OTHER REVENUE

542

540
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Note 3. Income from Continuing Operations (continued)
$ '000

2015
Operating

2014
Operating

2015
Capital

2014
Capital

2,500
1,985
99
4,584

1,240
976
98
2,314

-

-

(e) Grants
General Purpose (Untied)
Financial Assistance - General Component
Financial Assistance - Local Roads Component
Pensioners' Rates Subsidies - General Component
Total General Purpose
1

1
1

The Financial Assistance Grant for the comparative 13/14 year reflects a one off timing difference (reduction). This grant ceased being
paid in advance in the 13/14 year by up to 50% as had occurred in previous years.

Specific Purpose
Pensioners' Rates Subsidies:
- Water
- Sewerage
- Domestic Waste Management
Sewerage Services
Administration
Community Services
Economic Affairs
Environment
Housing & Community Amenities
LIRS Subsidy
Recreation & Culture
Street Lighting
Transport & Communication
Transport & Communication - Roads to Recovery
Total Specific Purpose

Total Grants

Grant Revenue is attributable to:

- Commonwealth Funding
- State Funding

12
26
40
729
1,067
40
94
67
38
936
3,049
7,633

13
26
40
4
711
6
1,529
35
97
71
38
89
965
3,624
5,938

1,374
308
503
9
2,194
2,194

3,329
56
234
3,619
3,619

1,348
6,285
7,633

3,519
2,419
5,938

2,194
2,194

3,619
3,619
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Note 3. Income from Continuing Operations (continued)
$ '000

2015
Operating

2014
Operating

2015
Capital

2014
Capital

70
70

52
52

-

-

5
139
4
57
178
72
3
11
1,492
707
2,668

9
131
8
55
112
66
4
11
1,465
474
2,335

30
203
38
700
64
380
10
1,425

75
256
73
2,415
35
2,854

(f) Contributions
Developer Contributions:
(s93 & s94 - EP&A Act, s64 of the LGA):

S 94 - Contributions towards amenities/services
17
Total Developer Contributions
Other Contributions:
Administration
Community Services
Economic Affairs
Environment
Governance
Health
Housing & Community Amenities
Public Order & Safety
Recreation & Culture
RMS Contributions (Regional Roads, Block Grant)
Sewerage (excl. Section 64 contributions)
Transport & Communication
Water Supplies (excl. Section 64 contributions)
Total Other Contributions

Total Contributions

2,738

2,387

1,425

2,854

10,371

8,325

3,619

6,473

Actual
2015

Actual
2014

3,179

5,069

Net Increase (Decrease) in Restricted Assets during the Period

1,518
(2,267)
(749)

1,104
(2,994)
(1,890)

Unexpended and held as Restricted Assets

2,430

3,179

793
712
925
2,430

1,216
720
1,243
3,179

TOTAL GRANTS & CONTRIBUTIONS

$ '000

(g) Restrictions relating to Grants and Contributions
Certain grants & contributions are obtained by Council on condition
that they be spent in a specified manner:
Unexpended at the Close of the Previous Reporting Period
add: Grants & contributions recognised in the current period but not yet spent:
less: Grants & contributions recognised in a previous reporting period now spent:

Comprising:
- Specific Purpose Unexpended Grants
- Developer Contributions
- Other Contributions
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Note 4. Expenses from Continuing Operations
$ '000

Notes

Actual
2015

Actual
2014

9,242
425
1,626
1,220
164
79
9
52
187
60
13,064
(1,105)

8,807
482
1,088
1,127
726
86
52
188
99
12,655
(851)

(a) Employee Benefits & On-Costs
Salaries and Wages
Travelling
Employee Leave Entitlements (ELE)
Superannuation
Workers' Compensation Insurance
Fringe Benefit Tax (FBT)
Pre Employment Medicals
Protective Clothing
Training Costs (other than Salaries & Wages)
Other
Total Employee Costs
less: Capitalised Costs

TOTAL EMPLOYEE COSTS EXPENSED

Number of "Equivalent Full Time" Employees at year end

11,959

11,804

166

170

170
170

180
1
181

73
73

67
67

(b) Borrowing Costs
(i) Interest Bearing Liability Costs
Interest on Loans
Interest on Advances
Total Interest Bearing Liability Costs Expensed
(ii) Other Borrowing Costs
Discount adjustments relating to movements in Provisions (other than ELE)
- Remediation Liabilities
Total Other Borrowing Costs

TOTAL BORROWING COSTS EXPENSED

26

243

248
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Note 4. Expenses from Continuing Operations (continued)
$ '000

Notes

Actual
2015

Actual
2014

2,964
208
70
92
3
285
2,007
64
34

3,188
105
67
96
3
194
927
81
37

4
45

10
26

(c) Materials & Contracts
Raw Materials & Consumables
Contractor & Consultancy Costs
- Consultancy Costs
- Caretaker Fees
- Cleaning
- Internal Auditor
- Licence Agreements
- Service Contracts
- Valuation Fees
Auditors Remuneration (1)
Legal Expenses:
- Legal Expenses: Planning & Development
- Legal Expenses: Other
Operating Leases:
- Operating Lease Rentals: Minimum Lease Payment (2)

TOTAL MATERIALS & CONTRACTS

2

5

5,778

4,739

- Audit & review of financial statements: Council's Auditor
Remuneration for audit and other assurance services

34
34

37
37

Total Auditor Remuneration

34

37

2
2

4
1
5

1. Auditor Remuneration
During the year, the following fees were incurred for services provided by
the Council's Auditor (& the Auditors of other Consolidated Entities):
Audit and Other Assurance Services

2. Operating Lease Payments are attributable to:

Computers
Other
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Note 4. Expenses from Continuing Operations (continued)
Impairment Costs
$ '000

Notes

Depreciation/Amortisation

Actual
2015

Actual
2014

Actual
2015

Actual
2014

-

-

2,204
203
39
139
95
1,376
256

2,398
241
40
130
42
660
249

-

-

3,994
367
58
95
421
544
56
14
75

3,992
367
56
95
404
549
55
52
51

-

-

9,936

9,381

(d) Depreciation, Amortisation & Impairment
Plant and Equipment
Office Equipment
Furniture & Fittings
Land Improvements (depreciable)
Buildings - Non Specialised
Buildings - Specialised
Other Structures
Infrastructure:
- Roads
- Bridges
- Footpaths
- Stormwater Drainage
- Water Supply Network
- Sewerage Network
- Swimming Pools
Asset Reinstatement Costs
Intangible Assets

9 & 26

TOTAL DEPRECIATION &
IMPAIRMENT COSTS EXPENSED

25
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Note 4. Expenses from Continuing Operations (continued)
$ '000

Notes

Actual
2015

Actual
2014

70
15
15
1,406
201
24
132
49
19
204
677
882
649
147
30
113
352
124
15
22
128
45
90
28
35
517

88
15
125
1,390
270
24
119
50
17
215
708
1,054
580
143
35
132
243
142
18
17
126
55
149
33
42
323

(e) Other Expenses
Other Expenses for the year include the following:
Advertising
Bad & Doubtful Debts
Commissions Paid
Contributions/Levies to Other Levels of Government
- Emergency Services Levy (includes FRNSW, SES, and RFS Levies)
Councillor Expenses - Mayoral Fee
Councillor Expenses - Councillors' Fees
Councillors' Expenses (incl. Mayor) - Other (excluding fees above)
Donations, Contributions & Assistance to other organisations (Section 356)
- Donations, Contributions & Assistance to Community Groups
Electricity & Heating
External Hire
Insurance
Pensioner Rates Write Off
Postage
Printing & Stationery
Rates Expense
Registrations
Rent Expense
Service Subsidy Expense
Street Lighting
Subscriptions & Publications
Telephone & Communications
Volunteer Expenses
Water / Sewer Sampling
Other

TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES

5,989

6,113
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Note 5. Gains or Losses from the Disposal of Assets
$ '000

Property (excl. Investment Property)

Proceeds from Disposal - Property
less: Carrying Amount of Property Assets Sold / Written Off
Net Gain/(Loss) on Disposal

Plant & Equipment

Proceeds from Disposal - Plant & Equipment
less: Carrying Amount of P&E Assets Sold / Written Off
Net Gain/(Loss) on Disposal

Real Estate Assets Held For Sale

Proceeds from Disposal - Real Estate Assets
less: Carrying Amount of Real Estate Assets Sold / Written Off
Net Gain/(Loss) on Disposal

Financial Assets*

Proceeds from Disposal / Redemptions / Maturities - Financial Assets
less: Carrying Amount of Financial Assets Sold / Redeemed / Matured
Net Gain/(Loss) on Disposal

NET GAIN/(LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF ASSETS

Notes

Actual
2015

Actual
2014

725
(1,026)
(301)

-

659
(636)
23

784
(358)
426

105
(144)
(39)

38
(3)
35

29,500
(29,500)
-

18,569
(18,569)
-

(317)

461
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Note 6a. - Cash Assets and Note 6b. - Investments

$ '000

Notes

Cash & Cash Equivalents (Note 6a)

Cash on Hand and at Bank
Cash-Equivalent Assets 1
- Deposits at Call
- Short Term Deposits
Total Cash & Cash Equivalents

Investments (Note 6b)

- Long Term Deposits
- CDO's
Total Investments

TOTAL CASH ASSETS, CASH
EQUIVALENTS & INVESTMENTS

1

2015

2015

2014

2014

Actual
Current

Actual
Non Current

Actual
Current

Actual
Non Current

830

-

563

-

2,264
17,500
20,594

-

4,906
4,500
9,969

-

20,500
20,500

-

29,500
100
29,600

-

41,094

-

39,569

-

20,594

-

9,969

-

20,500
20,500

-

100
29,500
29,600

-

Those Investments where time to maturity (from date of purchase) is < 3 mths.

Cash, Cash Equivalents & Investments were
classified at year end in accordance with
AASB 139 as follows:
Cash & Cash Equivalents
a. "At Fair Value through the Profit & Loss"
Investments
a. "At Fair Value through the Profit & Loss"
- "Held for Trading"

6(b-i)

b. "Held to Maturity"
c. "Loans & Receivables"

6(b-iii)

Investments

6(b-ii)

Refer to Note 27 - Fair Value Measurement for information regarding the fair value of investments held.
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Note 6b. Investments (continued)

$ '000

Note 6(b-i)
Reconciliation of Investments classified as
"At Fair Value through the Profit & Loss"
Balance at the Beginning of the Year
Revaluations (through the Income Statement)
Disposals (sales & redemptions)
Balance at End of Year
Comprising:
- CDO's

Total

2015

2015

2014

2014

Actual
Current

Actual
Non Current

Actual
Current

Actual
Non Current

100
(100)
-

-

92
77
(69)
100

-

-

100
100

-

-

-

-

Note 6(b-ii)
Reconciliation of Investments
classified as "Held to Maturity"
Comprising:
- Long Term Deposits
- Other Long Term Financial Assets
Total

20,500
(20,500)
-

-

Note 6(b-iii)
Reconciliation of Investments
classified as "Loans & Receivables"
Balance at the Beginning of the Year
Additions
Disposals (sales & redemptions)
Balance at End of Year

29,500
20,500
(29,500)
20,500

-

18,500
29,500
(18,500)
29,500

-

20,500
20,500

-

29,500
29,500

-

Comprising:
- Long Term Deposits

Total
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Note 6c. Restricted Cash, Cash Equivalents & Investments - Details

$ '000

Total Cash, Cash Equivalents
and Investments
attributable to:

External Restrictions (refer below)
Internal Restrictions (refer below)
Unrestricted

2015
$ '000

2015

2015

2014

2014

Actual
Current

Actual
Non Current

Actual
Current

Actual
Non Current

41,094

-

39,569

-

8,339
29,191
3,564
41,094

-

9,368
25,735
4,466
39,569

-

Opening
Balance

Transfers to
Restrictions

720
1,243
1,205
11
3,093
2,251
845
9,368
9,368

83
809
625
400
422
2,339
2,339

Transfers from
Restrictions

Closing
Balance

Details of Restrictions
External Restrictions - Included in Liabilities
Nil
External Restrictions - Other
Developer Contributions - General
RMS (formerly RTA) Contributions
Specific Purpose Unexpended Grants

(D)
(E)
(F)
Specific Purpose Unexpended Grants-Sewer Fund (F)
Water Supplies
(G)
Sewerage Services
(G)
Domestic Waste Management
(G)
External Restrictions - Other
Total External Restrictions

(91)
(1,127)
(1,048)
(500)
(501)
(101)
(3,368)
(3,368)

712
925
782
11
2,993
2,172
744
8,339
8,339

D Development contributions which are not yet expended for the provision of services and amenities in accordance

with contributions plans (refer Note 17).
E RMS Contributions which are not yet expended for the provision of services and amenities in accordance with
those contributions.
F Grants which are not yet expended for the purposes for which the grants were obtained. (refer Note 1)
G Water, Sewerage, Domestic Waste Management (DWM) & other Special Rates/Levies/Charges are externally
restricted assets and must be applied for the purposes for which they were raised.
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Note 6c. Restricted Cash, Cash Equivalents & Investments - Details (continued)
2015
$ '000

Internal Restrictions
Plant & Vehicle Replacement
Infrastructure Replacement
Employees Leave Entitlement
Cadia Contributions
Capital Works
Community Services
Environment
Housing
Land Development
Limestone Quarry
Office Equipment
Recreation & Culture
Roadworks
Sewerage
Waste Management
Other
Total Internal Restrictions
TOTAL RESTRICTIONS

Opening
Balance

Transfers to
Restrictions

Transfers from
Restrictions

Closing
Balance

2,998
1,478
1,963
1,519
9,197
5
480
157
255
1,617
1,749
183
2,477
15
1,428
214
25,735

7,101
207
99
146
3,229
578
7
54
156
1,054
2
889
451
13,973

(4,471)
(17)
(2,933)
(354)
(6)
(80)
(404)
(3)
(1,438)
(680)
(131)
(10,517)

5,628
1,685
2,062
1,648
9,493
5
126
157
827
1,544
1,399
336
2,093
17
1,637
534
29,191

35,103

16,312

(13,885)

37,530
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Note 7. Receivables
$ '000

Notes

Purpose
Rates & Annual Charges
Interest & Extra Charges
User Charges & Fees
Accrued Revenues
- Interest on Investments
- Other Income Accruals
Amounts due from Other Councils
Deferred Debtors
Government Grants & Subsidies
Loans to Non Profit Organisations
NSW Rural Fire Service
Quarry Debtors
Council Private Works
Other Debtors
Total
less: Provision for Impairment

Rates & Annual Charges
User Charges & Fees
Total Provision for Impairment - Receivables

TOTAL NET RECEIVABLES

2015
Current
Non Current

2014
Current
Non Current

477
47
1,340

50
91
310

536
36
1,351

166
103
92

227
350
23
133
258
190
550
322
3,917

298
749

338
1,346
80
12
347
100
281
260
4,687

521
882

(158)
(158)

(172)
(16)
(188)

(370)
(370)

(172)
(16)
(188)

3,759

561

4,317

694

13
561

7
20

13
585

-

26
1,170
1,770

111
7
145

341
25
978
1,942

-

1,989

416

2,375

694

Externally Restricted Receivables
Water Supply

- Rates & Availability Charges
- Other

Sewerage Services

- Specific Purpose Grants
- Rates & Availability Charges
- Other
Total External Restrictions
Internally Restricted Receivables
Nil
Unrestricted Receivables
TOTAL NET RECEIVABLES

3,759

561

4,317

694

Notes on Debtors above:

(i) Rates & Annual Charges Outstanding are secured against the property.
(ii) Doubtful Rates Debtors are provided for where the value of the property is less than the debt outstanding.
An allowance for other doubtful debts is made when there is objective evidence that a receivable is impaired.
(iii) Interest was charged on overdue rates & charges at 8.50% (2014 9.00%).
Generally all other receivables are non interest bearing.
(iv) Please refer to Note 15 for issues concerning Credit Risk and Fair Value disclosures.
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Note 8. Inventories & Other Assets
$ '000

Notes

Inventories
Real Estate for resale (refer below)
Stores & Materials
Total Inventories
Other Assets
Prepayments
Shares in Unlisted Companies - StateCover
Total Other Assets

TOTAL INVENTORIES / OTHER ASSETS

2015
Current
Non Current

2014
Current
Non Current

680
350
1,030

371
371

785
473
1,258

410
410

103
103

282
282

12
12

282
282

1,133

653

1,270

692

639
41
680

156
215
371

702
83
785

195
215
410

343
337
680
680

172
199
371
371

355
430
785
785

366
44
410
410

785
(144)
39
680

410
(39)
371

915
19
122
(3)
(248)
(20)
785

162
248
410

2015

2014

900
900

900
900

Externally Restricted Assets
There are no restrictions applicable to the above assets.
Other Disclosures
(a) Details for Real Estate Development
Residential
Industrial/Commercial
Other Properties
Total Real Estate for Resale

(Valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value)

Represented by:

Acquisition Costs
Development Costs
Borrowing Costs
Total Costs
Total Real Estate for Resale

Movements:
Real Estate assets at beginning of the year

- Purchases and other costs
- Transfers in from (out to) Note 9
- WDV of Sales (exp)
- Transfer between Current/Non Current
- Other
Total Real Estate for Resale

5

(b) Current Assets not anticipated to be settled within the next 12 months
The following Inventories & Other Assets, even though classified
as current are not expected to be recovered in the next 12 months;
Real Estate for Resale

(c) Inventory Write Downs
There were no amounts recognised as an expense relating to the write down of Inventory balances
held during the year.
Refer to Note 27 - Fair Value Measurement for information regarding the fair value of other assets held.
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Note 9a. Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
Asset Movements during the Reporting Period

as at 30/6/2014

$ '000
Capital Work in Progress
Plant & Equipment
Office Equipment
Furniture & Fittings

At

At

Cost

Fair Value

Accumulated
Dep'n

Carrying

Impairment

Asset
Additions

WDV
of Asset
Disposals

Value

Revaluation Revaluation
Depreciation Decrements Increments
Expense
to Equity
to Equity
(ARR)
(ARR)

as at 30/6/2015
At

At

Cost

Fair Value

Accumulated
Dep'n

Carrying

Impairment

Value

7,372
-

39,241
2,269
840

24,629
1,711
587

-

7,372
14,612
558
253

979
2,230
89
4

(635)
-

(2,204)
(203)
(39)

-

-

8,351
-

39,555
2,352
844

25,552
1,908
626

-

8,351
14,003
444
218

-

7,273
10,451
1,071
4,490
4,282
57,488
8,902

2,257
2,455
28,504
3,963

-

7,273
10,451
1,071
2,233
1,827
28,984
4,939

236
406
598
199

(267)
(23)
(65)
(672)
-

(139)
(95)
(1,376)
(256)

-

-

-

7,242
10,451
1,071
4,869
4,067
57,380
9,102

2,392
2,400
29,846
4,220

-

7,242
10,451
1,071
2,477
1,667
27,534
4,882

-

204,713
54,411
5,112
166,435
7,289
43,429
37,744
4,192

88,407
13,282
1,308
2,388
20,354
9,554
1,733

-

116,306
41,129
3,804
166,435
4,901
23,075
28,190
2,459

6,971
1,152
237
253
434
474
18

-

(3,994)
(367)
(58)
(95)
(421)
(544)
(56)

6,578
3,146
95
46,721
346
422
-

-

176,402
55,798
5,850
148,410
62,668
44,521
38,790
4,210

50,541
10,738
1,772
11,141
21,087
10,248
1,789

-

125,861
45,060
4,078
148,410
51,527
23,434
28,542
2,421

-

288
657

279
498

-

9
159

-

-

(1)
(13)

-

-

288
657

280
511

-

8
146

7,372

660,577

201,909

-

466,040

14,280

57,308

8,351

674,527

175,051

-

507,827

Land:

- Operational Land
- Community Land
Land Improvements - non depreciable
Land Improvements - depreciable
Buildings - Non Specialised
Buildings - Specialised
Other Structures
Infrastructure:

-

Roads
Bridges
Footpaths
Bulk Earthworks (non-depreciable)
Stormwater Drainage
Water Supply Network
Sewerage Network
Swimming Pools

(18,278)
-

Reinstatement, Rehabilitation & Restoration
Assets (refer Note 26):

- Tip Assets
- Quarry Assets

TOTAL INFRASTRUCTURE,
PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIP.

Refer to Note 27 - Fair Value Measurement for information regarding the fair value of other Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment.

(9,861)

(18,278)
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Note 9b. Externally Restricted Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
$ '000
Class of Asset

Actual

Actual

2015

2014

Carrying
Value
Fair Value Impairm't

At

At

Cost

A/Dep &

At

At

Cost

A/Dep &

Fair Value Impairm't

Carrying
Value

Water Supply
Plant & Equipment
Land

-

3,261

2,441

820

-

3,248

2,382

866

- Operational Land

-

767

-

-

767

-

- Community Land

-

269

-

-

268

-

- Improvements - depreciable

-

28

6

-

28

5

-

126

22

-

117

19

-

239

72

-

239

66

-

44,034

20,791

-

42,950

20,068

-

48,724

23,332

767
269
22
104
167
23,243
25,392

-

47,617

22,540

767
268
23
98
173
22,882
25,077

-

8,350

-

-

7,372

-

-

6,016

4,067

8,350
1,949

-

5,991

3,936

- Operational Land

-

755

-

755

-

-

67

-

-

67

-

- Improvements non-depreciable

-

999

-

-

999

-

- Improvements - depreciable

-

977

734

-

977

685

-

463

138

-

463

128

-

15

3

-

15

2

-

38,792

10,248

-

37,744

9,554

-

56,434

15,190

755
67
999
243
325
12
28,544
41,244

-

- Community Land

-

54,383

14,305

-

183

139

183

124

52

20

44
32

-

-

-

52

10

- Operational Land

-

203

-

203

-

-

435

-

-

435

-

- Improvements - depreciable

-

397

83

-

322

69

-

484

202

-

484

181

-

1,754

444

203
435
314
282
1,310

-

- Community Land

-

1,679

384

203
435
253
303
1,295

-

106,912

38,966

67,946

-

103,679

37,229

66,450

Buildings
Other Structures
Infrastructure
Total Water Supply
Sewerage Services
WIP
Plant & Equipment
Land

Buildings
Other Structures
Infrastructure
Total Sewerage Services
Domestic Waste Management
Plant & Equipment
Office Equipment
Land

Other Structures
Total DWM
TOTAL RESTRICTED I,PP&E

7,372
2,055
755
67
999
292
335
13
28,190
40,078
59
42

Note 9c. Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment - Current Year Impairments
$ '000

Notes

Actual
2015

Actual
2014

-

(48)
(48)

-

(48)

Impairment Losses recognised direct to Equity (ARR):
Moorbel Rural Fire Shed destroyed by fire.

Total Impairment Losses

IMPAIRMENT of ASSETS - DIRECT to EQUITY (ARR)

20 (ii)
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Note 10a. Payables, Borrowings & Provisions
$ '000

Notes

Payables

2015
Current
Non Current

2014
Current
Non Current

1,586
243

-

1,317
202

-

6
24
126
501
49
2,535

38
38

7
261
443
577
95
49
2,951

26
26

189
3
192

2,518
3
2,521

177
3
180

2,707
5
2,712

1,029
2,523

-

994
2,362

-

3,552

-

3,356

-

49
3,601

1,602
1,602

49
3,405

1,529
1,529

Total Payables, Borrowings & Provisions

6,328

4,161

6,536

4,267

(i) Liabilities relating to Restricted Assets

2015
Current
Non Current

Goods & Services - operating expenditure
Payments Received In Advance
Accrued Expenses:
- Borrowings
- Salaries & Wages
- Other Expenditure Accruals
Security Bonds, Deposits & Retentions
ATO - Net GST Payable
Other
Total Payables

Borrowings

Loans - Secured 1
Government Advances
Total Borrowings

Provisions
Employee Benefits:

Annual Leave
Long Service Leave
Sub Total - Aggregate Employee Benefits

Asset Remediation/Restoration (Future Works)

26

Other
Total Provisions

2014
Current
Non Current

Externally Restricted Assets

Water
Sewer
Liabilities relating to externally restricted assets

57
273
330

2,518
2,518

84
422
506

2,707
2,707

330
5,998

2,518
1,643

506
6,030

2,707
1,560

Internally Restricted Assets

Nil
Total Liabilities relating to restricted assets
Total Liabilities relating to Unrestricted Assets
TOTAL PAYABLES, BORROWINGS & PROVISIONS
1.

6,328

4,161

6,536

4,267

Loans are secured over the General Rating Income of Council
Disclosures on Liability Interest Rate Risk Exposures, Fair Value Disclosures & Security can be found in Note 15.
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Note 10a. Payables, Borrowings & Provisions (continued)
$ '000

Actual
2015

Actual
2014

2,523
2,523

2,362
2,362

(ii) Current Liabilities not anticipated to be settled within the next 12 months
The following Liabilities, even though classified as current, are not expected
to be settled in the next 12 months.
Provisions - Employees Benefits

Note 10b. Description of and movements in Provisions
2014

Class of Provision
Annual Leave
Long Service Leave
Asset Remediation
Other

TOTAL

Opening
Balance
as at 1/7/14

994
2,362
1,529
49
4,934

2015
Additional Decrease due to
Provisions
Payments

583
206
73
862

(752)
(257)
(1,009)

Remeasurement
effects due to
Discounting

204
212
416

Unused
amounts
reversed

Closing
Balance
as at 30/6/15

-

1,029
2,523
1,602
49
5,203

a. Employees Leave Entitlements & On-Costs represents those benefits accrued and payable and an estimate of those
that will become payable in the future as a result of past service.
b. Asset Remediation, Reinstatement & Restoration Provisions represent the Present Value estimate of future costs
Council will incur in order to remove, restore & remediate assets &/or activities as a result of past operations.
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Note 11. Statement of Cash Flows - Additional Information
$ '000

Notes

Actual
2015

Actual
2014

20,594
20,594

9,969
9,969

3,991

7,877

9,936
317
(203)

9,381
(461)
(256)

100
73
(227)

(77)
67
(590)

691
(212)
123
(91)
269
(1)
(554)
(118)
196
-

82
(12)
(136)
2
220
(1)
161
327
(240)
49

(a) Reconciliation of Cash Assets
Total Cash & Cash Equivalent Assets
Less Bank Overdraft
BALANCE as per the STATEMENT of CASH FLOWS

6a
10

(b) Reconciliation of Net Operating Result
to Cash provided from Operating Activities
Net Operating Result from Income Statement
Adjust for non cash items:

Depreciation & Amortisation
Net Losses/(Gains) on Disposal of Assets
Non Cash Capital Grants and Contributions
Losses/(Gains) recognised on Fair Value Re-measurements through the P&L:
- Investments classified as "At Fair Value" or "Held for Trading"
Unwinding of Discount Rates on Reinstatement Provisions
Share of Net (Profits) or Losses of Associates/Joint Ventures
+/- Movement in Operating Assets and Liabilities & Other Cash Items:

Decrease/(Increase) in Receivables
Increase/(Decrease) in Provision for Doubtful Debts
Decrease/(Increase) in Inventories
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Assets
Increase/(Decrease) in Payables
Increase/(Decrease) in accrued Interest Payable
Increase/(Decrease) in other accrued Expenses Payable
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities
Increase/(Decrease) in Employee Leave Entitlements
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Provisions
NET CASH PROVIDED FROM/(USED IN)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES from the STATEMENT of CASH FLOWS

14,290

16,393
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Note 11. Statement of Cash Flows - Additional Information (continued)
$ '000

Notes

Actual
2015

Actual
2014

203
203

256
256

450
55
505

450
25
475

6
6

4
4

(c) Non-Cash Investing & Financing Activities
Bushfire Grants
Total Non-Cash Investing & Financing Activities

(d) Financing Arrangements
(i) Unrestricted access was available at balance date to the
following lines of credit:
Bank Overdraft Facilities (1)
Credit Cards / Purchase Cards
Total Financing Arrangements
Amounts utilised as at Balance Date:
- Credit Cards / Purchase Cards
Total Financing Arrangements Utilised
1. The Bank overdraft facility may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the bank without notice.
Interest rates on overdrafts are Interest Rates on Loans & Other Payables are disclosed in Note 15.

(ii) Secured Loan Liabilities
Loans are secured by a mortgage over future years Rate Revenue only.
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Note 12. Commitments for Expenditure
$ '000

Notes

Actual
2015

Actual
2014

69
77
294
99
16
555

10
570
17
303
166
45
1,111

555
555

1,111
1,111

12
166
377
555

100
320
691
1,111

(a) Capital Commitments (exclusive of GST)
Capital expenditure committed for at the reporting date but not
recognised in the financial statements as liabilities:
Property, Plant & Equipment
Buildings
Plant & Equipment
Sewer
Water
Roads Bridges & Footpaths
Land Improvemnts
Other Structures
Other
Total Commitments
These expenditures are payable as follows:

Within the next year
Total Payable
Sources for Funding of Capital Commitments:

Unrestricted General Funds
Unexpended Grants
Externally Restricted Reserves
Internally Restricted Reserves
Total Sources of Funding

(b) Finance Lease Commitments
Nil

(c) Operating Lease Commitments (Non Cancellable)
Nil

(d) Investment Property Commitments
Nil
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Note 13a(i). Statement of Performance Measurement - Indicators (Consolidated)
Amounts
2015

$ '000

Indicator
2015

Prior Periods
2014
2013

Local Government Industry Indicators - Consolidated
1. Operating Performance Ratio

Total continuing operating revenue (1)

(excl. Capital Grants & Contributions) - Operating Expenses

Total continuing operating revenue (1)

562
34,467

1.63%

0.85%

6.54%

24,096
38,086

63.27%

62.09%

65.50%

34,977
3,475

10.07x

8.98

10.37

10,741
422

25.45x

23.70

44.71

493
13,033

3.78%

4.81%

14.50%

41,094
2,227

18.45
mths

18.60

17.78

(excl. Capital Grants & Contributions)

2. Own Source Operating Revenue Ratio

Total continuing operating revenue (1)
(excl. ALL Grants & Contributions)

Total continuing operating revenue

(1)

3. Unrestricted Current Ratio

Current Assets less all External Restrictions (2)
Current Liabilities less Specific Purpose Liabilities

(3, 4)

4. Debt Service Cover Ratio

Operating Result (1) before capital excluding interest
and depreciation / impairment / amortisation
Principal Repayments (from the Statement of Cash Flows)
+ Borrowing Costs (from the Income Statement)

5. Rates, Annual Charges, Interest &
Extra Charges Outstanding Percentage
Rates, Annual and Extra Charges Outstanding
Rates, Annual and Extra Charges Collectible

6. Cash Expense Cover Ratio
Current Year's Cash and Cash Equivalents
+ All Term Deposits
Payments from cash flow of operating and

x12

financing activities
Notes
(1)

Excludes fair value adjustments and reversal of revaluation decrements,
net gain/(loss) on sale of assets and the net share of interests in joint ventures & associates.

(2)

Refer Notes 6-8 inclusive.
Also excludes any real estate & land for resale not expected to be sold in the next 12 months

(3)

Refer to Note 10(a).

(4)

Refer to Note 10(a)(ii) - excludes all payables & provisions not expected to be paid in the next 12 months (incl. ELE).
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Note 13a(ii). Local Government Industry Indicators - Graphs (Consolidated)
1. Operating Performance Ratio

Purpose of
Operating
Performance Ratio

8.0%
7.0%

Commentary on 2014/15 Result
2014/15 Ratio

1.63%

Ratio %

6.0%
5.0%
4.0%
3.0%

6.74%

6.54%

2.0%
1.0%

0.85%

0.0%
2012

2013

―――

Benchmark:

1.63%

2014

This ratio measures
Council’s
achievement of
containing operating
expenditure within
operating revenue.

A pleasing result for Council. This positive
trend shows that Council is in a strong and
robust position. Showing that Council can
satisfy all its obligations of Councils
activities as they fall due. It should be
noted that Cabonne has achieved a
positive result in this ratio for more that 10
years in a row.

2015

Ratio is within Benchmark

Minimum >=0.00%

Source for Benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #23
2. Own Source Operating Revenue Ratio
100%
90%

Purpose of Own
Source Operating
Revenue Ratio

Ratio is outside Benchmark
Commentary on 2014/15 Result
2014/15 Ratio

63.27%

Ratio %

80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%

65.55%

65.50%

62.09%

63.27%

2012

2013

2014

2015

20%
10%
0%

Benchmark:

―――

This ratio measures
fiscal flexibility. It is
the degree of reliance
on external funding
sources such as
operating grants &
contributions.

Ratio is within Benchmark

Minimum >=60.00%

Source for Benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #23
3. Unrestricted Current Ratio

Purpose of
Unrestricted Current
Ratio

12.0

Ratio (x)

10.0

This is another very positive result for
Council. This ratio shows that Council is
consistently exceeding the industry
benchmark. It is important to note that the
result proves that Council is not overly
reliant on government grants for its
continuing operations.

Ratio is outside Benchmark
Commentary on 2014/15 Result
2014/15 Ratio

10.07x

8.0
6.0
4.0

10.37
7.25

8.98

10.07

2.0
0.0
2012

Benchmark:

2013

―――

2014

To assess the
adequacy of working
capital and its ability
to satisfy obligations
in the short term for
the unrestricted
activities of Council.

The strength of this ratio will enable Council
to draw down funds in future years to
address its infrastructure backlog and meet
the benchmark along with all others.

2015

Minimum >=1.50

Source for Benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #23

Ratio is within Benchmark
Ratio is outside Benchmark
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Note 13a(ii). Local Government Industry Indicators - Graphs (Consolidated)
4. Debt Service Cover Ratio

Purpose of Debt
Service Cover Ratio

70.0

Ratio (x)

60.0
50.0
40.0
30.0

60.36
44.71

20.0
10.0

23.70

25.45

2014

2015

This ratio measures
the availability of
operating cash to
service debt including
interest, principal and
lease payments

0.0
2012

Benchmark:

2013

―――

2014/15 Ratio

25.45x

Council's Debt Service Ratio is once again
well within the industry benchmark. Council
has recently drawn on loan funds for
sewerage works and will continue to
monitor if any other loan funds can be
utilised in other arears in order to
commence and complete capital works
programs.
Ratio is within Benchmark

Minimum >=2.00

Source for Benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #23

16%

Commentary on 2014/15 Result

5. Rates, Annual Charges, Interest & Extra
Charges Outstanding Percentage

14%

Purpose of Rates &
Annual Charges
Outstanding Ratio

Ratio is outside Benchmark
Commentary on 2014/15 Result
2014/15 Ratio

3.78%

Ratio %

12%
10%
8%

14.50%

6%
4%
2%

5.18%

4.81%

3.78%

To assess the impact
of uncollected rates
and annual charges
on Council's liquidity
and the adequacy of
recovery efforts.

This ratio shows the outstanding work
completed by staff to reduce the
outstanding rates and charges ratio. The
result shows that Council is well within the
industry benchmark.

0%
2012

Benchmark:

2013

―――

2014

2015

Ratio is within Benchmark

Maximum <10.00%

Source for Benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #23
6. Cash Expense Cover Ratio

Purpose of Cash
Expense Cover
Ratio

Ratio (mths)

20.0

Ratio is outside Benchmark
Commentary on 2014/15 Result
2014/15 Ratio

18.45 mths

15.0
10.0
16.67

17.78

18.60

18.45

2012

2013

2014

2015

5.0
0.0

Benchmark:

―――

This liquidity ratio
indicates the number
of months a Council
can continue paying
for its immediate
expenses without
additional cash inflow.

Minimum >=3.00

Source for Benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #23

Councils stands at an impressive 19
months of liquidity without the need for
additional income. Council will be able to
utilise this liquidity to reduce its
infrastructure backlog to below the industry
benchmark.

Ratio is within Benchmark
Ratio is outside Benchmark
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Note 13b. Statement of Performance Measurement - Indicators (by Fund)
$ '000

Water
2015

Sewer
2015

General 5
2015

-9.85%

-27.95%

3.54%

-7.33%

-19.70%

2.19%

97.79%

49.37%

63.53%

95.27%

29.13%

66.01%

62.58x

12.34x

10.07x

43.94

8.52

8.98

0.00

1.49x

41.68x

0.00

5.02

27.97

5.52%

9.86%

2.98%

4.17%

1.89%

5.14%

0.00

0.00

16.13
mths

0.00

0.00

16.08

Local Government Industry Indicators - by Fund
1. Operating Performance Ratio

Total continuing operating revenue (1)

(excl. Capital Grants & Contributions) - Operating Expenses

Total continuing operating revenue (1)
(excl. Capital Grants & Contributions)

prior period:

2. Own Source Operating Revenue Ratio

Total continuing operating revenue (1)
(excl. ALL Grants & Contributions)

Total continuing operating revenue (1)

prior period:

3. Unrestricted Current Ratio

Current Assets less all External Restrictions (2)
Current Liabilities less Specific Purpose Liabilities (3, 4)
prior period:

4. Debt Service Cover Ratio

Operating Result (1) before capital excluding interest
and depreciation / impairment / amortisation
Principal Repayments (from the Statement of Cash Flows)
+ Borrowing Costs (from the Income Statement)

prior period:

5. Rates, Annual Charges, Interest &
Extra Charges Outstanding Percentage
Rates, Annual and Extra Charges Outstanding
Rates, Annual and Extra Charges Collectible
prior period:

6. Cash Expense Cover Ratio
Current Year's Cash and Cash Equivalents
+ All Term Deposits
Payments from cash flow of operating and
financing activities

x12
prior period:

Notes
(1) - (4)
(5)

Refer to Notes at Note 13a(i) above.
General Fund refers to all of Council's activities except for its Water & Sewer activities which are listed separately.
page 56

Financial Statements 2015

Cabonne Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2015

Note 14. Investment Properties
$ '000

Actual
2015

Notes

Actual
2014

Council has not classified any Land or Buildings as "Investment Properties"

Note 15. Financial Risk Management
Risk Management
Council's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including (1) price risk, (2) credit risk, (3) liquidity risk
and (4) interest rate risk.
The Council's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Council.
Council does not engage in transactions expressed in foreign currencies and is therefore not subject to foreign
currency risk.
Financial risk management is carried out by Council's Finance Section under policies approved by the Council.
A comparison by category of the carrying amounts and fair values of Council's Financial Assets & Financial
Liabilities recognised in the financial statements is presented below.
Carrying Value

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
- "Held for Trading"
- "Held to Maturity"
- "Loans & Receivables"
Receivables
Other Financial Assets
Total Financial Assets
Financial Liabilities
Payables
Loans / Advances
Total Financial Liabilities

Fair Value

2015

2014

2015

2014

20,594

9,969

20,594

9,969

20,500
4,320
282
45,696

100

-

100

20,500
4,320
282
45,696

29,500

2,330
2,713
5,043

29,500
5,011
282

44,862

2,775
2,892

5,667

-

2,330
2,713
5,043

5,224
282

45,075

2,763
2,892

5,655

Fair Value is determined as follows:
- Cash & Cash Equivalents, Receivables, Payables - are estimated to be the carrying value which approximates mkt value.
- Borrowings & Held to Maturity Investments - are based upon estimated future cash flows discounted by the current
market interest rates applicable to assets & liabilities with similar risk profiles, unless quoted market prices are available.
- Financial Assets classified (i) "at fair value through profit & loss" or (ii) Available for Sale - are based upon quoted
market prices (in active markets for identical investments) at the reporting date or independent valuation.
Refer to Note 27 - Fair Value Measurement for information regarding the fair value of financial assets & liabilities
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Note 15. Financial Risk Management (continued)
$ '000

(a) Cash & Cash Equivalents, Financial assets 'at fair value through the profit & Loss'
"Available-for-sale" financial assets & "Held-to-maturity" Investments
Council's objective is to maximise its return on cash & investments whilst maintaining an adequate level of
liquidity and preserving capital.
Council has an Investment Policy which complies with the Local Government Act & Minister's Investment Order.
This Policy is regularly reviewed by Council and it's staff and an Investment Report is tabled before Council on
a monthly basis setting out the portfolio breakup and its performance.
The risks associated with the investments held are:
- Price Risk - the risk that the capital value of Investments may fluctuate due to changes in market prices,
whether there changes are caused by factors specific to individual financial instruments or their issuers
or are caused by factors affecting similar instruments traded in a market.
- Interest Rate Risk - the risk that movements in interest rates could affect returns and income.
- Credit Risk - the risk that the investment counterparty) will not complete their obligations particular to a
financial instrument, resulting in a financial loss to Council - be it of a capital or income nature.
Council manages these risks (amongst other measures) by diversifying its portfolio and only purchasing
investments with high credit ratings or capital guarantees.
The following represents a summary of the sensitivity of Council's Income Statement and Accumulated Surplus
(for the reporting period) due to a change in either the price of a financial asset or the interest rates applicable.
It is assumed that the change in interest rates would have been constant throughout the reporting period.
Increase of Values/Rates
2015
Possible impact of a 10% movement in Market Values
Possible impact of a 1% movement in Interest Rates

Decrease of Values/Rates

Profit

Equity

Profit

Equity

246

246

(246)

(246)

200

10
200

(200)

(10)
(200)

2014
Possible impact of a 10% movement in Market Values
Possible impact of a 1% movement in Interest Rates

page 58

Financial Statements 2015

Cabonne Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2015

Note 15. Financial Risk Management (continued)
$ '000

(b) Receivables
Council's major receivables comprise (i) Rates & Annual charges and (ii) User Charges & Fees.
The major risk associated with these receivables is credit risk - the risk that debts due and payable to Council
may not be repaid in full.
Council manages this risk by monitoring outstanding debt and employing stringent debt recovery procedures.
It also encourages ratepayers to pay their rates by the due date through incentives.
Credit risk on rates and annual charges is minimised by the ability of Council to secure a charge over the land
relating to the debts - that is, the land can be sold to recover the debt. Council is also able to charge interest
on overdue rates & annual charges at higher than market rates which further encourages the payment of debt.
There are no significant concentrations of credit risk, whether through exposure to individual customers,
specific industry sectors and/or regions.
Council makes suitable provision for doubtful receivables as required and carries out credit checks on most
non-rate debtors.
There are no material receivables that have been subjected to a re-negotiation of repayment terms.
A profile of Council's receivables credit risk at balance date follows:
2015

2015

Rates &

(i) Ageing of Receivables - %
Current (not yet overdue)
Overdue

(ii) Ageing of Receivables - value
Other Receivables

Current

Current

< 1 year overdue

0 - 30 days overdue

1 - 2 years overdue

30 - 60 days overdue

2 - 5 years overdue

60 - 90 days overdue

> 5 years overdue

> 90 days overdue

(iii) Movement in Provision for Impairment
of Receivables
Balance at the beginning of the year
+ new provisions recognised during the year
- amounts already provided for & written off this year
Balance at the end of the year

2014

Rates &

Annual

Other

Annual

Other

Charges

Receivables

Charges

Receivables

90%
10%
100%

78%
22%
100%

76%
24%
100%

77%
23%
100%

Rates &
Rates & Annual Charges

2014

Rates &

Annual

Other

Annual

Other

Charges

Receivables

Charges

Receivables

476
51
527

3,222
134
10
75
698
4,139

536
166
702

3,762
347
25
17
716
4,867

2015

2014

558
29
(241)
346

570
3
(15)
558
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Note 15. Financial Risk Management (continued)
$ '000

(c) Payables & Borrowings
Payables & Borrowings are both subject to liquidity risk - the risk that insufficient funds may be on hand to
meet payment obligations as and when they fall due.
Council manages this risk by monitoring its cash flow requirements and liquidity levels and maintaining an
adequate cash buffer.
Payment terms can (in extenuating circumstances) also be extended & overdraft facilities utilised as required.
The contractual undiscounted cash outflows (ie. principal and interest) of Council's Payables & Borrowings are
set out in the maturity table below:
$ '000

Subject
to no

payable in:

Total

Actual

Cash

Carrying

Outflows

Values

maturity

≤ 1 Year

1-2 Yrs

2-3 Yrs

3-4 Yrs

4-5 Yrs

> 5 Yrs

539

1,791

-

-

-

-

-

2,330

2,330

-

350

350

337

327

327

1,906

3,597

2,713

539

2,141

350

337

327

327

1,906

5,927

5,043

603

2,172

-

-

-

-

-

2,775

2,775

-

351

350

350

337

327

2,233

3,948

2,892

603

2,523

350

350

337

327

2,233

6,723

5,667

2015
Trade/Other Payables
Loans & Advances
Total Financial Liabilities

2014
Trade/Other Payables
Loans & Advances
Total Financial Liabilities

Borrowings are also subject to interest rate risk - the risk that movements in interest rates could adversely
affect funding costs & debt servicing requirements. Council manages this risk through the diversification of
borrowing types, maturities & interest rate structures.
The following interest rates were applicable
to Council's Borrowings at balance date:
Trade/Other Payables
Loans & Advances - Fixed Interest Rate

2015

2014

Carrying

Average

Carrying

Average

Value

Interest Rate

Value

Interest Rate

2,330
2,713
5,043

0.0%
6.8%

2,775
2,892
5,667

0.0%
6.8%
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Note 16. Material Budget Variations
$ '000

Council's Original Financial Budget for 14/15 was adopted by the Council on 23 June 2015.
While the Income Statement included in this General Purpose Financial Report must disclose the Original
Budget adopted by Council, the Local Government Act requires Council to review its Financial Budget on a
Quarterly Basis, so that it is able to manage the various variations between actuals versus budget that
invariably occur throughout the year.
This Note sets out the details of MATERIAL VARIATIONS between Council's Original Budget and its Actual
results for the year as per the Income Statement - even though such variations may have been adjusted for
during each Quarterly Budget Review.
Note that for Variations* of Budget to Actual :

Material Variations represent those variances that amount to 10% or more of the original budgeted figure.
F = Favourable Budget Variation, U = Unfavourable Budget Variation

$ '000

REVENUES
Rates & Annual Charges
User Charges & Fees

2015
Budget

2015
Actual

12,338

12,269

7,532

9,771

2015
---------- Variance* ----------

(69)
2,239

(1%)

U

30%

F

The reason for this result is due to the significant amount of works allocated to Council by the RMS.
Approximately $2.178M in new State Road Ordered Works projects was received during this period, as well as
an additional $51k in maintenance income.

Interest & Investment Revenue

1,370

1,414

44

F

3%

355
542
187
Other Revenues
53%
Additional Insurance rebate received from Statewide Mutual on property Insurance, Workers Compensation
Rebate and an additional OHS Incentive Payment, additional rebate on diesel and increase in commission fees

F

Operating Grants & Contributions

9,393

10,371

978

10%

F

Capital Grants & Contributions

2,594

3,619

1,025

40%

F

Roadworks contribution of $1m for Cadia Road Four Mile Creek Project. Molong Library Grant $200k received late
in the year, as well as $124k for lighting of the Cargo Recreational Ground. NSW Fire Service building new Fire
sheds $203k. Yeoval Showground amenities grant $139k received later in the year.

Joint Ventures & Associates - Net Profits

-

227

227

0%

F
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Note 16. Material Budget Variations (continued)
$ '000

EXPENSES
Employee Benefits & On-Costs
Borrowing Costs

2015
Budget

2015
Actual

12,336

11,959

170

243

2015
---------- Variance* ----------

377
(73)

3%

F

(43%)

U

Borrowing cost for remediation works for the Molong Quarry $49,246, Gravel Pits $21,300 and part of the Cabonne
Landfill sites not recognised in the initial budget process.

Materials & Contracts

6,066

5,778

288

5%

F

Depreciation & Amortisation

9,240

9,936

(696)

(8%)

U

Other Expenses

5,544

5,989

(445)

(8%)

U

(200)
317
(517)
259%
Net Losses from Disposal of Assets
Greater than expected loss on sale of property assets together with continued loss on Grange Investment

U

Budget Variations relating to Council's Cash Flow Statement include:
Cash Flows from Operating Activities

9,466

14,290

4,824

51.0%

F

This result is due to the additional income attracted during the year with additional works allocated to Council
by the RMS and additional grant funding

(9,439)
(3,486)
5,953
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
As a result of the increase in funding additonal works were undertaken throughtout the year.
Cash Flows from Financing Activities

(171)

(179)

(8)

(63.1%)

F

4.7%

U
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Note 17. Statement of Developer Contributions
$ '000

Council recovers contributions, raises levies & enters into planning agreements on development works that are subject to a development consent issued by Council.
All contributions must be spent/utilised for the specific purpose they were levied and any interest applicable to unspent funds must be attributed to remaining funds.
The following tables detail the receipt, interest and use of the above contributions & levies and the value of all remaining funds which are "restricted" in their future use.

SUMMARY OF CONTRIBUTIONS & LEVIES
PURPOSE

Projections

Opening
Balance

Cumulative

Contributions

Interest

Expenditure

Internal

Held as

Exp

Over or

Internal

received during the Year

earned

during

Borrowing

Restricted

Future

still

(under)

Borrowings

in Year

Year

(to)/from

Asset

income

outstanding

Funding

due/(payable)

Cash

Non Cash

Roads
Other

523
197

60
10

-

9
4

(67)
(24)

-

525
187

42
5

(42)
(5)

525

-

187

-

S94 Contributions - under a Plan

720

70

-

13

(91)

-

712

47

(47)

712

-

Total S94 Revenue Under Plans

720

70

-

13

(91)

-

712

Total Contributions

720

70

-

13

(91)

-

712

-

47

(47)

-

712
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Note 17. Statement of Developer Contributions (continued)
$ '000

S94 CONTRIBUTIONS - UNDER A PLAN
CONTRIBUTION PLAN NUMBER 1 - SMALL RURAL HOLDINGS
PURPOSE

Opening
Balance

Roads
Total

Projections

Contributions

Interest

Expenditure

Internal

Held as

Exp

Over or

Internal

received during the Year

earned

during

Borrowing

Restricted

Future

still

(under)

Borrowings

in Year

Year

(to)/from

Asset

income

outstanding

Funding

due/(payable)

Cash

Non Cash

40

-

-

-

(10)

-

30

2

(2)

30

-

40

-

-

-

(10)

-

30

2

(2)

30

-

CONTRIBUTION PLAN NUMBER - GENERAL RURAL ZONE
PURPOSE

Projections

Contributions
Opening
Balance

Roads
Total

received during the Year
Cash

Non Cash

Expenditure

Internal

Held as

earned

during

Borrowing

Restricted

Future

still

(under)

Borrowings

in Year

Year

(to)/from

Asset

income

outstanding

Funding

due/(payable)

Exp

Over or

Internal

483

60

-

9

(57)

-

495

40

(40)

495

-

483

60

-

9

(57)

-

495

40

(40)

495

-

Opening
Balance

Other
Total

Cumulative

Interest

CONTRIBUTION PLAN NUMBER - BUSHFIRE EQUIPMENT
PURPOSE

Cumulative

Projections

Cumulative

Contributions

Interest

Expenditure

Internal

Held as

Exp

Over or

Internal

received during the Year

earned

during

Borrowing

Restricted

Future

still

(under)

Borrowings

in Year

Year

(to)/from

Asset

income

outstanding

Funding

due/(payable)

Cash

Non Cash

197

10

-

4

(24)

-

187

5

(5)

187

-

197

10

-

4

(24)

-

187

5

(5)

187

-
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Note 18. Contingencies & Other Assets/Liabilities Not Recognised
$ '000

The following assets and liabilities do not qualify for
recognition in the Statement of Financial Position, but
their knowledge & disclosure is considered relevant
to the users of Council's Financial Report.

(ii) Statewide Limited

LIABILITIES NOT RECOGNISED:

Membership includes the potential to share in either
the net assets or liabilities of the fund depending on
its past performance. Council’s share of the Net
Assets or Liabilities reflects Councils contributions to
the pool and the result of insurance claims within
each of the Fund Years.

1. Guarantees
(i) Defined Benefit Superannuation
Contribution Plans
Council participates in an employer sponsored
Defined Benefit Superannuation Scheme, and makes
contributions as determined by the Superannuation
Scheme's Trustees.
Member Councils bear responsibility of ensuring there
are sufficient funds available to pay out the required
benefits as they fall due.
The Schemes most recent full actuarial review
indicated that the Net Assets of the Scheme were
not sufficient to meet the accrued benefits of the
Schemes Defined Benefit member category with
member Councils required to make significantly
higher contributions in future years.
The Local Government Superannuation Scheme
however is unable to provide Council with an accurate
estimate of its share of the net deficit and accordingly
Council has not recorded any net liability from it's
Defined Benefit Scheme obligations in accordance
with AASB 119.
Future contributions made to the defined benefit
scheme to rectify the net deficit position will be
recognised as an expense when they become
payable - similar to the accounting for Defined
Contributions Plans.

Council is a member of Statewide Mutual, a mutual
pool scheme providing liability insurance to Local
Government.

The future realisation and finalisation of claims
incurred but not reported to 30/6 this year may result
in future liabilities or benefits as a result of past
events that Council will be required to fund or share
in respectively.
(iii) StateCover Limited
Council is a member of StateCover Mutual Limited
and holds a partly paid share in the entity.
StateCover is a company providing workers
compensation insurance cover to the NSW Local
Government Industry and specifically Council.
Council has a contingent liability to contribute further
equity in the event of the erosion of the Company's
capital base as a result of the company's past
performance and/or claims experience or as a result
of any increased prudential requirements from APRA.
These future equity contributions would be required
to maintain the company’s minimum level of Net
Assets in accordance with its Licence Requirements.
(iv) Other Guarantees
Council has provided a Bank Guarantee of $540,000
for rehabilitation works to carried out upon closure
of it`s Molong Limestone Quarry. The agreement is
with the Department of Primary Industries.
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Note 18. Contingencies & Other Assets/Liabilities Not Recognised (continued)
$ '000

LIABILITIES NOT RECOGNISED (continued):

(iii) Potential Land Acquisitions due to Planning
Restrictions imposed by Council

(v) Other Guarantees
Council has provided no other Guarantees other than
those listed above.
2. Other Liabilities

Council has classified a number of privately owned
land parcels as Local Open Space or Bushland.
As a result, where notified in writing by the various
owners, Council will be required to purchase these
land parcels.

(i) Third Party Claims
The Council is involved from time to time in various
claims incidental to the ordinary course of business
including claims for damages relating to its services.

At reporting date, reliable estimates as to the value
of any potential liability (& subsequent land asset)
from such potential acquisitions has not been
possible.

Council believes that it is appropriately covered
for all claims through its Insurance Coverage and
does not expect any material liabilities to eventuate.

ASSETS NOT RECOGNISED:

(ii) S94 Plans

As permitted under AASB 1051, Council has elected
not to bring to account Land Under Roads that it
owned or controlled up to & including 30/6/08.

Council levies Section 94/94A Contributions upon
various development across the Council area through
the required Contributions Plans.

(i) Land Under Roads

As part of these Plans, Council has received funds
for which it will be required to expend the monies in
accordance with those Plans.
As well, these Plans indicate proposed future
expenditure to be undertaken by Council, which will
be funded by making levies and receipting funds in
future years or where a shortfall exists by the use of
Council's General Funds.
These future expenses do not yet qualify as liabilities
as of the Reporting Date, but represent Councils
intention to spend funds in the manner and timing
set out in those Plans.
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Note 18. Contingencies & Other Assets/Liabilities Not Recognised (continued)
$ '000

ASSETS NOT RECOGNISED: (continued)
(ii) Infringement Notices/Fines
Fines & Penalty Income, the result of Council issuing
Infringement Notices is followed up and collected by
the Infringement Processing Bureau.
Councils Revenue Recognition policy for such
income is to account for it as revenue on receipt.
Accordingly, at Year End, there is a potential asset
due to Council representing issued but unpaid
Infringement Notices.
Due to the limited information available on the status,
value and duration of outstanding Notices, Council is
unable to determine the value of outstanding income.
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Note 19. Interests in Other Entities
$ '000

Council's objectives can and in some cases are best met through the use of separate entities & operations.
These operations and entities range from 100% ownership and control through to lower levels of ownership
and control via co-operative arrangements with other Councils, Bodies and other Outside Organisations.
The accounting and reporting for these various entities, operations and arrangements varies in accordance
with accounting standards, depending on the level of Councils (i) interest and (ii) control and the type (form) of
entity/operation, as follows;
Controlled Entities (Subsidiaries)
Operational arrangements where Council's control (but not necessarily interest) exceeds 50%.

Note 19(a)

Joint Ventures & Associates
Joint Ventures are operational arrangements where the parties that have joint control have
rights to the net assets of the arrangement.
Associates are separate entities where Council has significant influence over the operations
(but neither controls nor jointly controls them).

Note 19(b)

Joint Operations
Operational arrangements where the parties that have joint control have rights to specific
assets and obligations for specific liabilities relating to the arrangement rather than a right
to the net assets of the arrangement.

Note 19(c)

Unconsolidated Structured Entities
Unconsolidated Structured Entities represent “special vehicles” that Council has an interest
in but which are not controlled by Council and therefore not consolidated as a Subsidiary,
Joint Arrangement or Associate. Attributes of Structured Entities include restricted activities,
a narrow and well-defined objective and insufficient equity to finance its activities without
financial support.

Note 19(d)

Subsidiaries, Joint Arrangements and Associates not recognised

Note 19(e)

Accounting Recognition:
(i) Subsidiaries disclosed under Note 19(a) and Joint Operations disclosed at Note 19(c) are accounted for on a
"line by line" consolidation basis within the Income Statement and Statement of Financial Position.
(ii) Joint Ventures and Associates as per Notes 19(b)(i) & (ii) are accounted for using the Equity Accounting Method
and are disclosed as a 1 line entry in both the Income Statement and Statement of Financial Position.
Council's Share of Net Income

Joint Ventures
Associates
Total

Council's Share of Net Assets

Actual

Actual

Actual

Actual

2015

2014

2015

2014

-

-

227

590

19,862

19,635

227

590

19,862

19,635
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Note 19. Interests in Other Entities (continued)
$ '000

(a) Controlled Entities (Subsidiaries) - being entities & operations controlled by Council
Council has no interest in any Controlled Entities (Subsidiaries).

(b) Joint Ventures and Associates
Council has incorporated the following Joint Ventures and Associates into it's consolidated Financial Statements.
(a) Net Carrying Amounts - Council's Share
Name of Entity

Nature of

Measurement

Relationship

Method

Central Tablelands Water
Associate
Equity
Total Carrying Amounts - Material Joint Ventures and Associates

2015

2014

19,862
19,862

19,635
19,635

(b) Details
Place of
Name of Entity

Principal Activity

Central Tablelands Water

Supply Water

(c) Relevant Interests & Fair Values
Name of Entity

Central Tablelands Water

Business

Blayney

Quoted

Interest in

Interest in

Proportion of

Fair Value

Outputs

Ownership

Voting Power

2015

2014

2015

2014

2015

2014

2015

2014

33%

33%

33%

33%

33%

33%

page 69

Financial Statements 2015

Cabonne Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2015

Note 19. Interests in Other Entities (continued)
$ '000

(b) Joint Ventures and Associates (continued)
(d) Summarised Financial Information for Joint Ventures & Associates
Central Tablelands Water

Statement of Financial Position
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets
Non-Current Assets
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities (excl. Accounts Payable)
Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Net Assets
Reconciliation of the Carrying Amount
Opening Net Assets (1 July)
Profit/(Loss) for the period
Other Comprehensive Income
Closing Net Assets
Council's share of Net Asets (%)
Council's share of Net Assets ($)

2015

-

-

2014

404
6,677
7,081
56,722

681
5,707
6,388
57,034

383
1,064
1,447
2,764

359
1,007
1,366
3,146

-

-

-

-

59,592

58,910

-

58,910
74
608
59,592

57,140
284
1,486
58,910

-

-

-

33.33%

33.33%

-

19,862

19,635

5,248
206
(1,808)
(222)
(3,350)
74

5,249
185
(1,785)
(244)
(3,121)
284

Statement of Comprehensive Income
Income
Interest Income
Depreciation & Amortisation
Interest Expense
Other Expenses
Profit/(Loss) for Period

-

-

Other Comprehensive Income
Total Comprehensive Income

-

-

-

-

25

95

-

-

227

590

Council's share of Income (%)
Council's share of Profit/(Loss) ($)
Council's share of Comprehensive Income ($)

608
682
33.33%

1,486
1,770
33.33%
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Note 19. Interests in Other Entities (continued)
$ '000

(c) Joint Operations
Council has no interest in any Joint Operations.

(d) Unconsolidated Structured Entities

Council has no Unconsolidated Structured Entities

(e) Subsidiaries, Joint Arrangements & Associates not recognised
The following Subsidiaries, Joint Arrangements & Associates have not been recognised in this Financial Report.
Name of Entity/Operation

Principal Activity/Type of Entity

2015

2015

Net Profit

Net Assets

19
139
Central West Co-operative Public
Library Services to member
Library
Councils
Reasons for non recognition
Cabonne Council has a small interest and passive control in Central West Co-operative Public Libary.
Council makes a financial contribution on behalf of the rate payers of Cabonne in order for the Library to provide a
service. Cabonne Council does not have significant influence or control of the entity.
Strategic Alliance
Investigation & provision of
Wellington, Blayney & Cabonne
Economies of scale opportunities
Councils
for Member Councils
Reasons for non recognition
Cabonne Council has a mutually agreeable collaborated arrangement with the WBC Strategic Alliance and
its partners. Councils capacity is that it supports the Alliance. The Strategic Alliance is not a legal entity
and does have a budget in its own right.
Southern Phone Company
Telecommunications
Reasons for non recognition
Cabonne Council has a passive investment with Southern Phone Company with no significant influence or
control.

Section 355 Committees of Council

Management,control and care
of Council property

-

2,014

Reasons for non recognition
Council auspice a number of Section 355 Committees and due to their immaterial value and nature have
been excluded from recognition.
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Note 20. Equity - Retained Earnings and Revaluation Reserves
$ '000

Notes

Actual
2015

Actual
2014

294,751
19,045
3,991
198

286,874
19,045
7,877
-

(a) Retained Earnings
Movements in Retained Earnings were as follows:
Balance at beginning of Year (from previous years audited accounts)
a. Changes in Accounting Policies (prior period effects)
b. Net Operating Result for the Year
c. Transfers between Equity

20 (d)

Balance at End of the Reporting Period

317,985

313,796

(b) Reserves
(i) Reserves are represented by:
- Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment Revaluation Reserve
Total

246,653

246,653

207,821

207,821

(ii) Reconciliation of movements in Reserves:
Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment Revaluation Reserve
- Opening Balance
- Revaluations for the year
9(a)
- (Impairment of revalued assets) / Impairment reversals
9(a),(c)
- Transfer to Retained Earnings for Asset disposals
- Balance at End of Year
TOTAL VALUE OF RESERVES

207,821
39,030
(198)
246,653

246,653

193,568
14,301
(48)
207,821

207,821

(iii) Nature & Purpose of Reserves
Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment Revaluation Reserve

- The Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment Revaluation
Reserve is used to record increments/decrements of Non
Current Asset values due to their revaluation.

(c) Correction of Error/s relating to a Previous Reporting Period
Council made no correction of errors during the current reporting period.

(d) Voluntary Changes in Accounting Policies
Council has accounted for it’s share of Central Tablelands Water
which is significantly influenced by Council

-

In accordance with AASB 108 - Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors, the above changes in
Accounting Policy have been recognised retrospectively.
These amounted to the following Equity Adjustments:
- Adjustments to Opening Equity - 1/7/13

19,045

-

19,045

-

(relating to adjustments for the 30/6/13 reporting year end and prior periods)

Total Prior Period Adjustments - Accounting Policy Changes
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Note 21. Financial Result & Financial Position by Fund
Income Statement by Fund

$ '000

Actual
2015

Actual
2015

Actual
2015

Actual
2015

Water

Sewer

General1

362
507
95
9
12
10

1,390
72
80
6
119
1,438

10,517
9,192
1,239
527
10,240
2,171

-

995

3,105

227
34,113

-

184
338
484
87
1,093

266
170
401
733
563
2,133

972

11,509
73
5,039
8,719
5,339
317
30,996

3,117

-

-

-

Continuing Operations
Income from Continuing Operations
Rates & Annual Charges
User Charges & Fees
Interest & Investment Revenue
Other Revenues
Grants & Contributions provided for Operating Purposes
Grants & Contributions provided for Capital Purposes
Other Income
Share of interests in Joint Ventures & Associates
using the Equity Method

Total Income from Continuing Operations
Expenses from Continuing Operations
Employee Benefits & on-costs
Borrowing Costs
Materials & Contracts
Depreciation & Amortisation
Other Expenses
Net Losses from the Disposal of Assets

Total Expenses from Continuing Operations

Operating Result from Continuing Operations

-

(98)

Discontinued Operations
Net Profit/(Loss) from Discontinued Operations

Net Operating Result for the Year

-

(98)

972

3,117

Net Operating Result attributable to each Council Fund

-

(98)

972

Net Operating Result attributable to Non-controlling Interests

-

3,117
-

Net Operating Result for the year before Grants and Con
and Contributions provided for Capital Purposes

-

1

-

(108)

-

(466)

946

General Fund refers to all Council's activities other than Water & Sewer.
NB. All amounts disclosed above are Gross - that is, they include internal charges & recoveries made between the Funds.
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Note 21. Financial Result & Financial Position by Fund (continued)
Statement of Financial Position by Fund

$ '000

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Investments
Receivables
Inventories
Other
Total Current Assets
Non-Current Assets
Receivables
Inventories
Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
Investments Accounted for using the equity method
Intangible Assets
Other
Total Non-Current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables
Borrowings
Provisions
Total Current Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Payables
Borrowings
Provisions
Total Non-Current Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Net Assets

Actual
2015

Actual
2015

Actual
2015

Actual
2015

Water

Sewer

General1

-

2,993
574
3,567

2,183
1,196
3,379

15,418
20,500
1,989
1,030
103
39,040

-

27
25,392
25,419
28,986

118
41,244
41,362
44,741

416
371
441,191
19,862
238
282
462,360
501,400

-

57
57

83
190
273

2,395
2
3,601
5,998

-

57

2,518
2,518
2,791

38
3
1,602
1,643
7,641

-

28,929

41,950

493,759

11,347
17,582

25,497
16,453

281,141
212,618

28,929

41,950

493,759

EQUITY
Retained Earnings
Revaluation Reserves

Total Equity
1

-

General Fund refers to all Council's activities other than Water & Sewer.
NB. All amounts disclosed above are Gross - that is, they include internal receivables & payables between the Funds.
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Note 22. "Held for Sale" Non Current Assets & Disposal Groups
$ '000

Council did not classify any Non Current Assets or Disposal Groups as "Held for Sale".

Note 23. Events occurring after the Reporting Date
Events that occur between the end of the reporting period (ending 30 June 2015) and the date when the
financial statements are "authorised for issue" have been taken into account in preparing these statements.
Council has adopted the date of receipt of the Auditors' Report as the applicable "authorised for issue" date
relating to these General Purpose Financial Statements.
Accordingly, the "authorised for issue" date is 28/10/15.
Events that occur after the Reporting Period represent one of two types:
(i) Events that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the Reporting Period
These financial statements (and the figures therein) incorporate all "adjusting events" that provided evidence
of conditions that existed at 30 June 2015.
(ii) Events that provide evidence of conditions that arose after the Reporting Period
These financial statements (& figures therein) do not incorporate any "non-adjusting events" that have
occurred after 30 June 2015 and which are only indicative of conditions that arose after 30 June 2015.
Council is unaware of any material or significant "non-adjusting events" that should be disclosed.

Note 24. Discontinued Operations
Council has not classified any of its Operations as "Discontinued".
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Note 25. Intangible Assets
Actual
2015

Actual
2014

Opening Values:
Gross Book Value (1/7)
Accumulated Amortisation (1/7)
Accumulated Impairment (1/7)
Net Book Value - Opening Balance

286
(83)
203

286
(32)
254

Movements for the year
- Purchases

110

- Amortisation charges

(75)

(51)

Closing Values:
Gross Book Value (30/6)
Accumulated Amortisation (30/6)
Accumulated Impairment (30/6)

396
(158)
-

286
(83)
-

TOTAL INTANGIBLE ASSETS - NET BOOK VALUE 1

238

203

238
238

203
203

$ '000

Intangible Assets represent identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance.

Intangible Assets are as follows;

1.

-

The Net Book Value of Intangible Assets represent:

- Software
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Note 26. Reinstatement, Rehabilitation & Restoration Liabilities
$ '000

Council has legal/public obligations to make restore, rehabilitate and reinstate the following assets/operations:
Estimated
year of
Asset/Operation

Tip Operations
Quarry Operations

Balance at End of the Reporting Period

NPV of Provision

restoration
2016
2039
10(a)

2015

2014

356
1,246

353
1,176

1,602

1,529

Under AASB 116 - Property, Plant & Equipment, where the use of an asset results in the obligation to dismantle
or remove the asset and restore the site on which the asset stands, an estimate of such costs is required to be
included in the cost of the asset.
An equivalent liability must be recognised under AASB 137 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets.
The provision has been calculated by determining the present value of the future expenditures expected to be
incurred. The discount rate used is the risk free borrowing rate applicable to Council.
Reconciliation of movement in Provision for year:
Balance at beginning of year
Amounts capitalised to new or existing assets:
Amortisation of discount (expensed to borrowing costs)
Total - Reinstatement, rehabilitation and restoration provision

1,529

1,462

73

67

1,602

1,529
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Note 27. Fair Value Measurement
$ '000

The Council measures the following asset and liability classes at fair value on a recurring basis:
- Infrastructure, Property, Plant and Equipment

- Financial Assets & Liabilities

The fair value of assets and liabilities must be estimated in accordance with various Accounting Standards for
either recognition and measurement requirements or for disclosure purposes.
AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement requires all assets and liabilities measured at fair value to be assigned to a
"level" in the fair value hierarchy as follows:
Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access
at the measurement date.
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly.
Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
(1) The following table presents all assets and liabilities that have been measured & recognised at
fair values:
Fair Value Measurement Hierarchy
Level 1
Level 2
Level 3
Total
2015
Recurring Fair Value Measurements
Financial Assets
Other Financial Assets
Cash and Short Term Deposits
Other
Total Financial Assets
Financial Liabilities
Payables
Loans / Advances
Total Financial Liabilities
Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
Capital Works in Progress
Plant & Equipment
Office Equipment
Furniture & Fittings
Operational Land
Community Land
Land Improvements Non Depreciable
Land Improvements Depreciable
Building Non Specialised
Building Specialised
Other Structures
Roads
Bridges
Footpaths
Bulk Earthworks
Stormawater Drainage

Date
of latest
Valuation
30/06/15
30/06/15

30/06/15

30/06/15
30/06/15
30/06/15
30/06/15
30/06/15
30/06/15
30/06/15
30/06/15
30/06/15
30/06/15
30/06/15
30/06/15
30/06/15
30/06/15
30/06/15
30/06/15

Quoted
prices in
active mkts

-

Significant
observable
inputs

Significant
unobservable
inputs

20,500
20,594
282

-

41,376

20,500
20,594
282

41,376

-

2,330
2,713

5,043

-

5,043

-

-

8,351
14,003
444
218
7,242
10,451
1,071
2,477
1,667
27,534
4,882
125,861
45,060
4,078
148,410
51,527

8,351
14,003
444
218
7,242
10,451
1,071
2,477
1,667
27,534
4,882
125,861
45,060
4,078
148,410
51,527

2,330
2,713

(continued on the next page..)
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Note 27. Fair Value Measurement (continued)
$ '000

(1) The following table presents all assets and liabilities that have been measured & recognised at
fair values (continued):
Fair Value Measurement Hierarchy
Level 1
Level 2
Level 3
Total
2015
Recurring Fair Value Measurements

Date
of latest
Valuation
(continued)
30/06/15
30/06/15
30/06/15
30/06/15
30/06/15

Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
Water Supply Network
Sewer Network
Swimming Pools
Tip Assets
Quarry Assets
Total Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
2014
Financial Assets
Investments
- "Held for Trading"
Other Financial Assets
Cash and Short Term Deposits
Total Financial Assets
Financial Liabilities
Payables
Loans / Advances
Total Financial Liabilities

Quoted
prices in
active mkts

Level 1

Date

Quoted

30/06/14
30/06/14
30/06/14

-

30/06/14
30/06/14

-

Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
Capital Works in Progress
30/06/14
Plant & Equipment
30/06/14
Office Equipment
30/06/14
Furniture & Fittings
30/06/14
Operational Land
30/06/14
Community Land
30/06/14
Land Improvements Non Depreciable
30/06/14
Land Improvements Depreciable
30/06/14
Building Non Specialised
30/06/14
Building Specialised
30/06/14
Other Structures
30/06/11
Roads
30/06/10
Bridges
30/06/10
Footpaths
30/06/10
Bulk Earthworks
30/06/10
Stormawater Drainage
30/06/10
Water Supply Network
30/06/12
Sewer Network
30/06/12
Swimming Pools
30/06/11
Tip Assets
30/06/14
Quarry Assets
30/06/14
Total Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment

-

Significant
observable
inputs

Significant
unobservable
inputs

23,434
28,542
2,421
8
146
507,827

507,827

Level 2

Level 3

Total

Significant

Significant

-

-

100
29,782
9,969

-

2,775
2,892

-

-

7,372
14,612
558
253
7,273
10,451
1,071
2,233
1,827
28,984
4,939
116,306
41,129
3,804
166,435
4,901
23,075
28,190
2,459
9
159
466,040

39,851

5,667

-

23,434
28,542
2,421
8
146

100
29,782
9,969

39,851

2,775
2,892

5,667

7,372
14,612
558
253
7,273
10,451
1,071
2,233
1,827
28,984
4,939
116,306
41,129
3,804
166,435
4,901
23,075
28,190
2,459
9
159

466,040
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Note 27. Fair Value Measurement (continued)
(2) Transfers between Level 1 & Level 2 Fair Value Hierarchies
During the year, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 Fair Value hierarchies for recurring fair value measurements.
(3) Valuation techniques used to derive Level 2 and Level 3 Fair Values
Where Council is unable to derive Fair Valuations using quoted market prices of identical assets (ie. Level 1 inputs), Council instead utilises a spread of both observable
inputs (Level 2 inputs) and unobservable inputs (Level 3 inputs).
The Fair Valuation techniques Council has employed while utilising Level 2 and Level 3 inputs are as follows:
Financial Assets
Held to Maturity – Term deposits valued at fair value
Valuation Technique: ‘Cost approach’
Inputs Used (Level 2): Original investment value
Cash and Short Term Deposits – Cash and short term deposits valued at fair value
Valuation Technique: ‘Cost approach’
Inputs Used (Level 2): Original investment value
Financial Liabilities
Payables – Outstanding creditor payments, security bonds & deposits
Valuation Technique: ‘Cost approach’
Inputs Used (Level 2): Cost of product or service.
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Note 27. Fair Value Measurement (continued)
Loans/Advances – Outstanding bank loans
Valuation Technique: ‘Cost approach’
Inputs Used (Level 2): Loan borrowing amount
Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
Capital Works in Progress – Uncompleted capital projects
Valuation Techniques: ‘Cost approach’
Inputs Used (Level 3): Purchase price, useful lives (current replacement cost)
Plant and Equipment – Major plant (graders, loaders trucks etc.), fleet vehicles (cars, utes etc.) and minor plant (chainsaws, mowers etc.)
Valuation Techniques: ‘Cost approach’
Inputs Used (Level 3): Purchase price, useful lives (current replacement cost)
Plant and Equipment are valued at cost but are disclosed at fair value.
Office Equipment – Computers, servers
Valuation Techniques: ‘Cost approach’
Inputs Used (Level 3): Purchase price, useful lives (current replacement cost)
Office Equipment is valued at cost but is disclosed at fair value.
Furniture and Fittings – Desks, chairs, air conditioners, cupboards
Valuation Techniques: ‘Cost approach’
Inputs Used (Level 3): Purchase price, useful lives (current replacement cost)
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Note 27. Fair Value Measurement (continued)
Furniture and Fittings are valued at cost but are disclosed at fair value.
Operational Land –
Valuation Techniques: ‘Market approach’
Inputs Used (Level 3): Land area, rate per square metre, zoning restrictions, geographical location, sales of comparable land
Councils Operational Land has been valued at market value, having regard to the “highest and best use”, after identifying all elements that would be taken into account by
buyers and sellers in settling the price, including but not limited to:
•
•
•

The land’s description and/or dimensions;
Planning and other constraints on development; and
The potential for alternative use.

With regard to the above Councils Valuer Scott Fullarton Valuations P/L analysed sales of land throughout Cabonne Shire and surrounding Council areas and adopted a
rate per square metre, after taking into consideration zoning, location, area and configuration.
Community Land –
Valuation Techniques: ‘Cost approach’
Inputs Used (Level 3): The NSW Valuer General’s valuations (as at 30 June 2011)
Councils community land is land intended for public access and use, or where other restrictions applying to the land create some obligation to maintain public access (such
as a trust deed, or dedication under section 94 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979). This gives rise to the restrictions in the Act, intended to preserve
the qualities of the land.
Community Land:
•
•
•

Cannot be sold
Cannot be leased, licensed, or any other estate granted over the land for more than 21 years and
Must have a plan of management for it.

In relation to the valuing of Community Land the Office of Local Government has authorised the use of the NSW Valuer General’s valuations as a sufficient basis to
represent fair value for the revaluation of community land under clause 31 of AASB 116.
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Note 27. Fair Value Measurement (continued)
Non Depreciable land Improvements
Valuation Techniques: ‘Cost approach’
Inputs Used (Level 3): Purchase price, useful lives (current replacement cost)
Non Depreciable land improvements are valued at cost but are disclosed at fair value.
Depreciable Land Improvements – Gardens/softfall areas, cricket pitches and recreation ground pathways
Valuation Techniques: ‘Cost approach’
Inputs Used (Level 3): Dimensions and specifications, units rates
Depreciable Land Improvements were valued as at 30 June 2011. Valuations are based on unit rates derived from historical costs and from industry rates such as the
‘Australian Construction handbook 2014 - Rawlinson’s’.
Buildings (Specialised/Non Specialised) – Community halls, toilet blocks, council offices, library, multipurpose centre, works depot
Valuation Techniques: ‘Cost approach’
Inputs Used (Level 3): Unit rates, useful life, asset condition
th
Council’s buildings were valued at fair value on 30 June 2014 in accordance with Compiled Accounting Standard AASB116 Property, Plant and Equipment, the guidance
contained in the NSW Treasury Accounting Policy tpp 07-1 and the NSW Department of Local Government Guidelines. ‘Fair value’ is the best estimate of the price
reasonably obtainable in the market at the date of valuation. As defined in AASB 116, it is “the amount for which an asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable,
willing parties in an arm’s length transaction”

Councils Specialised Buildings were valued by Scott Fullarton Valuation (SFV) P/L as at 30 June 2014. SFV provided a valuation for each building based on applying a unit
rate to a structure or a square metre rate to a building, based on its current replacement cost, which is the lowest cost of replacing the economic benefits of the existing
asset using modern technology. These rates were derived from substantial analysis of construction costs from over one hundred and twenty (120) Councils throughout
New South Wales.
SFV estimated the Total Life and Residual Life of each building/structure and, where the building is considered a complex asset, for each component, as they have useful
lives different from those of the non-current assets to which they relate. In regard to componentisation, Paragraph 43 of AASB116 requires each part of the asset with a
cost that is significant in relation to the asset be depreciated separately (structure, internal finishes, electrical services, mechanical services, fire/security and roof).
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Note 27. Fair Value Measurement (continued)
Other Structures
Valuation Techniques: ‘Cost approach’
Inputs Used (Level 3): Dimensions and specifications, units rates
Other Structures were valued as at 30 June 2011. Valuations are based on unit rates derived from historical costs and from industry rates such as the ‘Australian
Construction handbook 2014 - Rawlinson’s’.
Swimming Pools – Swimming Pools
Valuation Techniques: ‘Cost approach’
Inputs Used (Level 3): Dimensions and specifications, units rates
Swimming pools were valued as at 30 June 2011. Valuations are based on unit rates derived from historical costs and from industry rates such as the ‘Australian
Construction handbook 2014 - Rawlinson’s’.
Roads – Road surface, pavement, formation, major earthworks
Valuation Techniques: ‘Cost approach’
Inputs Used (Level 3): Unit rates, useful life, asset condition
Councils road infrastructure assets were last valued by Pavement Management Services on 30 June 2015. As per Paragraph 43 of AASB116, Councils roads infrastructure
assets were segmented and componentised into the following categories (each representing a significant part of the overall asset):
•
•
•
•

Road Surface
Pavement
Formation & Major Earthworks
Kerb and Gutter

Roads – Sealed and Unsealed
GPS logged to establish the length and extent of the network. Road chainages were taken as the measure of Cabonne Council`s road asset length. Seal widths (sealed
roads) were taken from full condition assessment undertaken by Pavement Management Services.
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Note 27. Fair Value Measurement (continued)
The pavement width was assumed to be an additional 1m on each side of the Seal (e.g. Seal of 6 m is assumed to have an 8m wide pavement). This was confirmed by
random sampling of a range of roads categories across the Shire.
Unit rates for major earthworks, pavement and sealing were based on the Rawlinson’s; Construction Cost Guide 2010, Edition 18. These rates were verified against recent
actual rates from Cabonne Council road works.
Condition Assessment data was established on all of Cabonne Councils road network..
Kerb and Gutter
Kerb & Gutter assets were valued in-house as at 30 June 2015.
Asset register was developed by Council staff completing a physical inspection of the Kerb & Gutter Network. Council staff were equipped with a GPS unit that measured
the length and the location of each asset. Unit rates were established from historical data and also tested against recent construction costs. Condition assessment for Kerb
and Gutter was collected at time of physical inspection along with the material used in the construction.
Bridges
Valuation Techniques: ‘Cost approach’
Inputs Used (Level 3): Unit rates, useful life, asset condition, dimension and specifications (concrete/timber), bridge traffic
Bridges assets were valued in-house as at 30 June 2015.
Asset register was developed by Council staff completing a physical inspection of all Council Bridges. Council staff inspected and componentised each bridge collected the
necessary data including condition rating, bridge dimensions and all other relevant data. Unit rates were established from historical data and also tested against recent
construction costs.
Footpaths – Footways including cycleways
Valuation Techniques: ‘Cost approach’
Inputs Used (Level 3): Unit rates, useful life, asset condition, dimensions and specifications (concrete/bitumen)
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Note 27. Fair Value Measurement (continued)
Asset register was developed by Council staff completing a physical inspection of all Council`s footpaths. Council staff inspected each footpath and collected the
necessary data including condition rating, dimensions and all other relevant data. Unit rates were established from historical data and also tested against recent
construction costs.
Footpaths assets were valued by Pavement Management Services as at 30 June 2015.
Stormwater Drainage – includes pits, pipes
Valuation Techniques: ‘Cost approach’
Inputs Used (Level 3): Unit rates, useful life, asset condition, dimensions and specifications
Asset register was developed by Council staff completing a physical inspection of all Council`s stormwater drainage. Council staff inspected and collected the necessary
data including condition rating, dimensions and all other relevant data. Unit rates were established from historical data and also tested against recent construction costs.
Stormwater drainage assets were valued in-house as at 30 June 2015.
Water Supply Network
Valuation Techniques: ‘Cost approach’
Inputs Used (Level 3): Unit rates, useful life, asset condition, dimensions and specifications
Councils Sewer Network was valued by CPE Associates as at 30 June 2012. The valuation was based on the NSW Office of Water’s NSW Reference Rates Tables issued
in July 2012, a supplement to the former Ministry of Energy and Utilities’ 2003 document NSW Reference Rates Manual: Valuation of Water Supply, Sewerage and
Stormwater Assets. Valuations in the updated tables are for June 2012.
The asset register was built using Council GIS data with modifications made to achieve the correct level of componentisation and to collect additional details regarding
material and capacities of the assets.
CPEa conducted a field survey, involving a physical inspection of the ground-level facility assets in the system such as treatment plants, pumping stations and effluent
reuse reservoir.
The object of the survey was to uncover any evidence that will challenge the default useful life for that asset class such as corrosion (or lack of), obvious
mechanical/electrical defects or structural damage. Field survey sheets were completed and a photographic record also was made.
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Note 27. Fair Value Measurement (continued)
Sewerage Network – Sewer pipes, pump stations, treatment plant, telemetry system, manholes
Valuation Techniques: ‘Cost approach’
Inputs Used (Level 3): Unit rates, useful life, asset condition, dimensions and specifications
Councils Sewer Network was valued by CPE Associates as at 30 June 2012. The valuation was based on the NSW Office of Water’s NSW Reference Rates Tables issued
in July 2012, a supplement to the former Ministry of Energy and Utilities’ 2003 document NSW Reference Rates Manual: Valuation of Water Supply, Sewerage and
Stormwater Assets. Valuations in the updated tables are for June 2012.
The asset register was built using Council GIS data with modifications made to achieve the correct level of componentisation and to collect additional details regarding
material and capacities of the assets.
CPEa conducted a field survey, involving a physical inspection of the ground-level facility assets in the system such as treatment plants, pumping stations and effluent
reuse reservoir.
The object of the survey was to uncover any evidence that will challenge the default useful life for that asset class such as corrosion (or lack of), obvious
mechanical/electrical defects or structural damage. Field survey sheets were completed and a photographic record also was made.
Tip and Quarry Assets – Reinstatement, rehabilitation and restoration
Valuation Techniques: ‘Cost approach’
Inputs Used (Level 3): Unit rates, useful life, asset condition, dimensions and specifications
It has been recognised that there will be significant costs associated with the closure and post closure management of the landfill and quarry sites. Closure of the landfill
and quarry sites will involve a wide range of activities including final capping of the landfill waste and site re-vegetation, monitoring of landfill gas, revision of the surface
water management system and leachate management infrastructure to suit post-closure operation.
Valuation are based on actual timing of costs and future environmental management requirements.
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Note 27. Fair Value Measurement (continued)
$ '000

(4). Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3)
a. The following tables present the changes in Level 3 Fair Value Asset Classes.
Capital
Works
in Progress

Plant &
Equipment

Office
Equipment

Furniture &
Fittings

Operational
Land

Community
Land

Land Imps
Non
Depreciable

Land Imps
Depreciable

Adoption of AASB 13
Transfers from/(to) another asset class
Purchases (GBV)
Disposals (WDV)
Depreciation & Impairment
Other movement

1,681
5,691
-

14,649
2,705
(344)
(2,398)
-

582
231
(14)
(241)
-

250
43
(40)
-

5,084
(122)
212
2,099

10,447
4
-

1,071
-

1,916
447
(130)
-

Closing Balance - 30/6/14

7,372

14,612

558

253

7,273

10,451

1,071

2,233

2,230
(635)
(2,204)
-

89
(203)
-

4
(39)
-

-

-

14,003

444

218

10,451

1,071

Adoption of AASB 13
Transfers from/(to) another asset class
Purchases (GBV)
Disposals (WDV)
Depreciation & Impairment
Other movement
Closing Balance - 30/6/15

979
8,351

236
(267)
7,242

406
(23)
(139)
2,477

Total
35,680
(122)
9,333
(358)
(2,809)
2,099

43,823
3,944
(925)
(2,585)
-

44,257
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Note 27. Fair Value Measurement (continued)
$ '000

(4). Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) continued
a. The following tables present the changes in Level 3 Fair Value Asset Classes. (continued)
Buildings
Non Special

Buildings
Specialised

Other
Structures

Roads

Bridges

Footpaths

Adoption of AASB 13
Transfers from/(to) another asset class
Purchases (GBV)
Depreciation & Impairment
Other movement

295
1,088
(42)
486

20,096
(1,254)
482
(660)
10,320

5,751
(918)
355
(249)
-

160,851
(43,313)
2,760
(3,992)
-

39,725
1,771
(367)
-

3,588
272
(56)
-

Closing Balance - 30/6/14

1,827

28,984

4,939

116,306

41,129

3,804

Adoption of AASB 13
Transfers from/(to) another asset class
Purchases (GBV)
Disposals (WDV)
Depreciation & Impairment
FV Gains - Other Comprehensive Income
FV Gains - Income Statement 1
Other movement
Closing Balance - 30/6/15

(65)
(95)
1,667

598
(672)
(1,376)
27,534

199
(256)
4,882

6,971
(3,994)
6,578
125,861

1,152
(367)
3,146
45,060

237
(58)
95
4,078

Bulk
Eathworks

Stormwater
Drainage

Total

165,715
720
-

4,930
66
(95)
-

357,638
(1,084)
6,426
(5,461)
10,806

166,435

4,901

253
(18,278)
-

(95)
46,721
-

148,410

51,527

368,325
9,410
(737)
(6,241)
38,262
-

409,019
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Note 27. Fair Value Measurement (continued)
$ '000

(4). Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) continued
a. The following tables present the changes in Level 3 Fair Value Asset Classes. (continued)
Class
Here

Class
Here

Class
Here

Water
Network

Sewer
Network

Swimming
Pools

Tip
Assets

Quarry
Assets

Total
50,288
1,083
2,185
(1,060)
1,396

Adoption of AASB 13
Transfers from/(to) another asset class
Purchases (GBV)
Depreciation & Impairment
Other movement

-

-

-

22,320
531
(404)
628

27,748
223
(549)
768

1,083
1,431
(55)
-

10
(1)
-

210
(51)
-

Closing Balance - 30/6/14

-

-

-

23,075

28,190

2,459

9

159

Adoption of AASB 13
Transfers from/(to) another asset class
Purchases (GBV)
Depreciation & Impairment
FV Gains - Other Comprehensive Income
FV Gains - Income Statement 1
Other movement

-

-

-

(1)
-

(13)
-

Closing Balance - 30/6/15

-

-

-

8

146

434
(421)
346
23,434

474
(544)
422
28,542

18
(56)
2,421

53,892
926
(1,035)
768
-

54,551
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Note 27. Fair Value Measurement (continued)
(4). Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3)
b. Significant unobservable valuation inputs used (for Level 3 asset classes) and their relationship to fair value.
The following table summarises the quantitative information relating to the significant unobservable inputs used in deriving the various Level 3 Asset Class fair values.
I,PP&E
Class

Capital Works in Progress

Plant & Equipment

Fair
Value

Valuation Techniques

$8,351

Cost Approach

•

Gross
Replacement Cost

•

Various

$14,003

Cost Approach

•

Gross
Replacement Cost
Remaining Useful
Life
Gross
Replacement Cost
Remaining Useful
Life
Gross
Replacement Cost
Remaining Useful
Life

•

Various

•

5 to 15
years
Various

(30/6/15)
$’000

Unobservable Inputs

•
Office Equipment

$444

Cost Approach

•
•

Furniture & Fittings

$218

Cost Approach

•
•

Range of Inputs
(incl probable)

•
•
•
•

4 to 15
years
Various
4 to 15
years

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to Fair Value
Any Changes in the gross
replacement value or pattern of
consumption will have an
impact on fair value.
Any Changes in the gross
replacement value or pattern of
consumption will have an
impact on fair value.
Any Changes in the gross
replacement value or pattern of
consumption will have an
impact on fair value.
Any Changes in the gross
replacement value or pattern of
consumption will have an
impact on fair value.
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Note 27. Fair Value Measurement (continued)
Class

Fair
Value

Valuation Techniques

$7,242

Cost Approach

•

Land Improvements Non
Depreciable

$1,071

Cost Approach

•

Land Improvements
Depreciable

$2,477

Cost Approach

•

Buildings Non Specialised

$1,667

Community land

Buildings Specialised

Other Structures

(30/6/15)
$’000

Unobservable Inputs

$27,534

$4,882

Cost Approach

Cost Approach

(incl probable)

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to Fair Value

NSW Valuer
General`s
Valuation
(Unimproved
Capital Value)
Gross
Replacement Cost

•

Per valuer
general

Any changes in average
unimproved capital value will
increase/decrease fair value.

•

Various

•

Various

•

•

Gross
Replacement Cost
Remaining Useful
Life
Unit Rates

•
•

Asset Conditions
Useful Life

•
•

•

Unit Rates

•

•
•

Asset Conditions
Useful Life

•
•

•

Gross
Replacement Cost
Remaining Useful
Life

•

1 to 50
years
$1,930 $3,490 per
sq metre
1 to 5
33 to 100
years
$320 $6,000 per
sq metre
1 to 5
33 to 100
years
Various

Any Changes In the component
pricing and asset condition will
have an impact on fair value.
Any Changes In the component
pricing and asset condition will
have an impact on fair value.

•
Cost Approach

Range of Inputs

•

•

•

33 to 50
years

Any Changes In the component
pricing and asset condition will
have an impact on fair value.

Any Changes In the component
pricing and asset condition will
have an impact on fair value.

Any Changes In the component
pricing and asset condition will
have an impact on fair value
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Note 27. Fair Value Measurement (continued)
Class

Roads

Bridges

Footpaths

Bulk Earthworks

Stormwater Drainage

Fair
Value

(30/6/15)
$’000

$125,861

$45,060

$4,078

$148,410

$51,527

Valuation Techniques

Cost Approach

Unobservable Inputs

Range of Inputs
(incl probable)

•

Unit Rates

•

•
•

Asset Condition
Useful life

•
•

Cost Approach

•

Unit Rates

•

Cost Approach

•
•
•

Asset Conditions
Useful Life
Unit Rates

•
•
•

Cost Approach

•
•
•

Asset Conditions
Useful Life
Unit Rates

•
•
•

•

Terrain rating

•

Unit Rates

•

•
•

Asset Conditions
Useful Life

•
•

Cost Approach

•

$9.37 $4,253 per
km
1 to 5
20 – 225
years
$27,460 per
metre of
bridge
1 to 5
150 years
$128.30 per
lineal metre
1 to 5
100 years
$60k– $288
per km
Low,
medium or
high
$100 $4,000 per
unit
1 to 5
150 years

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to Fair Value
Any Changes in component
pricing and asset condition will
have an impact on fair value.

Any Changes in component
pricing and asset condition will
have an impact on fair value.
Any Changes in component
pricing and asset condition will
have an impact on fair value.
Any Changes in component
pricing and asset condition will
have an impact on fair value.
Any Changes in component
pricing and asset condition will
have an impact on fair value.
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Note 27. Fair Value Measurement (continued)
Class

Fair
Value

(30/6/15)
$’000

Valuation Techniques

Unobservable Inputs

Range of Inputs
(incl probable)

Water Supply Network

$23,434

Cost Approach

•
•
•

Unit Rates
Asset Conditions
Useful Life

•
•
•

Sewer Network

$28,542

Cost Approach

•
•
•

Unit Rates
Asset Conditions
Useful Life

•
•
•

Swimming Pools

$2,421

Cost Approach

•

Unit Rates

•

•
•

Asset Conditions
Useful Life

•
•

Tip Assets
Quarry Assets

$8

Cost Approach

•

Discounted future
Cash Flows

•

Various
1 to 5
10 to 100
years
Various
1 to 5
10 to 100
years
Varies
significantly
from asset
to asset
1 to 5
50 to 100
years
6%

$146

Cost Approach

•

Discounted future
Cash Flows

•

6%

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to Fair Value
Any Changes in component
pricing and asset condition will
have an impact on fair value.
Any Changes in component
pricing and asset condition will
have an impact on fair value.
Any Changes in component
pricing and asset condition will
have an impact on fair value

Any Changes in the future cost
estimates and discount rate will
have an impact on fair value.
Any Changes in the future cost
estimates and discount rate will
have an impact on fair value.

(5). Highest and best use
All of Council's non financial assets are considered to being utilised for their highest and best use.
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Note 28. Financial Review
$ '000

Key Financial Figures of Council over the past 5 years (consolidated)
2015

2014

2013

2012

2011

12,269
9,771
1,414
9,827
38,213

11,989
10,124
1,660
9,557
40,162

11,827
9,982
1,986
9,638
37,644

11,148
11,045
1,777
11,253
37,966

10,649
6,794
1,825
11,983
35,739

1,489
-

822
-

619
2,455

1,226
-

1,202
-

Outflows:
Employee Benefits & On-cost Expenses
Borrowing Costs
Materials & Contracts Expenses
Total Expenses from Continuing Operations

11,959
243
5,778
34,222

11,804
248
4,739
32,285

11,652
187
4,811
32,303

12,062
113
7,412
33,005

10,696
115
6,195
29,451

Total Cash purchases of I,PP&E
Total Loan Repayments (incl. Finance Leases)

14,187
179

17,492
170

12,365
75

12,955
71

10,937
101

372

1,404

2,398

2,793

2,658

2015

2014

2013

2012

2011

45,986
6,328
39,658

45,156
6,536
38,620

45,794
6,022
39,772

42,266
7,369
34,897

40,723
7,485
33,238

3,509

4,705

3,100

5,596

7,159

3,564
29,191
41,094

4,466
25,735
39,569

2,103
24,631
39,972

4,999
17,412
36,313

7,188
15,654
34,550

2,713

2,892

3,062

682

753

515,704

482,719

445,048

434,477

432,636

175,051

201,909

183,760

175,016

177,458

Financial Performance Figures
Inflows:
Rates & Annual Charges Revenue
User Charges Revenue
Interest & Investment Revenue (Losses)
Grants Income - Operating & Capital
Total Income from Continuing Operations
Sale Proceeds from I,PP&E
New Loan Borrowings & Advances

Operating Surplus/(Deficit) (excl. Capital Income)
Financial Position Figures
Current Assets
Current Liabilities
Net Current Assets
Available Working Capital
(Unrestricted Net Current Assets)

Cash & Investments - Unrestricted
Cash & Investments - Internal Restrictions
Cash & Investments - Total
Total Borrowings Outstanding
(Loans, Advances & Finance Leases)

Total Value of I,PP&E (excl. Land & Earthworks)
Total Accumulated Depreciation
Indicative Remaining Useful Life (as a % of GBV)

66%

58%

59%

60%

59%

Source: Published audited financial statements of Council (current year & prior year)
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Note 29. Council Information & Contact Details
Principal Place of Business:
99 - 101 Bank Street
Molong NSW 2866
Contact Details
Mailing Address:
PO Box 17
Molong NSW 2866

Opening Hours:
Monday to Friday
9am to 5pm

Telephone:
Facsimile:

Internet:
Email:

02 6392 3200
02 6392 3260

http://www.cabonne.nsw.gov.au
council@cabonne.nsw.gov.au

Officers
GENERAL MANAGER
Andrew Hopkins

Elected Members
MAYOR
Michael Hayes

RESPONSIBLE ACCOUNTING OFFICER
Stephen Harding

COUNCILLORS
Janelle Culverson
Ian Davidson
Geoffery Dean
Anthony Durkin
Ian Gosper
Lachlan MacSmith
Marlene Nash
Gregory Treavors
Graham Smith
Kevin Walker
Sharon Wilcox

PUBLIC OFFICER
Gerard Aguila
AUDITORS
intentus Chartered Accountants
14 Sale Street, Orange

Other Information
ABN: 419 929 192 00
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE COUNCIL
ON THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
CABONNE COUNCIL
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of Cabonne Council (The Council) for the financial
year ended 30 June 2015. The financial statements comprise the Statement by Councillors and Management, Income
Statement, Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement
of Cash Flows and accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements.
Councils’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Council are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the Local
Government Act 1993. This responsibility includes establishing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.
Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. Our audit responsibility does not
extend to the original budget figures included in the Income Statement and Statement of Cash Flows, the original budget
disclosures in Notes 2(a) and 16, the projected revenue and expenditure of developer contributions reported in Note 17 and
accordingly we express no opinion on them. We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These
Auditing Standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by Council, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Independence

In conducting our audit, we followed applicable independence requirements of Australian professional ethical
pronouncements.

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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Matters Relating to the Electronic Presentation of the Audited Financial Statements

This auditor’s report relates to the general purpose financial statements of Cabonne Council (Council) for the year ended
30 June 2015 included on Council’s web site. Council is responsible for the integrity of their web site. We have not been
engaged to report on the integrity of the web site. The auditor’s report refers only to the statements named above. It
does not provide an opinion on any other information which may have been hyperlinked to/from these statements. If
users of this report are concerned with the inherent risks arising from electronic data communications they are advised
to refer to the hard copy of the audited financial statements to confirm the information included in the audited financial
statements presented on this web site.
Audit Opinion

In our opinion:
(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

the Council's accounting records have been kept in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government
Act 1993, Chapter 13, Part 3, Division 2;
the Council's financial statements:

(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)

have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of this Division;
are consistent with the Council's accounting records;
present fairly the Council's financial position, the results of its operations and cashflows; and
are in accordance with applicable Australian Accounting Standards (Including the Australian
Accounting Interpretations).

all information relevant to the conduct of the audit has been obtained; and

there are no material deficiencies in the accounting records or financial statements that have emerged in the
course of the audit.

14 Sale Street
Orange
Dated:28 October 2015
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Thorough, Attentive, Earnest
28 October 2015
The Mayor
Councillor Ian Gosper
Cabonne Council
PO Box 17
MOLONG NSW 2866
Dear Mr Mayor

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE CONDUCT OF THE AUDIT OF
CABONNE COUNCIL FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

We advise having completed our audit of the financial statements of Cabonne Council for the financial year ended 30 June
2015. Our audit resulted in the issuing of an unmodified audit report on both the general purpose and special purpose
financial statements of Council.
In accordance with Section 417(3) of the Local Government Act 1993 we submit our report on the conduct of the audit of
Cabonne Council for the year ended 30 June 2015. Our audit reports on the general purpose financial statements of
Council and the special purpose financial statements for Council’s business units outline the legislative framework of our
audit and should be referred to in order to establish the context in which our comments are made.
Council’s Responsibility for the Financial Report

The Council is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in accordance with the Local
Government Act 1993. This responsibility includes establishing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.
Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards require that we comply with relevant ethical
requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by Council, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial report.
The following comments are provided in accordance with Section 417(3) of the Local Government Act 1993 and Regulation
227 of the Local Government (General) Regulation 2005 to assist in the understanding of the financial statements and our
reports.

PO Box 69, Orange NSW 2800
PO Box 9013, Bathurst West NSW 2795
14 Sale Street, Orange NSW 2800
291 Stewart Street, Bathurst NSW 2795
Phone: 02 6362 5100
Phone: 02 6333 7611
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Review of Financial Results
(a)

Operating Result

As disclosed in Council's Income Statement the year's operations resulted in a net operating result of $3,991,000 (2014
- $7,877,000). Selected items of note in the operating statement include:
The operating result from ordinary activities before capital amounts was $372,000 (2014 – $1,404,000).






User Charges & Fees revenue decreased $353,000 to $9,771,000 (2014 - $10,124,000) with a fall in quarry
revenue the main reason.
Interest and Investment Revenue fell by $246,000 to $1,414,000 (2014 - $1,660,000). The decline attributable
to the overall decline in interest rates on offer as existing investments matured and a write-down from
$100,000 to $Nil on council’s last remaining CDO investment.
Income from Operating Grants returned to traditional levels at $10,371,000 (2014 - $8,325,000) following the
return to a full year of instalments of the Federal Financial Assistance Grant.
Capital grants also returned to trend levels. This time lower at $3,619,000 (2014 - $6,473,000). The 2014 year
was boosted by a $3.3M grant for the small town sewer scheme. This was not repeated in 2015.
Materials and Contracts expenses were higher at $5,778,000 (2014 - $4,739,000) with the largest contributor
to the increase being the expenses relating to the remediation of the former gasworks site in Molong.

Council’s other major items of income and expenditure were relatively consistent with the prior period.
(b)

Financial Position

The Statement of Financial Position discloses that for the year ended 30 June 2015 Council’s net assets stood at
$564,638,000 (2014 - $521,617,000), which represents an increase of $43,021,000. The increase comprises the net
operating surplus after capital amounts of $3,991,000 and the net revaluation increment resulting from the revaluation
of roads, bridges, footpaths, storm water drainage, water and sewerage infrastructure assets of $39,030,000.

To assess the health of Council’s net current asset position (available working capital) it is necessary to review the level
of restrictions placed against the use of Council’s assets as follows: 2014
2015
$’000
$’000
Net Current Assets
Less:
Less:
Add:
Add:

Amounts externally restricted for special purposes
(refer Notes 6; 7; & 8 of financial statements)
Council internally imposed restrictions
(refer Note 6 of financial statements)
Applicable current liabilities refer Note 10
- Water
- Sewerage
Employee Leave Entitlements to be paid > 12 months

Unrestricted net current asset surplus/(deficit)
Unrestricted net current assets comprise: Assets
Cash
Receivables
Inventories
Other (Prepayments)
Less:
General Purpose Liabilities
Plus:
Employee Leave Entitlements to be paid > 12 months
Unrestricted net current asset surplus/(deficit)

39,658

38,620

(10,109)

(11,310)

57
273
2,532

84
422
2,362

3,220

4,443

3,564
1,989
1,030
103
(5,998)
2,532

4,466
2,375
1,258
12
(6,030)
2,362

(29,191)

3,220

(25,735)

4,443
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Council’s continues to enjoy a surplus of net current assets to cover the restrictions placed on those assets.
The following table shows the Council’s calculated net current asset position over the past four years:

Net Current Asset Position

$'000

50,000

Unrestricted

40,000

Internally Restricted

Externally Restricted

30,000
20,000
10,000

0

2012

2013

2014

2015

Cash & Investments

Note 6 to the accounts discloses total cash and investments of $41,094,000 (2014 - $39,569,000), of this amount
$8,339,000 (2014 - $9,368,000) is subject to external restrictions requiring Council to commit those funds to the
purposes for which they were provided and $29,191,000 (2014 - $25,735,000) is subject to internal restrictions agreed
upon by Council for designated purposes. These internal restrictions may be altered at the discretion of Council,
consistent with their operational plan.
The unrestricted balance of $3,564,000 (2014 - $4,466,000) represents funds available to cover non-budgeted
discretionary expenditure and meet short-term cash flow requirements.

Unrestricted

2014

Internally Restricted

Externally Restricted

2015
0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

$'000

Whilst the consolidated financial statements displays healthy levels of cash and investments, we remind the reader
that the consolidated data is not necessarily reflective of the position of the individual funds (General, Water & Sewer)
and this is equally applicable when reviewing the performance indicators considered below. General information on
the financial position and performance by fund is provided in Note 21 to the financial statements.
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(c)

Performance Indicators

Note 13 to the Financial Statements provide a measure of Council’s performance using a number of selected ratios as
follows:
Operating Performance Ratio

This ratio expresses council’s ability to keep operating expenses, including depreciation, within its continuing operating
revenue. The outcome of 1.63% (2014 – 0.85%) represents the surplus between continuing operating revenue and
continuing operating expenses. The improvement in this ratio has many contributors, but in particular the restoration
of a full year of the Federal Assistance Grant payments has served to restore the performance measured by this ratio.
Unrestricted Current Ratio

The Unrestricted Current Ratio is a measure to assess the adequacy of working capital and the ability to satisfy
obligations in the short term for the unrestricted activities of Council.

Cabonne Council's ratio of 10.07:1 indicates that it has sufficient liquidity to comfortably meet its debts as and when
they fall due.
Debt Service Cover Ratio

The Debt Service Cover Ratio measures the ability of council to service debt by expressing that capacity as a multiple of
the operating result from continuing operations, excluding capital items and depreciation / impairment, over the
principal and interest costs.
At 25.45 times (2014 –23.70 times) Cabonne Council’s ratio indicates that it is easily able to service the existing levels
of debt.
Rates & Annual Charges, Interest & Extra Charges Outstanding Percentage

The rates and annual charges, interest and extra charges outstanding percentage is a measure of management
efficiency. Whilst prevailing economic conditions or the timing of billing runs may influence Council's ability to collect
revenue, the efficacy of collection procedures is still the largest determinant of this ratio.
Cabonne Council's rates and annual charges, interest and extra charges outstanding percentage of 3.78% (2014 –
4.81%) has improved further against the prior year’s gains.

page 102

(d)

Cash Flow Statement

The Statement of Cash Flows reports a net decrease in cash assets held of ($11,411,000) (2014 decrease - $4,603,000)
as follows:

Cash flow provided by / (used in)

Operating activities

2015
$’000

2014
$’000

Movement
$’000

14,290

16,393

(2,103)

(170)

(9)

Investing activities

(3,486)

(27,634)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash held

10,625

(11,411)

Financing activities

Cash flows from operating activities

(179)

24,148

22,036

The cashflows from operating activities have decreased when compared to 2014 due to the once-off capital grant of
$3.3M for the small town sewer scheme received during 2014.
Cash flows from investing activities

The significant reduction in the investing cash outflow is due to the net sale of $9,500,000 in (long-term) investments
that have been converted to (short-term) cash and cash equivalents.
Cash flows from financing activities

The net cash flow used in financing activities was $179,000 (2014 - $170,000), which related solely to the repayment of
borrowings during the year.
(e)

Comparison of Actual and Budgeted Performance

Council’s surplus from ordinary activities after capital amounts of $3,991,000 was $3,565,000 better than Council’s
original estimates.
It is beyond the purpose of this report to provide a detailed analysis of individual budget variations. Note 16 to
Council’s financial statements addresses the contributing factors to these variations in detail.
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(f)

Other Matters

National Competition Policy

In accordance with the requirements of National Competition Policy guidelines, Cabonne Council has prepared special
purpose financial statements on its business units for the year ended 30 June 2015. Council has determined that it has
three business units within its operations: Water, Sewerage and Quarry.
The Office of Local Government’s July 1997 guidelines ‘Pricing and Costing for Council Businesses: A Guide to
Competitive Neutrality’ outline the process for identifying and allocating costs of activities and provide a standard of
disclosure requirements. These disclosures are reflected in Council’s pricing and/or financial reporting systems and
include taxation equivalents, Council subsidies, rate of return on investments in business units and dividends paid.
An unmodified audit report on the special purpose reports for the year ended 30 June 2015 has been issued.
Management Letters

Our most recent management letter was issued on 13 July 2015. Management has typically responded to
recommendations in an appropriate and timely manner.
(g)

Legislative compliance

(h)

Matters Relating to the Electronic Presentation of the Audited Financial Report

As a result of our audit we advise that there are no material deficiencies in the accounting records or financial
statements that have come to our attention during the conduct of the audit and that Cabonne Council’s accounting
records have been kept in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government Act, 1993 and regulations.
This auditor’s report relates to the financial statements of Cabonne Council (Council) for the year ended 30 June 2015
included on Council’s web site. Council is responsible for the integrity of Council’s web site. We have not been
engaged to report on the integrity of the web site. The auditor’s report refers only to the statements named above. It
does not provide an opinion on any other information which may have been hyperlinked to/from these statements. If
users of this report are concerned with the inherent risks arising from electronic data communications they are advised
to refer to the hard copy of the audited financial report to confirm the information included in the audited financial
report presented on this web site.
Conclusion

(a) The Council’s accounting records have been kept in a manner and form that facilitated the preparation of the
general purpose financial statements and allowed proper and effective audit of these statements;
(b) The Council’s accounting records have been kept in a manner and form that facilitated the preparation of the
special purpose financial statements and allowed proper and effective audit of these statements; and
(c)

All information relevant to the conduct of the audit has been obtained.

14 Sale Street
Orange
Dated: 28 October 2015
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Background
(i)

These Special Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared for the use by both Council and the Division of
Local Government in fulfilling their requirements under National Competition Policy.

(ii)

The principle of competitive neutrality is based on the concept of a "level playing field" between persons/entities
competing in a market place, particularly between private and public sector competitors.
Essentially, the principle is that government businesses, whether Commonwealth, State or Local, should operate
without net competitive advantages over other businesses as a result of their public ownership.

(iii)

For Council, the principle of competitive neutrality & public reporting applies only to declared business activities.
These include (a) those activities classified by the Australian Bureau of Statistics as business activities being
water supply, sewerage services, abattoirs, gas production and reticulation and (b) those activities with a turnover
of over $2 million that Council has formally declared as a Business Activity (defined as Category 1 activities).

(iv)

In preparing these financial statements for Council's self classified Category 1 businesses and ABS defined
activities, councils must (a) adopt a corporatisation model and (b) apply full cost attribution including tax equivalent
regime payments & debt guarantee fees (where the business benefits from councils borrowing position by
comparison with commercial rates).
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Cabonne Council
Income Statement of Council's Water Supply Business Activity
for the financial year ended 30 June 2015

Actual
2015

Actual
2014

362
507
95
12
9
985

312
551
113
13
13
1,002

184
338
484
87
1,093
(108)

169
381
469
94
1,113
(111)

10
(98)

35
(76)

Surplus (deficit) from ALL Operations before tax
less: Corporate Taxation Equivalent (30%) [based on result before capital]

(98)
-

(76)
-

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) AFTER TAX

(98)

(76)

$ '000

Income from continuing operations
Access charges
User charges
Fees
Interest
Grants and contributions provided for non capital purposes
Profit from the sale of assets
Other income
Total income from continuing operations
Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and on-costs
Borrowing costs
Materials and contracts
Depreciation and impairment
Water purchase charges
Loss on sale of assets
Calculated taxation equivalents
Debt guarantee fee (if applicable)
Other expenses
Total expenses from continuing operations
Surplus (deficit) from Continuing Operations before capital amounts

Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes
Surplus (deficit) from Continuing Operations after capital amounts

Surplus (deficit) from discontinued operations

plus Opening Retained Profits
plus/less: Prior Period Adjustments
plus Adjustments for amounts unpaid:
- Taxation equivalent payments
- Debt guarantee fees
- Corporate taxation equivalent
less:
- Tax Equivalent Dividend paid
- Surplus dividend paid
Closing Retained Profits
Return on Capital %
Subsidy from Council
Calculation of dividend payable:
Surplus (deficit) after tax
less: Capital grants and contributions (excluding developer contributions)
Surplus for dividend calculation purposes
Potential Dividend calculated from surplus

11,445
-

11,521
-

-

-

11,347

11,445

-0.4%
875

-0.4%
1,004

(98)
(10)
-

(76)
(35)
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Cabonne Council
Income Statement of Council's Sewerage Business Activity
for the financial year ended 30 June 2015

$ '000

Actual
2015

Actual
2014

Income from continuing operations
Access charges
User charges
Liquid Trade Waste charges
Fees
Interest
Grants and contributions provided for non capital purposes
Profit from the sale of assets
Other income
Total income from continuing operations

1,390
72
80
119
6
1,667

1,325
60
64
124
1,573

266
170
401
733
563
2,133
(466)

220
180
417
782
254
1,853
(280)

1,438
972

3,402
3,122

Surplus (deficit) from ALL Operations before tax
less: Corporate Taxation Equivalent (30%) [based on result before capital]

972
-

3,122
-

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) AFTER TAX

972

3,122

24,525
-

21,403
-

-

-

25,497

24,525

Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and on-costs
Borrowing costs
Materials and contracts
Depreciation and impairment
Loss on sale of assets
Calculated taxation equivalents
Debt guarantee fee (if applicable)
Other expenses
Total expenses from continuing operations
Surplus (deficit) from Continuing Operations before capital amounts

Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes
Surplus (deficit) from Continuing Operations after capital amounts

Surplus (deficit) from discontinued operations

plus Opening Retained Profits
plus/less: Prior Period Adjustments
plus Adjustments for amounts unpaid:
- Taxation equivalent payments
- Debt guarantee fees
- Corporate taxation equivalent
less:
- Tax Equivalent Dividend paid
- Surplus dividend paid
Closing Retained Profits
Return on Capital %
Subsidy from Council
Calculation of dividend payable:
Surplus (deficit) after tax
less: Capital grants and contributions (excluding developer contributions)
Surplus for dividend calculation purposes
Potential Dividend calculated from surplus

-0.7%
1,542

-0.2%
1,527

972
(1,438)
-

3,122
(3,402)
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Cabonne Council
Income Statement of Council's Other Business Activities
for the financial year ended 30 June 2015

Quarry
Category 2

$ '000

Actual
2015

Actual
2014

Income from continuing operations
Access charges
User charges
Fees
Interest
Grants and contributions provided for non capital purposes
Profit from the sale of assets
Other income
Total income from continuing operations

1,646
1,646

1,848
23
2
1,873

425
49
812
111
401
1,798
(152)

232
47
608
121
601
1,609
264

(152)

264

Surplus (deficit) from ALL Operations before tax
less: Corporate Taxation Equivalent (30%) [based on result before capital]

(152)
-

264
(79)

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) AFTER TAX

(152)

185

plus Opening Retained Profits
plus/less: Prior Period Adjustments
plus Adjustments for amounts unpaid:
- Taxation equivalent payments
- Debt guarantee fees
- Corporate taxation equivalent
add:
- Subsidy Paid/Contribution To Operations
less:
- TER dividend paid
- Dividend paid
Closing Retained Profits

1,938
-

1,674
-

-

79

-

-

-

-

Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and on-costs
Borrowing costs
Materials and contracts
Depreciation and impairment
Loss on sale of assets
Calculated taxation equivalents
Debt guarantee fee (if applicable)
Other expenses
Total expenses from continuing operations
Surplus (deficit) from Continuing Operations before capital amounts

Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes
Surplus (deficit) from Continuing Operations after capital amounts

Surplus (deficit) from discontinued operations

Return on Capital %
Subsidy from Council

1,786

-7.4%
145

1,938

20.7%
-
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Cabonne Council
Statement of Financial Position - Council's Water Supply Business Activity
as at 30 June 2015

$ '000

Actual
2015

Actual
2014

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables
Inventories
Other
Non-current assets classified as held for sale
Total Current Assets

2,993
574
3,567

3,093
598
3,691

27
25,392
25,419
28,986

25,077
25,077
28,768

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Bank Overdraft
Payables
Interest bearing liabilities
Provisions
Total Current Liabilities

57
57

84
84

Non-Current Liabilities
Payables
Interest bearing liabilities
Provisions
Total Non-Current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

57

84

Non-Current Assets
Investments
Receivables
Inventories
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Investments accounted for using equity method
Investment property
Intangible Assets
Other
Total non-Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

NET ASSETS

EQUITY
Retained earnings
Revaluation reserves
Council equity interest
Non-controlling equity interest

TOTAL EQUITY

28,929

28,684

11,347
17,582
28,929
-

11,445
17,239
28,684
-

28,929

28,684
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Cabonne Council
Statement of Financial Position - Council's Sewerage Business Activity
as at 30 June 2015

$ '000

Actual
2015

Actual
2014

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables
Inventories
Other
Non-current assets classified as held for sale
Total Current Assets

2,183
1,196
3,379

2,262
1,344
3,606

118
41,244
41,362
44,741

40,078
40,078
43,684

83
190
273

245
177
422

2,518
2,518
2,791

2,707
2,707
3,129

Non-Current Assets
Investments
Receivables
Inventories
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Investments accounted for using equity method
Investment property
Intangible Assets
Other
Total non-Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Bank Overdraft
Payables
Interest bearing liabilities
Provisions
Total Current Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Payables
Interest bearing liabilities
Provisions
Total Non-Current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

EQUITY
Retained earnings
Revaluation reserves
Council equity interest
Non-controlling equity interest

TOTAL EQUITY

41,950

40,555

25,497
16,453
41,950
-

24,525
16,030
40,555
-

41,950

40,555

page 7

SPFS 2015

Cabonne Council
Statement of Financial Position - Council's Other Business Activities
as at 30 June 2015

Quarry
Category 2

$ '000

Actual
2015

Actual
2014

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables
Inventories
Other
Non-current assets classified as held for sale
Total Current Assets

966
191
101
1,258

893
109
256
1,258

Non-Current Assets
Investments
Receivables
Inventories
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Investments accounted for using equity method
Investment property
Other
Total Non-Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

1,398
1,398
2,656

1,501
1,501
2,759

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Bank Overdraft
Payables
Interest bearing liabilities
Provisions
Total Current Liabilities

870
870

821
821

Non-Current Liabilities
Payables
Interest bearing liabilities
Provisions
Other Liabilities
Total Non-Current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

870

821

NET ASSETS

EQUITY
Retained earnings
Revaluation reserves
Council equity interest
Non-controlling equity interest

TOTAL EQUITY

1,786

1,938

1,786
1,786
-

1,938
1,938
-

1,786

1,938
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Cabonne Council
Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2015
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Cabonne Council
Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2015

Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies
These financial statements are a Special Purpose
Financial Statements (SPFS) prepared for use by
Council and the Office of Local Government.
For the purposes of these statements, the Council is
not a reporting not-for-profit entity.
The figures presented in these special purpose
financial statements, unless otherwise stated, have
been prepared in accordance with:


the recognition and measurement criteria of
relevant Australian Accounting Standards,

 other authoritative pronouncements of the
Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) &
 Australian Accounting Interpretations.
The disclosures in these special purpose financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with:
 the Local Government Act and Regulation, and

The pricing & costing guidelines outline the process
for identifying and allocating costs to activities and
provide a standard of disclosure requirements.
These disclosures are reflected in Council’s pricing
and/or financial reporting systems and include
taxation equivalents; council subsidies; return on
investments (rate of return); and dividends paid.
Declared Business Activities
In accordance with Pricing & Costing for Council
Businesses - A Guide to Competitive Neutrality,
Council has declared that the following are to be
considered as business activities:
Category 1
(where gross operating turnover is over $2 million)

Nil.
Category 2

 the Local Government Code of Accounting
Practice and Financial Reporting.

(where gross operating turnover is less than $2 million)

The statements are also prepared on an accruals
basis, based on historic costs and do not take into
account changing money values nor current values
of non-current assets (except where specifically
stated).

Water supply operations servicing the towns of
Molong, Yeoval and Cumnock, established as a
combined special rate fund.

Certain taxes and other costs (appropriately
described) have been imputed for the purposes of
the National Competition Policy.
National Competition Policy

a. Cabonne Council Combined Water Supplies

b. Cabonne
Supplies

The “Pricing & Costing for Council Businesses A
Guide to Competitive Neutrality” issued by the Office
of Local Government in July 1997 has also been
adopted.

Combined

Sewerage

Sewerage reticulation and treatment operations
servicing the towns of Molong, Eugowra,
Canowindra, Cudal, Yeoval, Cumnock and Manildra.
These are reported under two special rate funds:
(i)

Cabonne Sewer Fund, servicing the towns of
Molong, Canowindra and Eugowra, and
(ii) Small Town Sewer Fund, servicing the towns
of Manildra, Cudal, Cumnock and Yeoval

Council has adopted the principle of ‘competitive
neutrality’ to its business activities as part of the
national competition policy which is being applied
throughout Australia at all levels of government.
The framework for its application is set out in the
June 1996 Government Policy statement on the
“Application of National Competition Policy to Local
Government”.

Council

c.

Cabonne Council – Agricultural Quarry

Supplies agricultural lime, limestone aggregates and
ready mixed concrete
Monetary Amounts
Amounts shown in the financial statements are in
Australian currency and rounded to the nearest one
thousand dollars, with the exception of some figures
disclosed in Note 2 (Water Supply Best Practice
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Cabonne Council
Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2015

Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies
Management Disclosures) and Note 3 (Sewerage
Best Practice Management Disclosures).
As required by the NSW Office of Water (Department
of Primary Industries) the amounts shown in Notes 2
and Note 3 are disclosed in whole dollars.

(i) Taxation Equivalent Charges
Council is liable to pay various taxes and financial
duties in undertaking its business activities. Where
this is the case, they are disclosed in these
statements as a cost of operations just like all other
costs.

Achievement of substantial compliance against the
guidelines for Best Practice Management of Water
Supply and Sewerage is not a prerequisite for the
payment of the tax equivalent charges, however the
payment must not exceed $3 per assessment.
Income Tax
An income tax equivalent has been applied on the
profits of each reported Business Activity.
Whilst income tax is not a specific cost for the
purpose of pricing a good or service, it needs to be
taken into account of in terms of assessing the rate
of return required on capital invested.

However, where Council is exempt from paying taxes
which are generally paid by private sector
businesses (such as income tax), equivalent tax
payments have been applied to all Council
nominated business activities and are reflected in
these financial statements.

Accordingly, the return on capital invested is set at a
pre-tax level (gain/(loss) from ordinary activities
before capital amounts) as would be applied by a
private sector competitor – that is, it should include a
provision equivalent to the corporate income tax rate,
currently 30%.

For the purposes of disclosing comparative
information relevant to the private sector equivalent,
the following taxation equivalents have been applied
to all council nominated business activities (this does
not include council’s non-business activities):

Income Tax is only applied where a positive
gain/(loss) from ordinary activities before capital
amounts has been achieved.

Notional Rate Applied %
Corporate Income Tax Rate – 30%
Land Tax – The first $432,000 of combined land
values attracts 0%. From $432,001 to $2,641,000 the
rate is 1.6% + $100. For the remaining combined
land value that exceeds $2,641,000, a premium
marginal rate of 2.0% applies.
Payroll Tax – 5.45% on the value of taxable salaries
and wages in excess of $750,000.

Since this taxation equivalent is notional - that is, it is
payable to the “Council” as the owner of business
operations, it represents an internal payment and
has no effect on the operations of the council.
Accordingly, there is no need for disclosure of
internal charges in Council's General Purpose
Financial Statements.
The rate applied of 30% is the equivalent company
tax rate prevalent as at balance date. No
adjustments have been made for variations that have
occurred during the year.
Local Government Rates & Charges

In accordance with the guidelines for Best Practice
Management of Water Supply and Sewerage, a
payment for the amount calculated as the annual tax
equivalent charges (excluding income tax) must be
paid from Water Supply and Sewerage Business
activities.

A calculation of the equivalent rates and charges
payable on all Category 1 businesses has been
applied to all land assets owned or exclusively used
by the Business Activity.

The payment of taxation equivalent charges, referred
in the Best Practice Management of Water Supply
and Sewerage Guides to as a “Dividend for Taxation
equivalent”, may be applied for any purpose allowed
under the Local Government Act, 1993.

The debt guarantee fee is designed to ensure that
council business activities face “true” commercial
borrowing costs in line with private sector
competitors.

Loan & Debt Guarantee Fees
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Cabonne Council
Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2015

Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies
In order to calculate a debt guarantee fee, council
has determined what the differential borrowing rate
would have been between the commercial rate and
the council’s borrowing rate for its business activities.

(ii) Subsidies
Government policy requires that subsidies provided
to customers and the funding of those subsidies
must be explicitly disclosed.
Subsidies occur where council provides services on
a less than cost recovery basis. This option is
exercised on a range of services in order for council
to meet its community service obligations.
Accordingly, Subsidies disclosed (in relation to
National Competition Policy) represents the
difference between revenue generated from ‘rate of
return’ pricing and revenue generated from prices set
by the council in any given financial year.
The overall effect of subsidies is contained within the
Income Statement of each reported Business
Activity.

(iii) Return on Investments (Rate of Return)
The Policy statement requires that councils with
Category 1 businesses “would be expected to
generate a return on capital funds employed that is
comparable to rates of return for private businesses
operating in a similar field”.

The actual rate of return achieved by each Business
Activity is disclosed at the foot of each respective
Income Statement.

(iv) Dividends
Council is not required to pay dividends to either
itself (as owner of a range of businesses) or to any
external entities.
Local Government Water Supply and Sewerage
Businesses are permitted to pay an annual dividend
from its water supply or sewerage business surplus.
The dividend, calculated and approved in
accordance with the Best Practice Management
Guidelines, must not exceed either:
(i)

50% of this surplus in any one year, or

(ii) the number of water supply or sewerage
assessments at 30 June 2015 multiplied by $30
(less the payment for tax equivalent charges, not
exceeding $3 per assessment).

In accordance with the guidelines for Best Practice
Management of Water Supply and Sewerage, a
Dividend Payment form, Statement of Compliance,
Unqualified Independent Financial Audit Report and
Compliance Audit Report are required to be
submitted to the NSW Office of Water prior to making
the dividend and only after it has approved the
payment.

Such funds are subsequently available for meeting
commitments or financing future investment
strategies.
The Rate of Return on Capital is calculated as
follows:
Operating Result before Capital Income + Interest
Expense
Written Down Value of I,PP&E as at 30 June

As a minimum, business activities should generate a
return equal to the Commonwealth 10 year bond rate
which is 3.02% at 30/6/15.
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Cabonne Council
Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2015

Note 2. Water Supply Business
Best Practice Management disclosure requirements
2015

Dollars Amounts shown below are in WHOLE DOLLARS (unless otherwise indicated)

1. Calculation and Payment of Tax-Equivalents
[All Local Government Local Water Utilities must pay this dividend for tax-equivalents]

(i)

Calculated Tax Equivalents

(ii)

No of assessments multiplied by $3/assessment

(iii)

Amounts payable for Tax Equivalents [lesser of (i) and (ii)]

-

(iv)

Amounts actually paid for Tax Equivalents

-

3,606

2. Dividend from Surplus
(i)
50% of Surplus before Dividends

-

[Calculated in accordance with Best Practice Management for Water Supply and Sewerage Guidelines]

(ii)

No. of assessments multiplied by $30/assessment, less tax equivalent
charges/assessment

(iii)

Cumulative surplus before Dividends for the 3 years to 30 June 2015, less the
cumulative dividends paid for the 2 years to 30 June 2014 & 30 June 2013
2015 Surplus

(108,000)

(111,000)
-

2014 Surplus
2014 Dividend

2013 Surplus
2013 Dividend

36,060

(614,000)

(395,000)
-

(iv)

Maximum dividend from surplus [least of (i), (ii) and (iii) above]

(v)

Dividend actually paid from surplus [refer below for required pre-dividend payment Criteria]

n/a
-

3. Required outcomes for 6 Criteria

[To be eligible for the payment of a "Dividend from Surplus", ALL the Criteria below need a "YES"]

(i)

Completion of Strategic Business Plan (including Financial Plan)

YES

Full Cost Recovery, without significant cross subsidies

YES

- Complying charges [Item 2(b) in Table 1]

YES

- DSP with Commercial Developer Charges [Item 2(e) in Table 1]

YES

- If Dual Water Supplies, Complying Charges [Item 2(g) in Table 1]

NO

(iii)

Sound Water Conservation and Demand Management implemented

YES

(iv)

Sound Drought Management implemented

YES

(v)

Complete Performance Reporting Form

YES

(vi)

a. Integrated Water Cycle Management Evaluation

YES

b. Complete and implement Integrated Water Cycle Management Strategy

YES

(ii)

[Refer Item 2(a) in Table 1 on page 22 of the Best Practice Guidelines]

(by 15 September each year)
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Cabonne Council
Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2015

Note 2. Water Supply Business
Best Practice Management disclosure requirements (continued)
2015

Dollars Amounts shown below are in WHOLE DOLLARS (unless otherwise indicated)

National Water Initiative (NWI) Financial Performance Indicators
NWI F1

Total Revenue (Water)

$'000

900

Total Income (w13) - Grants for the Acquisition of Assets (w11a) - Interest Income (w9)
- Aboriginal Communities W&S Program Income (w10a)

NWI F4

Revenue from Residential Usage Charges (Water)

%

56.07%

Income from Residential Usage Charges (w6b) x 100 divided by the sum of
[Income from Residential Usage Charges (w6a) + Income from Residential
Access Charges (w6b)]

NWI F9

Written Down Replacement Cost of Fixed Assets (Water)

$'000

24,572

$'000

609

$'000

455

Written down current cost of system assets (w47)

NWI F11

Operating Cost (OMA) (Water)
Management Expenses (w1) + Operational & Maintenance Expenses (w2)

NWI F14

Capital Expenditure (Water)
Acquisition of fixed assets (w16)

NWI F17

Economic Real Rate of Return (Water)

%

-0.76%

[Total Income (w13) - Interest Income (w9) - Grants for acquisition of assets (w11a) Operating Costs (NWI F11) - Current Cost Depreciation (w3)] x 100 divided by
[Written Down Current Cost of System Assets (w47) + Plant & Equipment (w33b)]

NWI F26

Capital Works Grants (Water)

-

$'000

Grants for the Acquisition of Assets (w11a)

Notes:

1.

References to w (eg. w12) refer to item numbers within Special Schedules No. 3 & 4 of
Council's Annual Financial Statements.

2.

The NWI Performance Indicators are based upon the National Performance Framework
Handbook for Urban Performance Reporting Indicators & Definitions.
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Cabonne Council
Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2015

Note 3. Sewerage Business
Best Practice Management disclosure requirements
2015

Dollars Amounts shown below are in WHOLE DOLLARS (unless otherwise indicated)

1. Calculation and Payment of Tax-Equivalents
[All Local Government Local Water Utilities must pay this dividend for tax-equivalents]

(i)

Calculated Tax Equivalents

(ii)

No of assessments multiplied by $3/assessment

(iii)

Amounts payable for Tax Equivalents [lesser of (i) and (ii)]

-

(iv)

Amounts actually paid for Tax Equivalents

-

4,698

2. Dividend from Surplus
(i)

-

50% of Surplus before Dividends
[Calculated in accordance with Best Practice Management for Water Supply and Sewerage Guidelines]

(ii)

No. of assessments x ($30 less tax equivalent charges per assessment)

(iii)

Cumulative surplus before dividends for the 3 years to 30 June 2015, less the
cumulative dividends paid for the 2 years to 30 June 2014 & 30 June 2013
2015 Surplus

(466,000)

2014 Surplus
2014 Dividend

(280,000)
-

2013 Surplus
2013 Dividend

46,980
(1,055,000)

(309,000)
-

(iv)

Maximum dividend from surplus [least of (i), (ii) and (iii) above]

(v)

Dividend actually paid from surplus [refer below for required pre-dividend payment Criteria]

n/a
-

3. Required outcomes for 4 Criteria
[To be eligible for the payment of a "Dividend from Surplus", ALL the Criteria below need a "YES"]

(i)
(ii)

Completion of Strategic Business Plan (including Financial Plan)

YES

Pricing with full cost-recovery, without significant cross subsidies

YES

[Refer Item 2(a) in Table 1 on page 22 of the Best Practice Guidelines]

Complying charges

(a)

Residential [Item 2(c) in Table 1]

YES

(b)

Non Residential [Item 2(c) in Table 1]

YES

(c)

Trade Waste [Item 2(d) in Table 1]

YES

DSP with Commercial Developer Charges [Item 2(e) in Table 1]

YES

Liquid Trade Waste Approvals & Policy [Item 2(f) in Table 1]

YES

(iii)

Complete Performance Reporting Form

YES

(iv)

a. Integrated Water Cycle Management Evaluation

YES

b. Complete and implement Integrated Water Cycle Management Strategy

YES

(by 15 September each year)
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Cabonne Council
Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2015

Note 3. Sewerage Business
Best Practice Management disclosure requirements (continued)
2015

Dollars Amounts shown below are in WHOLE DOLLARS (unless otherwise indicated)

National Water Initiative (NWI) Financial Performance Indicators
NWI F2

Total Revenue (Sewerage)

$'000

1,651

$'000

39,295

$'000

1,399

$'000

1,477

Total Income (s14) - Grants for Acquisition of Assets (s12a) - Interest Income (s10)
- Aboriginal Communities W&S Program Income (w10a)

NWI F10

Written Down Replacement Cost of Fixed Assets (Sewerage)
Written down current cost of system assets (s48)

NWI F12

Operating Cost (Sewerage)
Management Expenses (s1) + Operational & Maintenance Expenses (s2)

NWI F15

Capital Expenditure (Sewerage)
Acquisition of Fixed Assets (s17)

NWI F18

Economic Real Rate of Return (Sewerage)

%

-1.17%

[Total Income (s14) - Interest Income (s10) - Grants for acquisition of Assets (s12a)
- Operating cost (NWI F12) - Current cost depreciation (s3)] x 100 divided by
[Written down current cost (ie. WDCC) of System Assets (s48) + Plant & Equipment (s34b)]

NWI F27

Capital Works Grants (Sewerage)

$'000

1,374

$'000

2,551

Grants for the Acquisition of Assets (12a)

National Water Initiative (NWI) Financial Performance Indicators
Water & Sewer (combined)
NWI F3

Total Income (Water & Sewerage)
Total Income (w13 + s14) + Gain/Loss on disposal of assets (w14 + s15)
minus Grants for acquisition of assets (w11a + s12a) - Interest Income (w9 + s10)

NWI F8

Revenue from Community Service Obligations (Water & Sewerage)

%

1.45%

Community Service Obligations (NWI F25) x 100 divided by Total Income (NWI F3)

NWI F16

Capital Expenditure (Water & Sewerage)

$'000

1,932

Acquisition of Fixed Assets (w16 + s17)

NWI F19

Economic Real Rate of Return (Water & Sewerage)

%

-1.01%

[Total Income (w13 + s14) - Interest Income (w9 + s10) - Grants for acquisition of assets
(w11a + s12a) - Operating Cost (NWI F11 + NWI F12) - Current cost depreciation (w3 + s3)] x 100
divided by [Written down replacement cost of fixed assets (NWI F9 + NWI F10)
+ Plant & equipment (w33b + s34b)]

NWI F20

Dividend (Water & Sewerage)

-

$'000

Dividend paid from surplus (2(v) of Note 2 + 2(v) of Note 3)

NWI F21

Dividend Payout Ratio (Water & Sewerage)

%

0.00%

Dividend (NWI F20) x 100 divided by Net Profit after tax (NWI F24)
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Cabonne Council
Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2015

Note 3. Sewerage Business
Best Practice Management disclosure requirements (continued)
2015

Dollars Amounts shown below are in WHOLE DOLLARS (unless otherwise indicated)

National Water Initiative (NWI) Financial Performance Indicators
Water & Sewer (combined)
NWI F22

Net Debt to Equity (Water & Sewerage)

%

-3.48%

Overdraft (w36 + s37) + Borrowings (w38 + s39) - Cash & Investments (w30 + s31)
x 100 divided by [Total Assets (w35 + s36) - Total Liabilities (w40 + s41)]

NWI F23

-

Interest Cover (Water & Sewerage)
Earnings before Interest & Tax (EBIT) divided by Net Interest
Earnings before Interest & Tax (EBIT):

-

675

Operating Result (w15a + s16a) + Interest expense (w4a + s4a) - Interest Income (w9 + s10)
- Gain/Loss on disposal of assets (w14 + s15) + Miscellaneous Expenses (w4b + w4c + s4b + s4c)
Net Interest:

-

175

Interest Expense (w4a + s4a) - Interest Income (w9 + s10)

NWI F24

Net Profit After Tax (Water & Sewerage)

$'000

(500)

Surplus before dividends (w15a + s16a) - Tax equivalents paid (Note 2-1(iv) + Note 3-1(iv))

NWI F25

Community Service Obligations (Water & Sewerage)

$'000

37

Grants for Pensioner Rebates (w11b + s12b)

Notes:

1.

References to w (eg. s12) refer to item numbers within Special Schedules No. 5 & 6 of
Council's Annual Financial Statements.

2.

The NWI Performance Indicators are based upon the National Performance Framework Handbook
for Urban Performance Reporting Indicators & Definitions.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ON THE SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
CABONNE COUNCIL
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the special purpose financial statements of Cabonne Council for the year ended 30 June 2015,
comprising the Statement by Council, Income Statement by Business Activities, Statement of Financial Position by
Business Activities, and accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements. Our audit responsibility does not extend to the
best practice management disclosures in Notes 2 and 3 and accordingly we express no opinion on them.
Councils’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Council are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements and have determined
that the accounting policies described in Note 1 to the financial statements which form part of the financial statements
are appropriate to meet the financial reporting requirements of the Council and the Office of Local Government for the
purpose of fulfilling the requirements of National Competition Policy reporting. The Council's responsibility also includes
establishing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.
Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. No opinion is expressed as to
whether the accounting policies used, as described in Note 1, are appropriate to meet the needs of the Council. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards require that we comply
with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Council as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
Independence

In conducting our audit, we followed applicable independence requirements of Australian professional ethical
pronouncements.

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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Matters Relating to the Electronic Presentation of the Audited Financial Statements

This auditor’s report relates to the special purpose financial statements of Cabonne Council (Council) for the year ended
30 June 2015 included on Council’s web site. Council is responsible for the integrity of their web site. We have not been
engaged to report on the integrity of the web site. The auditor’s report refers only to the statements named above. It
does not provide an opinion on any other information which may have been hyperlinked to/from these statements. If
users of this report are concerned with the inherent risks arising from electronic data communications they are advised
to refer to the hard copy of the audited financial statements to confirm the information included in the audited financial
statements presented on this web site.
Audit Opinion

In our opinion, the special purpose financial statements of Cabonne Council are presented fairly in accordance with the
requirements of those applicable accounting policies detailed in Note 1, the accounting requirements of the Local
Government Act 1993 and the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting.
Basis of Accounting

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 to the financial statements, which describes the basis of
accounting. The special purpose financial statements have been prepared for distribution to the Council and the Office of
Local Government for the purpose of fulfilling the requirements of National Competition Policy reporting. As a result, the
financial statements may not be suitable for another purpose. We disclaim any assumption of responsibility for any
reliance on this report or on the financial statements to which it relates to any person other than the Council or the
Office of Local Government or for any purpose other than for which the statements were prepared.

14 Sale Street
Orange
Dated: 28 October 2015
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Cabonne Council
SPECIAL SCHEDULES
for the year ended 30 June 2015

“…providing sustainable local government to our rural communities
through consultation and sound financial management”

Special Schedules 2015

Cabonne Council
Special Schedules

for the financial year ended 30 June 2015

Contents

Page

Special Schedules1
- Special Schedule No. 1

Net Cost of Services

- Special Schedule No. 2(a)
- Special Schedule No. 2(b)

Statement of Long Term Debt (all purposes)
Statement of Internal Loans (Sect. 410(3) LGA 1993)

4
n/a

- Special Schedule No. 3
- Special Schedule No. 4

Water Supply Operations - incl. Income Statement
Water Supply - Statement of Financial Position

5
9

- Special Schedule No. 5
- Special Schedule No. 6

Sewerage Service Operations - incl. Income Statement
Sewerage Service - Statement of Financial Position

10
14

2

15

- Notes to Special Schedules No. 3 & 5
- Special Schedule No. 7

Report on Infrastructure Assets (as at 30 June 2015)

16

- Special Schedule No. 8

Financial Projections

n/a

- Special Schedule No. 9

Permissible Income Calculation

22

1

Special Schedules are not audited (with the exception of Special Schedule 9).
Background
(i)

These Special Schedules have been designed to meet the requirements of special purpose users such as;





(ii)

the NSW Grants Commission
the Australian Bureau of Statistics (ABS),
the NSW Office of Water (NOW), and
the Office of Local Government (OLG).

The financial data is collected for various uses including;






the allocation of Financial Assistance Grants,
the incorporation of Local Government financial figures in national statistics,
the monitoring of loan approvals,
the allocation of borrowing rights, and
the monitoring of the financial activities of specific services.
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Cabonne Council
Special Schedule No. 1 - Net Cost of Services
for the financial year ended 30 June 2015

$'000
Function or Activity

Expenses from.
Continuing.
Operations.

Income from
continuing operations
Non Capital.

Capital.

Net Cost.
of Services.

955

194

-

(761)

2,673

479

-

(2,194)

Public Order and Safety
Fire Service Levy, Fire Protection,
Emergency Services
Beach Control
Enforcement of Local Govt. Regulations
Animal Control
Other
Total Public Order & Safety

601
194
795

15
5
20

203
203

(383)
(189)
(572)

Health

581

110

-

(471)

Environment
Noxious Plants and Insect/Vermin Control
Other Environmental Protection
Solid Waste Management
Street Cleaning
Drainage
Stormwater Management
Total Environment

1,621
1,326
1,387
224
15
96
4,669

1,364
12
1,254
38
74
2,742

220
88
308

(257)
(1,094)
(45)
(186)
(15)
(22)
(1,619)

Community Services and Education
Administration & Education
Social Protection (Welfare)
Aged Persons and Disabled
Children's Services
Total Community Services & Education

151
702
1,216
2,069

20
619
998
1,637

-

(131)
(83)
(218)
(432)

75
305
23
403

30
30

(69)
(186)
(128)
24
104
(255)
(97)

Governance
Administration

Housing and Community Amenities
Public Cemeteries
Public Conveniences
Street Lighting
Town Planning
Other Community Amenities
Total Housing and Community Amenities

174
186
128
281
(81)
688

Water Supplies

1,092

985

10

Sewerage Services

2,133

1,668

1,438

973
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Cabonne Council
Special Schedule No. 1 - Net Cost of Services (continued)
for the financial year ended 30 June 2015

$'000
Expenses from.
Continuing.
Operations.

Function or Activity

Recreation and Culture
Public Libraries
Museums
Art Galleries
Community Centres and Halls
Performing Arts Venues
Other Performing Arts
Other Cultural Services
Sporting Grounds and Venues
Swimming Pools
Parks & Gardens (Lakes)
Other Sport and Recreation
Total Recreation and Culture

Income from
continuing operations
Non Capital.

Capital.

Net Cost.
of Services.

(116)
(214)
(302)
(142)
(224)
(594)
(588)
(65)
(2,245)

367
218
314
146
504
594
604
141
2,888

51
4
5
4
6
16
15
101

200
7
274
61
542

Fuel & Energy

-

-

-

-

Agriculture

-

-

-

-

1,855
1,855

1,746
1,746

-

(109)
(109)

330
2,427
1,493
2,574
249
118
206
5,039
12,436

718
1,476
1,006
60
5,663
8,923

700
300
79
9
1,088

388
(2,427)
683
(1,268)
(249)
(118)
(67)
633
(2,425)

221
1,167
1,388

123
309
432

-

(98)
(858)
(956)

34,222

19,440

3,619

(11,163)

Mining, Manufacturing and Construction

Building Control
Other Mining, Manufacturing & Construction
Total Mining, Manufacturing and Const.
Transport and Communication
Urban Roads (UR) - Local
Urban Roads - Regional
Sealed Rural Roads (SRR) - Local
Sealed Rural Roads (SRR) - Regional
Unsealed Rural Roads (URR) - Local
Unsealed Rural Roads (URR) - Regional
Bridges on UR - Local
Bridges on SRR - Local
Bridges on URR - Local
Bridges on Regional Roads
Parking Areas
Footpaths
Aerodromes
Other Transport & Communication
Total Transport and Communication
Economic Affairs
Camping Areas & Caravan Parks
Other Economic Affairs
Total Economic Affairs

Totals – Functions
General Purpose Revenues

(2)

Share of interests - joint ventures &
associates using the equity method

14,927

14,927

-

227

227

34,222

34,594

NET OPERATING RESULT

(1)

(1) As reported in the Income Statement

(2) Includes: Rates & Annual Charges (incl. Ex Gratia, excl. Water & Sewer), Non Capital General Purpose Grants,

3,619

3,991

Interest on Investments (excl. Ext. Restricted Assets) & Interest on overdue Rates & Annual Charges
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Cabonne Council
Special Schedule No. 2(a) - Statement of Long Term Debt (all purpose)
for the financial year ended 30 June 2015

$'000
Principal outstanding
at beginning of the year
Classification of Debt
Loans (by Source)
Commonwealth Government
Treasury Corporation
Other State Government
Public Subscription
Financial Institutions
Other
Total Loans

Other Long Term Debt
Ratepayers Advances
Government Advances
Finance Leases
Deferred Payments
Total Long Term Debt

Total Debt

New
Loans
raised
during
the year

From
Revenue

Sinking
Funds

Debt redemption
during the year

Transfers Interest
to Sinking applicable
for Year
Funds

Current

Non
Current

177
177

2,706
2,706

2,883
2,883

-

176
176

-

-

3
3

6
6

9
9

-

3
3

-

180

2,712

2,892

-

179

-

Total

Principal outstanding
at the end of the year
Current

Non
Current

170
170

189
189

2,518
2,518

2,707
2,707

-

-

3
3

3
3

6
6

-

170

192

2,521

2,713

Total

Notes: Excludes (i) Internal Loans & (ii) Principal Inflows/Outflows relating to Loan Re-Financing.
This Schedule is prepared using the face value of debt obligations, rather than fair value (which are reported in the GPFS).
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Cabonne Council
Special Schedule No. 3 - Water Supply Income Statement
Includes ALL INTERNAL TRANSACTIONS, ie. prepared on a Gross Basis.
for the financial year ended 30 June 2015

Actuals
2015

Actuals
2014

104
-

122
-

66
14

57

- Mains
c. Operation expenses
d. Maintenance expenses

147
5

116

- Reservoirs
e. Operation expenses
f. Maintenance expenses

36
4

33

- Pumping Stations
g. Operation expenses (excluding energy costs)
h. Energy costs
i. Maintenance expenses

36
24
4

80

- Treatment
j. Operation expenses (excluding chemical costs)
k. Chemical costs
l. Maintenance expenses

89
10
21

138

- Other
m. Operation expenses
n. Maintenance expenses
o. Purchase of water

49
-

98
-

415
69

469
-

-

-

1,093

1,113

$'000

A

Expenses and Income
Expenses

1.

Management expenses
a. Administration
b. Engineering and Supervision

2.

Operation and Maintenance expenses
- Dams & Weirs
a. Operation expenses
b. Maintenance expenses

3.

Depreciation expenses
a. System assets
b. Plant and equipment

4.

Miscellaneous expenses
a. Interest expenses
b. Revaluation Decrements
c. Other expenses
d. Impairment - System assets
e. Impairment - Plant and equipment
f. Aboriginal Communities Water & Sewerage Program
g. Tax Equivalents Dividends (actually paid)

5.

Total expenses
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Cabonne Council
Special Schedule No. 3 - Water Supply Income Statement (continued)
Includes ALL INTERNAL TRANSACTIONS, ie. prepared on a Gross Basis.
for the financial year ended 30 June 2015

$'000

Actuals
2015

Actuals
2014

Income
6.

Residential charges
a. Access (including rates)
b. Usage charges

297
379

253
412

7.

Non-residential charges
a. Access (including rates)
b. Usage charges

65
128

59
138

8.

Extra charges

-

-

9.

Interest income

95

113

9
-

13
-

11. Grants
a. Grants for acquisition of assets
b. Grants for pensioner rebates
c. Other grants

12
-

13
-

12. Contributions
a. Developer charges
b. Developer provided assets
c. Other contributions

10

36

995

1,037

-

-

10. Other income
10a. Aboriginal Communities Water and Sewerage Program

13. Total income
14. Gain (or loss) on disposal of assets
15. Operating Result

(98)

(76)

15a. Operating Result (less grants for acquisition of assets)

(98)

(76)
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Cabonne Council
Special Schedule No. 3 - Water Supply Income Statement (continued)
Includes ALL INTERNAL TRANSACTIONS, ie. prepared on a Gross Basis.
for the financial year ended 30 June 2015

Actuals
2015

Actuals
2014

434
8
13

531
-

17. Repayment of debt
a. Loans
b. Advances
c. Finance leases

-

-

18. Transfer to sinking fund

-

-

455

531

20. Proceeds from disposal of assets

-

-

21. Borrowing utilised
a. Loans
b. Advances
c. Finance leases

-

-

22. Transfer from sinking fund

-

-

23. Totals

-

-

965
68
160
9

1,109
68
173
3

$'000

B

Capital transactions

Non-operating expenditures

16. Acquisition of Fixed Assets
a. New Assets for Improved Standards
b. New Assets for Growth
c. Renewals
d. Plant and equipment

19. Totals

Non-operating funds employed

C

Rates and charges

24. Number of assessments
a. Residential (occupied)
b. Residential (unoccupied, ie. vacant lot)
c. Non-residential (occupied)
d. Non-residential (unoccupied, ie. vacant lot)
25. Number of ETs for which developer charges were received
26. Total amount of pensioner rebates (actual dollars)

$

ET

22,006

$

ET

23,452
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Cabonne Council
Special Schedule No. 3 - Water Supply Cross Subsidies
for the financial year ended 30 June 2015

$'000

D

Yes

No

Amount

Best practice annual charges and developer charges*

27. Annual charges
a. Does Council have best-practice water supply annual charges
and usage charges*?

Yes

If Yes, go to 28a.
If No, please report if council has removed land value from access
charges (ie rates)?
NB. Such

charges for both residential customers and non-residential
customers comply with section 3.2 of Water Supply, Sewerage and
Trade Waste Pricing Guidelines, NSW Office of Water, December,
2002. Such charges do not involve significant cross subsidies.

b. Cross-subsidy from residential customers using less than
allowance (page 25 of Guidelines)
c. Cross-subsidy to non-residential customers (page 24 of Guidelines)
d. Cross-subsidy to large connections in unmetered supplies
(page 26 of Guidelines)
28. Developer charges
a. Has council completed a water supply Development Servicing**
Plan?

Yes

b. Total cross-subsidy in water supply developer charges for
2014/15 (page 47 of Guidelines)
** In accordance with page 9 of Developer Charges Guidelines for
Water Supply, Sewerage and Stormwater, NSW Office of Water,
December, 2002.
29. Disclosure of cross-subsidies
Total of cross-subsidies (27b +27c + 27d + 28b)

-

* Councils which have not yet implemented best practice water supply
pricing should disclose cross-subsidies in items 27b, 27c and 27d above.
However, disclosure of cross-subsidies is not required where a Council
has implemented best practice pricing and is phasing in such pricing over
a period of 3 years.
page 8

Special Schedules 2015

Cabonne Council
Special Schedule No. 4 - Water Supply Statement of Financial Position
Includes INTERNAL TRANSACTIONS, ie. prepared on a Gross Basis.
as at 30 June 2015

Actuals
Current

Actuals
Non Current

Actuals
Total

2,993

-

2,993

13
519
42

7
20
-

20
539
42

32. Inventories

-

-

-

33. Property, plant and equipment
a. System assets
b. Plant and equipment

-

24,572
820

24,572
820

34. Other assets

-

-

-

35. Total assets

3,567

25,419

28,986

57

-

57

-

-

-

-

-

-

57

-

57

3,510

25,419

28,929

$'000

ASSETS
30. Cash and investments
a. Developer charges
b. Special purpose grants
c. Accrued leave
d. Unexpended loans
e. Sinking fund
f. Other
31. Receivables
a. Specific purpose grants
b. Rates and Availability Charges
c. User Charges
d. Other

LIABILITIES
36. Bank overdraft
37. Creditors
38. Borrowings
a. Loans
b. Advances
c. Finance leases
39. Provisions
a. Tax equivalents
b. Dividend
c. Other
40. Total liabilities
41. NET ASSETS COMMITTED
EQUITY
42. Accumulated surplus
43 Asset revaluation reserve

11,364
17,565

44. TOTAL EQUITY

28,929

45.
46.
47.

Note to system assets:
Current replacement cost of system assets
Accumulated current cost depreciation of system assets
Written down current cost of system assets

45,463
(20,891)
24,572
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Cabonne Council
Special Schedule No. 5 - Sewerage Service Income Statement
Includes ALL INTERNAL TRANSACTIONS, ie. prepared on a Gross Basis.
for the financial year ended 30 June 2015

$'000

Actuals
2015

Actuals
2014

A

Expenses and Income
Expenses

1.

Management expenses
a. Administration
b. Engineering and Supervision

620
-

162
244

2.

Operation and Maintenance expenses
- Mains
a. Operation expenses
b. Maintenance expenses

138
32

81

- Pumping Stations
c. Operation expenses (excluding energy costs)
d. Energy costs
e. Maintenance expenses

148
19
20

2
25
162

- Treatment
f. Operation expenses (excl. chemical, energy, effluent & biosolids management costs)
g. Chemical costs
h. Energy costs
i. Effluent Management
j. Biosolids Management
k. Maintenance expenses

297
26
57
31

303

11
-

92

543
191

782

-

-

2,133

1,853

- Other
l. Operation expenses
m. Maintenance expenses
3.

Depreciation expenses
a. System assets
b. Plant and equipment

4.

Miscellaneous expenses
a. Interest expenses
b. Revaluation Decrements
c. Other expenses
d. Impairment - System assets
e. Impairment - Plant and equipment
f. Aboriginal Communities Water & Sewerage Program
g. Tax Equivalents Dividends (actually paid)

5.

Total expenses
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Cabonne Council
Special Schedule No. 5 - Sewerage Service Income Statement (continued)
Includes ALL INTERNAL TRANSACTIONS, ie. prepared on a Gross Basis.
for the financial year ended 30 June 2015

$'000

Actuals
2015

Actuals
2014

1,208

1,143

183
49

179
45

Income
6.

Residential charges (including rates)

7.

Non-residential charges
a. Access (including rates)
b. Usage charges

8.

Trade Waste Charges
a. Annual Fees
b. Usage charges
c. Excess mass charges
d. Re-inspection fees

7
-

8
-

9.

Extra charges

-

-

80

64

6
-

10
-

1,374
25
94

3,329
26
-

64
15

98
73

3,105

4,975

-

-

972

3,122

10. Interest income
11. Other income
11a. Aboriginal Communities Water & Sewerage Program
12. Grants
a. Grants for acquisition of assets
b. Grants for pensioner rebates
c. Other grants
13. Contributions
a. Developer charges
b. Developer provided assets
c. Other contributions
14. Total income
15. Gain (or loss) on disposal of assets
16. Operating Result
16a. Operating Result (less grants for acquisition of assets)

(402)

(207)
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Cabonne Council
Special Schedule No. 5 - Sewerage Service Income Statement (continued)
Includes ALL INTERNAL TRANSACTIONS, ie. prepared on a Gross Basis.
for the financial year ended 30 June 2015

Actuals
2015

Actuals
2014

1,452
25

223
10

177
3
-

92
3
-

-

-

1,657

328

21. Proceeds from disposal of assets

-

-

22. Borrowing utilised
a. Loans
b. Advances
c. Finance leases

-

-

23. Transfer from sinking fund

-

-

24. Totals

-

-

25. Number of assessments
a. Residential (occupied)
b. Residential (unoccupied, ie. vacant lot)
c. Non-residential (occupied)
d. Non-residential (unoccupied, ie. vacant lot)

1,257
110
181
18

1,849
189
269
17

26. Number of ETs for which developer charges were received

-

-

$'000

B

Capital transactions

Non-operating expenditures

17. Acquisition of Fixed Assets
a. New Assets for Improved Standards
b. New Assets for Growth
c. Renewals
d. Plant and equipment
18. Repayment of debt
a. Loans
b. Advances
c. Finance leases
19. Transfer to sinking fund
20. Totals
Non-operating funds employed

C

Rates and charges

27. Total amount of pensioner rebates (actual dollars)

$

ET

46,082

$

ET

45,637
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Cabonne Council
Special Schedule No. 5 - Sewerage Service Cross Subsidies
for the financial year ended 30 June 2015

$'000

D

Yes

No

Amount

Best practice annual charges and developer charges*

28. Annual charges
a. Does Council have best-practice sewerage annual charges,
usage charges and trade waste fees & charges*?

Yes

If Yes, go to 29a.
If No, please report if council has removed land value from access
charges (ie rates)?
NB. Such

charges for both residential customers and non-residential
customers comply with section 4.2 & 4.3 of the Water Supply,
Sewerage and Trade Waste Pricing Guidelines, NSW Office of
Water, December, 2002. Such charges do not involve significant
cross subsidies.

b. Cross-subsidy to non-residential customers (page 45 of Guidelines)
c. Cross-subsidy to trade waste discharges (page 46 of Guidelines)
29. Developer charges
a. Has council completed a sewerage Development Servicing**
Plan?

Yes

b. Total cross-subsidy in sewerage developer charges for
2014/15 (page 47 of Guidelines)
** In accordance with page 9 of Developer Charges Guidelines for
Water Supply, Sewerage and Stormwater, NSW Office of Water,
December, 2002.
30. Disclosure of cross-subsidies
Total of cross-subsidies (28b + 28c + 29b)

-

* Councils which have not yet implemented best practice sewer pricing &
liquid waste prising should disclose cross-subsidies in items 28b and 28c
above.
However, disclosure of cross-subsidies is not required where a Council
has implemented best practice sewerage and liquid waste pricing and
is phasing in such pricing over a period of 3 years.
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Cabonne Council
Special Schedule No. 6 - Sewerage Service Statement of Financial Position
Includes INTERNAL TRANSACTIONS, ie. prepared on a Gross Basis.
as at 30 June 2015

Actuals
Current

Actuals
Non Current

Actuals
Total

11
2,172

-

11
2,172

26
836
334

111
7

137
836
341

33. Inventories

-

-

-

34. Property, plant and equipment
a. System assets
b. Plant and equipment

-

39,295
1,949

39,295
1,949

35. Other assets

-

-

-

36. Total Assets

3,379

41,362

44,741

83

-

83

190
-

2,518
-

2,708
-

-

-

-

273

2,518

2,791

3,106

38,844

41,950

$'000

ASSETS
31. Cash and investments
a. Developer charges
b. Special purpose grants
c. Accrued leave
d. Unexpended loans
e. Sinking fund
f. Other
32. Receivables
a. Specific purpose grants
b. Rates and Availability Charges
c. User Charges
d. Other

LIABILITIES
37. Bank overdraft
38. Creditors
39. Borrowings
a. Loans
b. Advances
c. Finance leases
40. Provisions
a. Tax equivalents
b. Dividend
c. Other
41. Total Liabilities
42. NET ASSETS COMMITTED
EQUITY
42. Accumulated surplus
44. Asset revaluation reserve

25,499
16,451

45. TOTAL EQUITY

41,950

46.
47.
48.

Note to system assets:
Current replacement cost of system assets
Accumulated current cost depreciation of system assets
Written down current cost of system assets

50,418
(11,123)
39,295
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Cabonne Council
Notes to Special Schedule No.'s 3 & 5
for the financial year ended 30 June 2015

Administration

(1)

Engineering and supervision

(1)

(item 1a of Special Schedules 3 and 5) comprises the following:

(item 1b of Special Schedules 3 and 5) comprises the following:

•

Administration staff:
− Salaries and allowance
− Travelling expenses
− Accrual of leave entitlements
− Employment overheads.

•

Engineering staff:
− Salaries and allowance
− Travelling expenses
− Accrual of leave entitlements
− Employment overheads.

•

Meter reading.

•

•

Bad and doubtful debts.

•

Other administrative/corporate support services.

Other technical and supervision staff:
− Salaries and allowance
− Travelling expenses
− Accrual of leave entitlements
− Employment overheads.

Operational expenses (item 2 of Special Schedules 3 and 5) comprise the day to day operational expenses
excluding maintenance expenses.
Maintenance expenses (item 2 of Special Schedules 3 and 5) comprise the day to day repair and maintenance
expenses. (Refer to Section 5 of the Local Government Asset Accounting Manual regarding capitalisation
principles and the distinction between capital and maintenance expenditure).
Other expenses (item 4c of Special Schedules 3 and 5) includes all expenses not recorded elsewhere.
Revaluation decrements (item 4b of Special Schedules 3 and 5) is to be used when I,PP&E decreases in FV.
Impairment Losses (item 4d & 4e of Special Schedules 3 and 5) are to be used when the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount (refer to page D-31).
Aboriginal Communities Water and Sewerage Program (item 4f of Special Schedules 3 and 5) is to be
used when operation and maintenance work has been undertaken on behalf of the Aboriginal Communities
Water and Sewerage Program. Similarly, income for item 11a of Special Schedule 3 and item 12a of Special
Schedule 5 are for services provided to the Aboriginal Communities Water and Sewerage Program and is not
part of Council’s water supply and sewerage revenue.
Residential charges (2) (items 6a, 6b and item 6 of Special Schedules 3 and 5 respectively) include all income
from residential charges. Item 6 of Schedule 3 should be separated into 6a Access Charges (including rates if
applicable) and 6b Usage Charges.
Non-residential charges (2) (items 7a, 7b of Special Schedules 3 and 5) include all income from non-residential
charges separated into 7a Access Charges (including rates if applicable) and 7b Usage Charges.
Trade waste charges (item 8 of Special Schedule 5) include all income from trade waste charges separated
into 8a Annual Fees, 8b Usage Charges and 8c Excess Mass Charges and 8d Re-inspection Fees.
Other income (items 10 and 11 of Special Schedules 3 and 5 respectively) include all income not recorded
elsewhere.
Other contributions (items 12c and 13c of Special Schedules 3 and 5 respectively) incl. capital contributions
for water supply or sewerage services received by Council under Section 565 of the Local Government Act.
Notes:
Administration and engineering costs for the development of capital works projects should be reported as part of the
capital cost of the project and not as part of the recurrent expenditure (ie. in item 16 for water supply and item 17 for
sewerage, and not in items 1a and 1b).

(1)

(2)

To enable accurate reporting of residential revenue from usage charges, it is essential for councils to accurately
separate their residential (item 6) charges and non-residential (item 7) charges.
page 15

Special Schedules 2015

Cabonne Council
Special Schedule No. 7 - Report on Infrastructure Assets
as at 30 June 2015

$'000

Asset Class

Asset Category

Buildings

Council Offices /
Administration Centres
Council Works Depot
Council Public Halls
Houses
Museums
Sports Grounds
Childcare Centres
Amenities/Toilets
Bushfire
Pools
Saleyards
Health Centres
Caravan Parks
Quarry
Aged Units
Water/Sewer
Showgrounds
Other
sub total

Other Structures Other Structures
sub total

Estimated cost
to bring up to a
satisfactory
standard
refer (1)

Required
Annual
Maintenance
refer (2)

Actual
Maintenance
2014/15
refer (3)

Written
Down Value
(WDV)
refer (4)

137
153
756
39
321
136
43
76
10
4
15
39
86
99
382
42
2,338

17
10
36
1
12
16
12
12
3
4
7
64
3
197

17
10
17
1
1
16
12
12
3
4
7
4
1
105

3,178
2,247
2,970
284
2,755
2,528
1,691
926
2,610
1,291
9
3,530
408
470
1,995
428
1,750
131
29,201

-

-

-

4,882
4,882

Assets in Condition as a % of WDV
1

2

3
refer (4) & (5)

4

5

0%

0%

89%

11%

0%

15%

28%

43%

14%

0%

2%

0%

36%

62%

0%

0%

0%

70%

30%

0%

57%

12%

7%

24%

0%

28%

36%

28%

8%

0%

0%

38%

58%

4%

0%

85%

0%

15%

0%

0%

53%

34%

5%

8%

0%

16%

49%

34%

1%

0%

0%

0%

0%

100%

0%

80%

8%

12%

0%

0%

10%

33%

32%

25%

0%

7%

0%

53%

40%

0%

56%

0%

33%

11%

0%

86%

7%

7%

0%

0%

33%

0%

25%

41%

1%

0%
34.3%

0%
15.3%

0%
32.8%

100%
17.5%

0%
0.1%

61%
61.0%

21%
21.0%

13%
13.0%

5%
5.0%

0%
0.0%
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Cabonne Council
Special Schedule No. 7 - Report on Infrastructure Assets (continued)
as at 30 June 2015

$'000

Asset Class

Asset Category

Estimated cost
to bring up to a
satisfactory
standard
refer (1)

Roads

Sealed Roads
Unsealed Roads
Bridges
Footpaths
Kerb and Gutter
Road Structure
sub total

553
2,215
2,546
51
219
48
5,632

985
1,235
375
331
125
5
3,056

1,621
1,275
1
18
7
2,922

103,472
14,116
45,062
4,078
7,111
1,160
174,999

368
290
12
12
117
68
867

193
110
38
56
111
24
532

120
98
35
37
124
5
419

2,078
10,701
231
222
10,042
160
23,434

630
257
258
118
1,263

267
204
344
46
861

171
215
387
6
779

18,523
3,666
6,325
28
28,542

Water Supply
Network

Sewerage
Network

Treatment Plants
Water Connections
Bores
Pumping Station/s
Reservoirs/Dams
Telemetry
sub total
Mains
Pumping Station/s
Treatment Works
Telemetry
sub total

Required
Annual
Maintenance
refer (2)

Actual
Maintenance
2014/15
refer (3)

Written
Down Value
(WDV)
refer (4)

Assets in Condition as a % of WDV
4

5

10%

1%

0%

44%

14%

0%

35%

4%

2%

0%

26%

49%

24%

1%

0%

10%

50%

38%

2%

0%

59%
30.4%

22%
54.6%

16%
12.7%

3%
2.4%

0%
0.0%

33%

67%

0%

0%

0%

28%

43%

29%

0%

0%

38%

56%

6%

0%

0%

10%

26%

64%

0%

0%

0%

16%

84%

0%

0%

80%
16.7%

20%
33.4%

0%
49.9%

0%
0.0%

0%
0.0%

62%

37%

1%

0%

0%

43%

31%

26%

0%

0%

74%

17%

8%

1%

0%

18%
62.2%

82%
31.8%

0%
5.8%

0%
0.2%

0%
0.0%

1

2

3
refer (4) & (5)

23%

66%

2%

40%

59%
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Cabonne Council
Special Schedule No. 7 - Report on Infrastructure Assets (continued)
as at 30 June 2015

$'000
Estimated cost
to bring up to a
satisfactory
standard
refer (1)

Required
Annual
Maintenance
refer (2)

Actual
Maintenance
2014/15
refer (3)

Written
Down Value
(WDV)
refer (4)

4

5

26%

2%

1%

0%

57%
30.0%

16%
3.8%

3%
1.3%

0%
0.0%

90%
90.0%

0%
0.0%

0%
0.0%

10%
10.0%

0%
0.0%

39.2%

42.3%

15.2%

3.3%

0.0%

2

71%
24%
64.9%

2,421
2,421
315,006

Asset Category

Stormwater
Drainage

Rural Culverts
Urban Culverts
sub total

-

-

1
1

44,861
6,666
51,527

Swimming Pools
sub total

-

-

-

10,100

4,646

4,226

TOTAL - ALL ASSETS

3
refer (4) & (5)

1

Asset Class

Open Space/
Recreational
Assets

Assets in Condition as a % of WDV

Notes:

(1).

(4).

Satisfactory is defined as “satisfying expectations or needs, leaving no room for complaint, causing satisfaction, adequate”.
The estimated cost to bring assets to a satisfactory standard is the amount of money that is required to be spent on an asset to ensure that it is in a satisfactory standard.
This estimated cost should not include any planned enhancements (ie.to heighten, intensify or improve the facilities).
Required Annual Maintenance is “what should be spent to maintain assets in a satisfactory standard.
Actual Maintenance is what has been spent in the current year to maintain the assets.
Actual Maintenance may be higher or lower than the required annual maintenance due to the timing of when the maintenance actually occurs.
Written Down Value is in accordance with Note 9 of Council's General Purpose Financial Statements

(5).

Infrastructure Asset Condition Assessment "Key"

(2).
(3).

1

Excellent

2

Good

3

Average

4

Poor

5

Very Poor

No work required (normal maintenance)
Only minor maintenance work required
Maintenance work required
Renewal required
Urgent renewal/upgrading required

6

Condition

7

Condition

8

Condition

9

Condition

10

Condition

Description here…
Description here…
Description here…
Description here…
Description here…
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Cabonne Council
Special Schedule No. 7 - Report on Infrastructure Assets (continued)
for the financial year ended 30 June 2015

$ '000

Amounts
2015

Indicator
2015

Prior Periods
2014
2013

Infrastructure Asset Performance Indicators
Consolidated
1. Building, Infrastructure & Other Structures
Renewals Ratio

Asset Renewals
(Building, Infrastructure & Other Structures) (1)
Depreciation, Amortisation & Impairment

120.19%

105.85%

108.43%

3.18%

3.18%

3.27%

4,226
4,646

0.91

1.57

0.83

12,618
9,936

1.27

1.87

1.26

8,728
7,262

2. Infrastructure Backlog Ratio

Estimated Cost to bring Assets to a
Satisfactory Condition
Total value(2) of Infrastructure, Building, Other Structures
& depreciable Land Improvement Assets

3. Asset Maintenance Ratio

Actual Asset Maintenance
Required Asset Maintenance

4. Capital Expenditure Ratio

Annual Capital Expenditure
Annual Depreciation

10,100
317,483

Notes
(1)

Asset Renewals represent the replacement &/or refurbishment of existing assets to an equivalent capacity/performance
as opposed to the acquisition of new assets (or the refurbishment of old assets) that increases capacity/performance.
Asset Renewals include building, infrastructure & Other Structure assets only.

(2)

Written Down Value
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Cabonne Council
Special Schedule No. 7 - Report on Infrastructure Assets (continued)
for the financial year ended 30 June 2015

140%

1. Building, Infrastructure & Other
Structures Renewals Ratio

Purpose of Asset
Renewals Ratio

Commentary on 2014/15 Result
2014/15 Ratio

120.19%

Ratio %

120%
100%
80%
60%
40%

89.00%

108.43%

105.85%

2013

2014

120.19%

20%
0%
2012

To assess the rate at
which these assets
are being renewed
relative to the rate at
which they are
depreciating.

2015

Benchmark:
――― Minimum >=100.00%
Source for Benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #23
Purpose of
Infrastructure
Backlog Ratio

2. Infrastructure Backlog Ratio

Ratio %

20.0%

10.0%

17.0%

0.0%
2012

3.3%

3.2%

3.2%

2013

2014

2015

This ratio shows
what proportion the
backlog is against
the total value
of a Council’s
infrastructure.

Benchmark:
――― Maximum <0.02
Source for Benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #23
3. Asset Maintenance Ratio

Purpose of Asset
Maintenance Ratio

2.00

Ratio (x)

Ratio is within Benchmark
Ratio is outside Benchmark
Commentary on 2014/15 Result
2014/15 Ratio

3.18%

15.0%

5.0%

1.50
1.00
1.57

0.50
0.49

0.91

0.83

0.00
2012

2013

2014

2015

Compares actual vs.
required annual asset
maintenance. A ratio
above 1.0 indicates
Council is investing
enough funds to stop
the Infrastructure
Backlog growing.

Benchmark:
――― Minimum >1.00
Source for Benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #23
4. Capital Expenditure Ratio

Purpose of Capital
Expenditure Ratio

2.00
Ratio (x)

A pleasing result for Council. This ratio
shows that Council is spending in excess of
the requirements set by the Department for
renewal of assets.

1.50
1.00
0.50

1.87
1.28

1.26

2012

2013

1.27

0.00
2014

2015

To assess the extent
to which a Council is
expanding its asset
base thru capital
expenditure on both
new assets and the
replacement and
renewal of existing
assets.

Benchmark:
――― Minimum >1.10
Source for Benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #23

Council has maintained this ratio in the last
3 years and is endeavouring to reduce the
ratio within the benchmark, in conjuction
with Council's asset management plans.

Ratio is within Benchmark
Ratio is outside Benchmark
Commentary on 2014/15 Result
2014/15 Ratio

0.91 x

Council has only fallen slightly below the
benchmark, but is continuing to ensure that
it meets the asset maintenance
benchmarks, and investing funds to stop
the infrastructure backlog to grow.

Ratio is within Benchmark
Ratio is outside Benchmark
Commentary on 2014/15 Result
2014/15 Ratio

1.27 x

Council once again has reached the
benchmark for this ratio. Council is
committed to expanding it's capital
expenditure .

Ratio is within Benchmark
Ratio is outside Benchmark
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Cabonne Council
Special Schedule No. 7 - Report on Infrastructure Assets (continued)
for the financial year ended 30 June 2015

$ '000

Water
2015

Sewer
2015

General(1)
2015

74.83%

73.15%

127.45%

124.50%

3.64%

115.07%

3.65%

4.34%

3.01%

3.16%

0.65%

3.53%

0.79

0.90

0.93

3.14

1.40

1.49

0.94

2.01

1.23

1.13

0.30

2.07

Infrastructure Asset Performance Indicators
By Fund
1. Building, Infrastructure & Other Structures
Renewals Ratio

Asset Renewals
(Building, Infrastructure & Other Structures) (2)
Depreciation, Amortisation & Impairment

prior period:

2. Infrastructure Backlog Ratio

Estimated Cost to bring Assets to a
Satisfactory Condition
Total value(3) of Infrastructure, Building, Other Structures
& Depreciable Land Improvement Assets

prior period:

3. Asset Maintenance Ratio

Actual Asset Maintenance
Required Asset Maintenance

prior period:

4. Capital Expenditure Ratio

Annual Capital Expenditure
Annual Depreciation

prior period:

Notes
(1)

General Fund refers to all of Council's activities except for its Water & Sewer activities which are listed separately.

(2)

Asset Renewals represent the replacement &/or refurbishment of existing assets to an equivalent capacity/performance
as opposed to the acquisition of new assets (or the refurbishment of old assets) that increases capacity/performance.
Asset Renewals include building, infrastructure & Other Structure assets only.

(3)

Written Down Value
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Cabonne Council
Special Schedule No. 9 - Permissible Income Calculation
for the financial year ended 30 June 2016

Calculation
2014/15

$'000

Calculation
2015/16

Notional General Income Calculation (1)
Last Year Notional General Income Yield
Plus or minus Adjustments (2)
Notional General Income

a
b
c = (a + b)

9,316
(182)
9,134

9,314
13
9,327

0.00%
2.30%
0.00%

0.00%
2.40%
0.00%

210
9,344

224
9,551

Permissible Income Calculation
Special variation percentage (3)
or Rate peg percentage
or Crown land adjustment (incl. rate peg percentage)

d

expiring Special variation amount
plus Special variation amount
or plus Rate peg amount
or plus Crown land adjustment and rate peg amount
sub-total

g

less

(or minus) last year's Carry Forward Total
less Valuation Objections claimed in the previous year
sub-total
plus

Total Permissible income
Notional General Income Yield
Catch-up or (excess) result
less

Income lost due to valuation objections claimed (4)
(5)
less Unused catch-up
Carry forward to next year
plus

e
f

h = d x (c-g)
i=cxe
j=cxf
k = (c+g+h+i+j)
l
m
n = (l + m)

(14)
(12)
(26)

4
4

o=k+n

9,318

9,555

p

9,314
4

9,549
6

4

6

q=o-p
r
s
t=q+r-s

Notes
1

The Notional General Income will not reconcile with rate income in the financial statements in the corresponding
year. The statements are reported on an accrual accounting basis which include amounts that relate to prior years'
rates income.

2

Adjustments account for changes in the number of assessments and any increase or decrease in land value occurring
during the year. The adjustments are called "supplementary valuations" as defined in the Valuation of Land Act 1916.

3

The Special Variation Percentage is inclusive of the Rate Peg percentage and where applicable crown land adjustment.

4

Valuation objections are unexpected changes in land values as a result of land owners successfully objecting to the
land value issued by the Valuer-General. Councils can claim the value of the income lost due to valuation objections in
any single year.

5

Unused catch-up amounts will be deducted if they are not caught up within 2 years. Usually councils will have a
nominal carry forward figure. These amounts can be adjusted for in setting the rates in a future year.

6

Carry forward amounts which are in excess (an amount that exceeds the permissible income) require Ministerial approval by
order published in the NSW Government Gazette in accordance with section 512 of the Local Government Act 1993.
The OLG will extract these amounts from councils’ Special Schedule 9 in the Financial Data Return (FDR) to
administer this process.
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Scope

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
PERMISSIBLE GENERAL INCOME OF CABONNE COUNCIL

We have audited the special purpose financial report comprising the reconciliation of total permissible general
income of Cabonne Council for 2015-‘16.

The Council is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the report in accordance with a directive of the
Chief Executive, Office Local Government, Department of Premier and Cabinet. We have conducted an independent
audit of the report in order to express an opinion on its preparation and presentation.

The report has been prepared for the Office of Local Government in the Department of Premier and Cabinet for the
purpose of ensuring compliance by the Council with its financial reporting requirements under the Local
Government Act 1993.

Our audit has been conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards so as to provide reasonable
assurance as to whether the report is free of material misstatement. Our procedures included examination, on a
test basis, of evidence supporting the amounts and other disclosures in the report. We have not examined forecasts
of expenditure or the impact of present or future policy decisions on the report. These procedures have been
undertaken to form an opinion as to whether, in all material respects, the report is presented fairly in accordance
with the requirements of the Chief Executive, Local Government.
The audit opinion expressed in this report has been formed on the above basis.
Audit Opinion

In our opinion, the reconciliation of Council’s total permissible general income which shows a carry forward catch-up
total for 2015-’16 of five thousand, six hundred and twenty dollars ($5,620) is properly drawn up in accordance
with the requirements of the Chief Executive, Office of Local Government and in accordance with the books and
records of the Council.
Basis of Accounting and Restriction on Distribution

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to the fact that the reconciliation of total permissible general
income is a special purpose financial report which has been prepared for distribution to the Council and the Office of
Local Government for the purpose of fulfilling the requirements of the directive of the Chief Executive, Local
Government, Department of Premier and Cabinet. As a result, the financial report may not be suitable for another
purpose. We disclaim any assumption of responsibility for any reliance on this report or on the financial statements
to which it relates to any person other than the Council or the Office of Local Government or for any purpose other
than for which the financial report was prepared.

14 Sale Street
Orange
Dated: 28 October 2015

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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Payment of Expenses and
Provision of Facilities for Mayor and
Councillors 2015 Policy
1 Document Information
Version Date

[November 2014]

(Draft or Council Meeting date)

Author

Administration Manager

Owner

Director of Finance & Corporate Services

(Relevant director)

Status –

Adopted by Council

Draft, Approved, Adopted by Council,
Superseded or Withdrawn

Next Review Date

August each year – submitted to OLG by 30
November

Minute number

14/11/09

(once adopted by Council)

2 Summary
The purpose of the policy is to ensure that there is accountability and transparency in
the reimbursement of expenses incurred or to be incurred by councillors. The policy
also ensures that the facilities provided to assist councillors to carry out their civic
duties are reasonable.

3 Approvals
Title

Date
Approved

Signature

General Manager

4 History
Minute No.

Summary of Changes

New Version Date

00/1/10

Complete Review

17/01/00

01/02/10

Addition of Uniform Contribution

19/02/01

04/05/16

Amended

17/05/04

05/07/9

Amended after advertising to allow for laptops for 18/07/05
councillors and a mobile phone for the Mayor

15/09/20

Superseded – Readopted as per s 165(4)
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22/09/15

Draft

Amended to comply with DLG updated guidelines – October 2008
Circular 07-22 refers

08/10/15

Draft amended at October 2008 Council meeting to
add provision for Internet access reimbursement and
advertised for public submissions.

08/12/26

Adopted without further change at December 2008 December 2008
Council meeting

09/06/14

Amended at June Council Meeting that where 15/06/09
individual limits are set for Councillors such limitations
are a global amount and not a strict individual limit.

09/08/36 - 2

Credit Card facility for Mayor with $3,000 limit 17 August 2009
approved

Draft

Policy reviewed in accordance with DLG revised October 2009
Guidelines October 2009.
Additional clarification added (pg 10) in relation to non
payment of expenses relating to political fundraising
events, or donations to a political party or candidate’s
electoral fund.
A process to resolve any disputes that arise about the
provision of expenses and facilities was added (page
8). No other substantial change required. Submitted
to October Council meeting.

09/11/10
10/02/17

Adopted without further change at November 2009 November 2009
Council meeting
Readopted by Council.
15 February 2010

10/08/17, 18, and 19

Reviewed for 2011. Draft prepared for September August 2010
2010 Council meeting. Corrected omission of annual
maximum limits for Mayoral Phone, vehicle and noted
Councillors’ out of area travel covered within travel
expense item.
Provision of credit card and
multifunction printer/copier/scanner and consumables
for at home use by Mayor added.

PIBs

Council determined to withdraw the provision of a September 2010
multifunction printer/copier/scanner and consumables
for at home use by the Mayor.

10/11/15

Adopted by Council – additionally “Department” 15 November 2010
updated with “Division”.

11/11/28

Reviewed for 2012. Draft prepared for September November 2011
Council meeting.
No substantial changes made.
Readopted by Council.

12/11/11

Reviewed for 2013. Draft prepared for September November 2012
Council meeting.
Combined policy re alternate
delegates (Minute No. 94/3/27).
Amendment to
provide iPads and associated requirements in lieu of
laptops and remove reference to reimbursement of
internet access.

Version Date: [November 2014]
Page 2 of 19

13/09/13

Reviewed for 2014.
Draft endorsed to invite September 2013
submissions at September Council meeting with the
Internet Access plan upgraded to 4GB.

13/11/14

Adopted without further change

14/09/24

Reviewed for 2015. Requirement to report councillor September 2014
activities annually to Council removed. Changes made
consistent with change of name of DLG to OLG.

19 November 2013

Increase in value of Mayor’s vehicle maximum limit.
Wording relating to Training and Education Expenses
amended by deleting the 1st and 3rd paragraphs and
amending the 4th paragraph.
14/11/09

Adopted without further change

25 November 2014

5 Reason
Councillor expenses and facilities policies are made under the Local Government Act
1993 (“the Act”) and in accordance with sections 252 and 253 of the Act as well as
clause 403 of the Local Government (General) Regulation 2005 (‘the Regulation’).
Under section 252(5) of the Act councillor expenses and facilities policies must
comply with the provisions of the Act, the Regulation, guidelines provided by the
Office of Local Government and other policies nominated in said guidelines.
Under section 440 each council must adopt a code of conduct that incorporates the
provisions of the Model Code of Conduct for Local Councils in NSW (the Model
Code of Conduct).

6 Scope
This Policy applies to all councillors.
Principles Guiding This Policy
The overriding principle of this policy is that the provisions made in regard to
expenses and facilities for councillors are acceptable to, and meet the expectations
of the local community.
The following are important elements of the principles that underpin this policy:Councillor conduct
As required by section 439 of the Local Government Act 1993 (LGA) and reinforced
in the Model Code of Conduct provisions, councillors must act lawfully, honestly and
exercise a reasonable degree of care and diligence in carrying out their functions;
Councillors are to be mindful of the provisions of the Anti-Discrimination Act 1977
which make it unlawful for any member or members of a council of a local
government area when acting (whether alone or together) in the course of his, her or
their official functions to discriminate against another member of the council on the
grounds of race, sex, transgender, marital status, disability, responsibilities as a
carer or homosexuality.
Equity, access and ability to participate
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This policy is to be applied in a non-discriminatory and equitable manner to enable
full participation by councillors from varied walks of life, allowing representation of
the community in different ways and accommodating individual differences;
Council values a diversity of representation. This expense and facility policy will be
interpreted such that any under-represented groups within the community will not be
discouraged from undertaking the civic duties of a councillor by reason of financial or
other disadvantage;
Similarly this policy will be interpreted so that reasonable provision for the special
needs of councillors is accommodated. This will include access to the appropriate
parts of council premises and facilities and maximise participation in the civic duties
and business of council. It will also include provision for sight or hearing impaired
councillors, those with other disabilities and make reasonable transportation
provisions for those unable or unwilling to drive a vehicle.
Accountability and transparency
This policy details both the specific expenses for which councillors are entitled to
receive reimbursement and the facilities they are entitled to access. Councillors may
only receive these where they are so identified. This Policy document will be open to
public scrutiny at all times;
Annual reporting requirements as defined in the LGA, associated Regulation and
OLG Guidelines are included in this policy and will be followed;
Reasonable and relevant expenses
This policy provides for the provision of reasonable and relevant expenses in relation
to the role as a councillor and which are in proportion to the size and extent of
affordability by the operations of Cabonne Council.
Defined limits over expenses and facilities
All expenses defined in this policy are associated with specific monetary limits where
practicable and appropriate. Similarly standards for the provision of equipment and
facilities provided to councillors are defined. No provision for a “General” expense or
allowance is included in this policy.
Annual fees and expenses a separate issue
The Local Government Remuneration Tribunal has adopted the principle that
expenses reasonably incurred by councillors are outside provisions made under the
annual fee determinations. Accordingly this policy does not require councillors to
pay for some of their expenses from their annual fee since it is recognised that this
can have the effect of financially disadvantaging councillors.
Expenses and allowances
Only payment or reimbursement of actual expenses incurred by councillors in
carrying out their civic duties is permitted under this policy.
Payment will generally be way of reimbursement after the event. Consideration will
be given to a request by a councillor for the provision of an advance payment for the
cost of a service associated with a civic duty. Expenses typically paid in advance
are specified. Payments in advance are subject to reconciliation within 60 days.
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There are no circumstances in which legal expenses will be met by a council for
proceedings initiated by a councillor. Nor will legal expenses be met for a councillor
defending any action in a matter not rising directly as a result of his or her civic duty.
Councillors using private vehicles in carrying out their civic duties will be paid the
mileage allowance at the then current rate set by the Local Government (State)
Award;
Approval arrangements
This policy defines approval arrangements, and requires more than one person as
decision maker in order to prevent potential conflicts.
Private benefit
Councillors will not generally obtain private benefit from the provision of equipment
and facilities, nor from travel bonus or any other such loyalty schemes. However, it
is acknowledged that incidental use of council equipment and facilities may occur
from time to time. Such incidental private use is not subject to a compensatory
payment.
Where more substantial private use has occurred, the Act provides that a payment
may be made to cover the level of that private use. Council has established that this
would be at the current rate set by the Local Government (State) Award in the case
of kilometres using council vehicles incurred by councillors on Council duties and at
an agreed rate for private use by the Mayor in the mayoral vehicle (as provided by
section 252(2) of the Act);

7 Associated Legislation
A policy for the payment of expenses and the provision of facilities for councillors is
made under section 252 of the Local Government Act 1993 and in accordance with
clause 403 of the Local Government (General) Regulation 2005.
Other policy provisions, which should be considered, include the OLG guidelines,
Office of Local Government circulars to councils, the Model Code of Conduct for
Local Councils in NSW and the Independent Commission against Corruption
publication No Excuse for Misuse.
Details of relevant statutory requirements and other policy provisions are at
APPENDIX 2 of the DLG guidelines (circular 07-22).

8 Definitions
“DLG”
– Division of Local Government - As of Monday 24th February 2014,
the Division of Local Government, Department of Premier and Cabinet became the
Office of Local Government.
“OLG”

– Office of Local Government

“Act”

– Local Government Act 1993

“Regulation”

– Local Government (General) Regulation 2005

9 Responsibilities
9.1 General Manager
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Jointly with the Mayor, (or Deputy Mayor if the expense relates to the Mayor),
approve expenses that are to be incurred prior to the opportunity to be reported to a
Council meeting.
The General Manager and/or Director of Finance & Corporate Services is required to
ensure the return of equipment and services when such return is required by the
policy and the equipment or facility is not acquired by councillors.

9.2 Directors and Managers
The Director of Finance & Corporate Services and/or General Manager is required to
ensure the return of equipment and services when such return is required by the
policy and the equipment or facility is not acquired by departing councillors.
The Finance Manager is required to ensure accounting staff are provided with and
process the Mayor’s motor vehicle log books and mobile telephone account
indicating private calls made.
The Administration Manager is required to determine availability of a vehicle for
councillors when appropriate.
The Finance Manager is responsible for providing an annual report to Council each
September providing a break-up of expenses provided under the headings of
Councillor or staff member, type and amount of expense, facility or other in-kind
benefit, etc for the previous financial year.

9.3 Staff
The General Manager’s Personal Assistant is required to provide Secretarial
services for the Mayor.

10 Related Documents
Document Name

Document Location

OLG Guidelines for payment of expenses and provision
of facilities
Model Code of Conduct

OLG website

OLG Circulars to councils

OLG website

ICAC publications – No Excuse for Misuse, preventing
the misuse of council resources

ICAC website

Mobile Phone Policy

Council’s Policy
database

OLG website

Councillors Approval Request Form
infoXpert
To Attend Conference
Motor Vehicle Management procedure – September 2014 infoXpert

11 Policy Statement
Wherever possible this Policy uses the suggested format by the OLG whilst
complying with Council’s standard Policy template.
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Part 1 - INTRODUCTION
Reporting requirements
Review
Councils are required on an annual basis to review and submit their policy to the
Office of Local Government within 28 days of adoption by council, even if they
propose to adopt an unchanged policy. Policies must be submitted by 30 November
each year.
Annual reporting requirements
Section 428 of the Local Government Act 1993 requires councils to include in their
annual report:
•
the council’s policy on the provision of facilities for, and the payment of
expenses to, mayors and councillors
•

the total amount of money expended during the year on providing those
facilities and paying those expenses

•

additional information as required by the Local Government (General)
Regulation 2005.

Additional annual reporting requirements
Amendments to clause 217 of the Local Government (General) Regulation 2005
made in December 2006 now require councils to include additional reporting
information in their annual reports.
The additional reporting information required is for the purposes of transparency and
accountability and should not be seen as a disincentive for the payment of
appropriate expenses to councillors.
Councils are now required to report separately on:
•

the total cost of expenses and the provision of facilities for the mayor and all
councillors, as well as:

Provision of facilities
The cost of the provision of dedicated office equipment allocated to councillors on a
personal basis such as laptop computers, mobile phones, telephones and facsimile
machines and Internet installed in the councillors’ homes (including line rental and
internet access). This item does not include the costs of using this equipment, such
as calls.
Expenses
•

the cost of phone calls including mobiles, home located landlines, facsimile
and internet services

•

spouse/partner/accompanying person expenses (limited to circumstances
outlined on page 14 of the DLG Guidelines)

•

conference and seminar expenses
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•

training and skill development expenses

•

Interstate travel expenses (including subsistence and out-of-pocket expenses)

•

overseas travel expenses (including subsistence and out-of-pocket expenses)

•

care and other related expenses (of dependants to enable a councillor to
undertake his or her civic functions).

Reporting of exceptional equipment and facilities costs
In addition to the statutory reporting requirements, councils should report other costs
where these are significant. For example, councils should report the cost of the
provision of facilities and equipment where such provision is above what would
normally be required for the day-to-day running of the council.
Legislative provisions
Expenses and facilities policies must not include a general expense clause.
Clause 403 (previously 42A) of the Local Government (General) Regulation 2005
provides that councils must not include in their section 252 policies any provision that
enables council to pay a councillor an allowance in the nature of a general expense
allowance.
Section 252 of the Local Government Act 1993 only authorises payment or
reimbursement of actual expenses incurred by councillors in carrying out their
civic duties. It is not appropriate or lawful for councils to pay general allowances
unrelated to actual expenses incurred or designed to supplement councillors’ annual
fees.
Monetary limits to expenses
It is the responsibility of individual councils to establish what they would consider a
reasonable level of provision by determining their own monetary limits and/or rates
for the payment of expenses and other benefits to their councillors. These limits
have been determined and are clearly stated in the policy.
Identifying and publishing monetary limits allows members of the public to know
the expected cost of providing services to councillors and to make comment during
the public consultation phase of making or amending the policy. It also avoids
situations where councillors incur costs that are unforseen or considered
unreasonable by other councillors and the public.
Standard of provision of equipment and facilities
The DLG guidelines do not specify a specific standard for the provision of equipment
and facilities to councillors. As with expenses, it is the responsibility of councils to
establish and define an appropriate and reasonable level of provision that would
enable councillors to effectively carry out their civic duties. Council has determined
the level of equipment and facilities to be provided to the Mayor and
councillors. These are detailed in the policy.`
Approval arrangements for claiming expenses and use of facilities
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Approval of councillor expenses will be consistent with the stated guiding principle
that no one person is the sole decision maker in giving approval.
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Part 2 - PAYMENT OF EXPENSES
General Provisions
Whenever possible approval for discretionary trips and attendance at conferences
and the like should be approved at a Council meeting. If this is not possible then the
approval should be given jointly by the Mayor and the General Manager. If the
Mayor requires approval to travel outside of council meetings it should be given
jointly by the Deputy Mayor and the General Manager.
Travel involving an overnight stay will require prior approval with full details of the
travel. This should include itinerary, costs and reasons for the travel being provided;
Approval to meet expenses will only be given when the function is relevant to the
council's interest. No approval will be given for any cost component that is
additional, or not relevant to, the service cost of the function.
Should dispute(s) arise about the provision of expenses and facilities the matter is to
be resolved by determination of the General Manager, in compliance with Council’s
Policy, in the first instance. Should the councillor consider the General Manager’s
determination to be incorrect then the matter shall be reported for determination by
the Full Council at the next available Council meeting.
Payment of expenses generally
a)

Allowances, expenses and motor vehicle availability
In accordance with the LGA this policy does not permit:

b)

c)

i.

The payment to any councillor of an allowance in the nature of a general
expense or allowance;

ii.

The exclusive or primary use of a motor vehicle by any councillor other
than a Mayor (or Deputy Mayor under specific conditions).

Reimbursement and reconciliation of expenses
i.

Reimbursement of costs and expenses to councillors will only be made
upon the production of appropriate receipts and tax invoices, and the
completion of the required claim forms.

ii.

Expenses and costs incurred must be in accordance with the
requirements of this policy.

iii.

The maximum time limit for councillors to seek reimbursement for their
expenses is within 60 days from the date of the receipt, invoice or
voucher.

Payment in advance
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Councillors may request payment in advance in anticipation of expenses to be
incurred in attending conferences, seminars and training away from home.
Councillors may also request an advance payment for the cost of any other
service or facility covered by the policy. However, councillors must fully
reconcile all expenses against the cost of the advance when they return within
the above time limit.
Allowance type payments are not payable in any circumstances.
Establishment of monetary limits and standards
Note: where individual limits are set for Councillors such limitations are a global amount and
not a strict individual limit except where specified.

The following currently apply as monetary limits to expenses:
Mayor
Expense

Deputy Mayor
Councillors*
Maximum Annual Expense Limits ($)

Agreed training

3,500

2,500

20,000

Mandatory Councillor
Information session

400

400

4,000

Conferences & Seminars

5,000

3,000

20,000

Travel - Local and Out Of
Area

N/A

4,000 - Council
vehicle for attending
out of area functions

40,000 - Council
vehicle for attending
out of area functions

Interstate Travel

2,000

1,500

10,000

Overseas Travel

Not Available

Not Available

Not Available

Motor Vehicle – provision

65,000

Not Available

Not Available

Motor Vehicle - operations

15,000^

See Travel - Local
and Out Of Area

See Travel - Local
and Out Of Area

Mobile Phone

3,600

Not Available

Not Available

iPad with Internet Access
plan

4GB

4GB

4GB per councillor

Stationery

200

100

1,000

Business Cards, Name
tags, etc.

150

150

1,500

Corporate Uniform
(50% contribution)

200 (max.)

200 (max.)

200 (max.) per
councillor

Mayoral Office
Refreshments

1,500

Not Available

Not Available

^ - denotes fuel, maintenance, etc. but not depreciation
* - Note: Global limit
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Spouse and partner expenses
There are limited instances where certain reasonable costs incurred by the councillor
for their spouse, partner or accompanying person are properly reimbursable by
Council:
a.

Where the costs relate to attendance at official council functions of a formal and
ceremonial nature and occur within the local government area. Such functions
would be those which a councillor’s spouse, partner or accompanying person
could be reasonably expected to attend. Examples could include but not be
limited to: Australia Day award ceremonies, Citizenship ceremonies, civic
receptions and charitable functions supported by the council;

b.

In relation to Local Government and Shires Associations' annual conferences,
costs limited to the cost of registration and the official conference dinner.
Travel, any additional accommodation, and the cost of partner/accompanying
person tours etc would be the personal responsibility of individual councillors
(Council will meet the equivalent cost of Single accommodation for the
Councillor with any additional cost borne by the councillor);

c.

Where they occur outside the Cabonne local government area, but within the
State, costs of representing the Mayor, at an official function of councillor or
those of accompanying the Mayor whilst on an official ceremonial duty.
Examples could include charitable functions, award ceremonies and other
functions to which the Mayor has been invited and is representing the council.

d.

In the above circumstances, reimbursable costs are confined to the ticket, meal
or direct cost of attending the function. Reimbursable costs do not extend to
items such as special clothing, grooming or transport.

Apart from where defined above, other accompaniment costs outside the Cabonne
local government area will not be reimbursed.
•

Accommodation: Equivalent of Single Accommodation cost for the councillor
is to be met by Council with additional accommodation cost to be met by
delegate/spouse. All additional costs are to be met by spouse/partner unless
such is related to the official capacity of the delegates’ partner (e.g. official
conference dinner).

Specific Expenses for Mayors and Councillors
Attendance at seminars and conferences
Attendance at Annual Conferences of Local Government and Shires Associations
will normally be undertaken by the Mayor.
At least two Councillors may be afforded the opportunity to attend the Shires
Association conference each year.
Councillors may be nominated to attend conferences, seminars and similar
functions relevant to Council's interests by:

the Council, through resolution duly taken.
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the Mayor, acting within his/her delegated authorities and subject to
budget requirements.

Approval to attend must be resolved at a Council meeting or by both the Mayor and
General Manager if attendance is required prior to the next Council meeting. If the
proposed attendance is by the Mayor then approval by the Deputy Mayor and
General Manager is required.
Councillors will be required to provide a written report to Council on such
conferences.
Council will pay conference registration fees, including the costs of related official
meals or activities where these are relevant to the business and interests of Council.
The reasonable costs of transport and accommodation associated with conference
attendance will also be met as will meals when not included in conference fees.
When overnight accommodation is necessary (the night before or after the
conference) accommodation costs must be approved by Council.
Where attendance at other functions is relevant to Council's interest by reason of
briefings, information or networking with key community members, business
identities or politicians, approval may also be given by Council. Such approval will
extend to the cost of the function and not to political donations.
No payment should be made by a council for attendance by a councillor at any
political fundraising event, for any donation to a political party or candidate’s electoral
fund, or for some other private benefit.
Council staff should ascertain whether any expenses to be incurred would be
directed towards such events and activities prior to approving expenditure.
An annual monetary limit applies as shown at Establishment of monetary limits
and standards.
Training and Educational Expenses
Each Councillor will be encouraged to undertake at least one Professional
Development Course every two (2) years.
Councillors will be forwarded information on available training courses and are
eligible to attend and claim expenses subject to the annual monetary limits as shown
at Establishment of monetary limits and standards.
Local travel arrangements and expenses
Councillors are required to use private vehicles to attend Council and/or committee
meetings and will be paid the kilometre allowance at the then current rate set by the
appropriate Local Government (State) Award from time to time, but subject to the
most direct route being taken.
Travel undertaken by a councillor in the capacity of Chair of a council committee or
as a delegate of Council will also be reimbursed on a kilometre basis at the rate
specified above.
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When acting for the Mayor at Civic functions, and when Council’s Administration
Manager has been advised in writing by the Mayor, councillors will also be
reimbursed on a kilometre basis at the rate specified above.
Council has previously determined, (Minute No. 94/3/27) that any official Council
delegate is authorised to arrange for another councillor to represent Council at
functions where the official delegate is unable to attend and believes that Council
representation is required. In such instances, and when Council’s Administration
Manager has been advised in writing by the councillor who arranged an alternate,
councillors will also be reimbursed on a kilometre basis at the rate specified above.
The driver is personally responsible for traffic or parking fines. An annual monetary
limit applies as shown at Establishment of monetary limits and standards.
Travel outside the LGA including interstate travel
All reasonable travel costs will be met by the Council subject to prior Council
approval. Where appropriate, travel will be provided by air (economy class).
Depending upon the circumstances, it may be more appropriate for travel to be
undertaken by car.
Where a private vehicle is used, kilometre payments are not to exceed the economy
air fare and should apply to the most direct route. The driver is personally
responsible for traffic or parking fines.
Travel by motor vehicle may be undertaken in a Council vehicle (where available –
contact Council’s Administration Manager to determine availability) or by private
vehicle, subject to prior approval from the Council or jointly by the Mayor and
General Manager.
Costs of vehicle hire, taxi fares, public transport, road tolls or parking costs which are
reasonably incurred while attending Council business will be reimbursed by the
Council.
An annual monetary limit applies as shown at Establishment of monetary limits
and standards.
Telephone costs and expenses
The Mayor is required to reimburse Council for private calls made on the provided
mobile phone.
An honesty system is in place using identification of all private telephone costs by
the Mayor on the account statements. Account statements must be returned by the
period stated in the Mobile Phone policy.
An annual monetary limit applies as shown at Establishment of monetary limits
and standards.
Internet Access expenses
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Council will provide the Mayor and Councillors a 4GB data plan for use through their
iPads to allow access to Internet services utilised by Councillors for official council
business purposes including research, etc.
Council’s Code of Conduct requirement that:
“You must not use council’s computer resources to search for, access, download or
communicate any material of an offensive, obscene, pornographic, threatening,
abusive or defamatory nature.”
is relevant and repeated herewith for convenience.

An annual monetary limit applies as shown at Establishment of monetary limits
and standards.
Care and other access related expenses
Council will meet reasonable costs of facilitating access to council premises,
functions and activities where, by reason of disability, caregiver role or other special
need, a councillor would not otherwise have equity of access with other councillors.
Such support will allow the fullest participation reasonably possible.
If required an annual monetary limit would apply and once determined will be shown
at Establishment of monetary limits and standards.
Insurance Expenses and Obligations
Council provides insurance cover for:


Public liability for liabilities that might arise from performance of civic
duties and/or exercise of council functions – Public Liability Insurance



Professional indemnity for liabilities that might arise from performance of
civic duties and/or exercise of council functions - Professional Indemnity
Insurance



The internal running of Council and duties to shareholders. Examples of
internal running are things like harassment and unfair dismissal. An
example of duties to shareholders is something that puts the financial
viability of Council on the line - Councillors and Officers Liability Insurance



Personal Injury whilst on council business – Personal Accident Insurance



Travel insurance for approved flights – Personal Accident Insurance

All insurances are subject to any limitations and conditions set out in Council’s policy
of insurance.
Legal Expenses and Obligations
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Council will only be prepared to consider reimbursement of legal expenses of
Councillors in accordance with the guidelines from the Office of Local Government,
these being:
1.

That a Council may only disburse money if the disbursement is authorised by
the Local Government Act, 1993, either expressly or because it is
supplemental or incidental to or consequential upon the exercise of its
functions.

2.

In the particular circumstances outlined below, council may therefore
indemnify or reimburse the reasonable legal expenses of:
(a)

A councillor defending an action arising from the performance in good
faith of a function under the Local Government Act (s71), or

(b)

A councillor defending an action in defamation provided the statements
complained of were made in good faith in the course of exercising a
function under the Act, or

(c)

A councillor for proceedings before the Local Government Pecuniary
Interest Tribunal or an investigative body provided the subject of the
proceedings arises from the performance in good faith of a function
under the Act and the Tribunal or investigative body makes a finding
substantially favourable to the Councillor.

3.

Legal expenses incurred in relation to proceedings arising out of the
performance by a councillor of his or her functions under the Act are
distinguished from expenses incurred in relation to proceedings arising merely
from something which a councillor has done during his or her term of office.
An example of the latter is expenses arising from an investigation as to
whether a councillor acted corruptly by using knowledge of as proposed
rezoning for private gain. This latter type of expense is not reimbursable as
part of this policy.

4.

Council may lawfully obtain insurance cover against the risk of having to meet
the costs of or to reimburse a councillor provided that the costs or
reimbursements are ones which the council is authorised to meet.

5.

Council may not meet the costs of an action in defamation taken by a
councillor as plaintiff in any circumstances.

6.

Where doubt arises in relation to any of these points, Council shall seek legal
advice.

7.

Council will not provide legal assistance in respect of legal proceedings
initiated by the Mayor and/or councillors in any circumstances.

ADDITIONAL MAYORAL EXPENSES
In addition to those facilities provided to the Councillors the Mayor is to receive the
benefit of:Version Date: [November 2014]
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•

Motor Vehicle - (a Toyota Prado or similar, to the value allowed by this policy).
The vehicle is to be used at the discretion of the Mayor for official Mayoral,
Councillor or Council purposes. The Mayor is to pay an amount as
determined by Council and included in Council’s Fees & Charges for the use
of this vehicle and he/she is to provide fuel for private usage.
The following conditions apply:a)

The Mayor must authorise Council to deduct private usage payments
of the agreed amount per month from the Mayoral allowance for the
use of the Mayoral Vehicle;

b)

The Mayor’s Council motor vehicle must be made available for use by
the Deputy Mayor during those periods when, in accordance with the
policy of the Council during the absence of the Mayor, the Deputy
Mayor is entitled to be paid a proportionate amount of the Mayoral
Allowance;
At present this absence is defined as absent from the Council area by
the Mayor for a minimum of three (3) weeks.

c)

That the Mayor or in such absence the Deputy Mayor provide petrol for
such private use;

d)

The Mayor, or Deputy Mayor in the Mayor’s absence, is also required
to keep log books relating to the vehicle, to be submitted monthly to
Council accounting staff.

•

Mobile phone and car kit for official purposes. The Mayor is responsible for
reimbursement of private calls made on this mobile phone, by way of
certification and submission of monthly accounts by the Mayor to Council
accounting staff. Telephone accounts indicating private use must be returned
by the set period in the Mobile Phone Policy.

•

Secretarial Services - word processing and administrative support provided by
the General Manager's Personal Assistant.

•

Administrative Support - assistance with functions, organisations, meetings,
and the like for official purposes.

•

Mayoral Office Refreshments - at the discretion of the Mayor for Official
purposes.

•

Credit Card facility with a limit of $3,000.

Annual monetary limits apply and are shown at Establishment of monetary limits
and standards.
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Part 3 - PROVISION OF FACILITIES
GENERAL PROVISIONS
Provision of facilities generally
The following facilities are currently available to Mayor and councillors as indicated:
Facility
iPad and Wireless
Connection Costs
Fax Machine*
Mobile Phone *
Motor Vehicle Use

Mayor
Deputy Mayor
Councillors
Facilities available / Not available for Council Business Use
Available
Available
Available
Available
Available
Designated
Vehicle

Furnished Mayoral
room

Available

Secretarial &
Administrative support
Photocopier
Official purposes only
at Molong and Cudal
Council offices
Stationery & office
supplies
Business cards

Available

Available
Not available
When acting as
Mayor or subject to
policy and
availability
Available by
arrangement with
Mayor
Not available

Available
Not available
Subject to policy
and availability

Available

Available

Available

Available

Available

Available

Available

Available

Available

Credit Card

Available

Not Available

Not Available

Consumables e.g.
toner
Corporate clothing

Available

Available

Available

Available

Available

Available

Safety equipment
(e.g. Safety vests on
Traffic committee
inspections)
Meals / refreshments
related to council,
committee and work
group meetings and
office functions.
Ceremonial garb

Available

Available

Available

Available

Available

Available

Available

Not Available

Not Available

Use of council
chamber

When free for
use

When free for use

When free for use

Available by
arrangement with
Mayor
Not available

* - Equipment remains the property of Council. On completion of Term, councillors may
request to purchase equipment at written down value or at an agreed fair market price.
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Private use of equipment and facilities
Council facilities, equipment and services are not for private use. “Private use"
includes the production of election material or material for other political purpose.
Acquisition and returning of facilities and equipment by Councillors
Equipment is to be returned promptly to the General Manager or Director of Finance
& Corporate Services in the following circumstances:
a. Councillor is going on extended leave of absence;
b.

Councillor has completed term of office or ceasing civic duties and is not
acquiring equipment.

In general the use of council facilities and equipment should be in accord with the
OLG Model Code of Conduct for Local Councils in NSW – March 2013.
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Quarterly Operational Plan Report
Quarter 4
2014/2015

Traffic Lights

 - Not progressing

Progress Indicator Key:

 - Progressing



 - Complete





- Not due to start

Quarterly Review 2014-15

: Connect Cabonne to each other and the world
A safe, efficient, quality and well maintained urban and rural transport system for vehicles and
pedestrians on Cabonne's local, regional and state road networks.
Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

1.1.1a

Implement the
Council's Road
Maintenance and
Renewal Program

Complete the annual
Rural and Urban roads
maintenance program

Director of
Engineering
& Technical
Services

Annual Rural and Urban
road maintenance tasks
completed

100%

Program delivered within
budget and timeframe.

1.1.2.a

Initiate and
implement road
safety programs

Implement Roads &
Maritime Services road
safety program

Director of
Engineering
& Technical
Services

Road Safety Program
implemented

100%

Road Safety Program
Implemented

1.1.2.b

Initiate and
implement road
safety programs

Identify and apply for
BlackSpot funding

Director of
Engineering
& Technical
Services

BlackSpot eligible
locations identified and
funding applied for

100%

Completed in first quarter

Progress
Indicator





BlackSpot eligible
locations identified and
funding applied for
1.1.2.c

Initiate and
implement road
safety programs

2

Implement Street
Lighting program

Director of
Engineering
& Technical
Services

Street Lighting program
implemented

100%

There was nothing in this
years budget. Blatchford
Street - Canowindra is in for a
street light next year.
ActivEnergy working with
Cabonne Council
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Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

1.1.3.a

Remain a core
service provider to
the RMS on state
main roads

Apply for Road
Maintenance Contracts
for Council (RMCC)

Director of
Engineering
& Technical
Services

Roads & Maritime
Services tender
specification
requirements met

100%

All contracts completed on
time and within budget.

1.1.4.a

Provide and
maintain bridge
structures on
Cabonne's local
and regional roads
network

Local Road Bridge
maintenance undertaken

Director of
Engineering
& Technical
Services

Inspections and
maintenance carried out

100%

All completed. Nothing
outstanding.

Provide and
maintain bridge
structures on
Cabonne's local
and regional roads
network

Regional Road Bridge
maintenance undertaken

Director of
Engineering
& Technical
Services

Inspections and
maintenance carried out

100%

Provide and
maintain bridge
structures on
Cabonne's local
and regional roads
network

Local Road Bridge
construction undertaken

Director of
Engineering
& Technical
Services

Annual bridge
construction works
completed

100%

Provide and
maintain bridge
structures on
Cabonne's local
and regional roads
network

Regional Bridge
construction undertaken

Director of
Engineering
& Technical
Services

Bridge widening works
completed

100%

1.1.4.b

1.1.4.c

1.1.4.d

3

Complete. Nothing
outstanding.

Contractor delayed in bridge
completion. 3 week overrun.

Progress
Indicator






Nil to report.
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Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

1.1.5.a

Ensure
accessibility for all
members of the
community

Construct new footpaths
and pathways to meet
disability design
standards

Director of
Engineering
& Technical
Services

All footpath and pathway
program projects
completed meet
disability design
standards

100%

all footpath maintenance and
construction meet disability
design standards

1.1.6.a

Implement the
cycle and footpath
maintenance
renewal program

Footpath maintenance
undertaken

Director of
Engineering
& Technical
Services

Inpections and
maintenance carried out
as required

100%

All maintenance completed.

1.1.6.b

Implement the
cycle and footpath
maintenance
renewal program

Pathways maintenance
undertaken

Director of
Engineering
& Technical
Services

Inpections and
maintenance carried out
as required

100%

All complete. No outstanding
issues.

1.1.6.c

Implement the
cycle and footpath
maintenance
renewal program

Kerb and Gutter
maintenance undertaken

Director of
Engineering
& Technical
Services

Inpections and
maintenance carried out
as required

100%

All complete.

1.1.6.d

Implement the
cycle and footpath
maintenance
renewal program

Undertake Pathway
Program

Director of
Engineering
& Technical
Services

Paths replaced in
accordance with
approved program

100%

All works completed.

1.1.6.e

Implement the
cycle and footpath
maintenance
renewal program

Undertake Footpath
Program

Director of
Engineering
& Technical
Services

Constructed new
footpaths

100%

Program completed.

1.1.6.f

Implement the
cycle and footpath
maintenance
renewal program

Undertake Kerb and
Gutter Program

Director of
Engineering
& Technical
Services

Constructed new Kerb
and Gutter

80%

McLaughlan St Cumnock to
be completed in 2015/16.

4

Progress
Indicator
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Everywhere in Cabonne has access to contemporary information and communication technology.
Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

1.2.1.a

Lobby Government
and
Telecommunication
service providers
for improved
infrastructure and
services

To lobby for appropriate
telecommunication
infrastructure for
Cabonne localities

General
Manager

Evidence of lobbying
activities

100%

Ongoing lobbying through
centroc

Progress
Indicator



A range of transport options in to, out of and around Cabonne are affordable and available.
Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

1.3.1.a

Provide affordable
medical, HACC
and community
transport services
to Cabonne
residents

Implement the
Community Transport
Program

Director of
Finance &
Corporate
Services

Program implemented

100%

Community Transport
Services Provided with regular
scheduled services from most
towns and individual trips for
passengers attending medical
and other services

Program implemented

Progress
Indicator



Program implemented

Transport infrastructure meets agricultural needs to get goods to and from market.
Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

Progress
Indicator

1.4.1.a

Design and
maintain roads to
provide safe and

Construction of local
roads

Director of
Engineering
& Technical

Construction program
including renewals
completed

95%

All programs complete except
Cadia Road Blackspot to be
completed in 2015/16.



5
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Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

efficient transport
of goods and
services locally
and also State and
regional routes
1.4.1.b

1.4.1.c

1.4.1.d

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

Director of
Engineering
& Technical
Services

Construction program
including repair and
black spots completed

100%

Banjo Paterson Way
construction completed.

Director of
Engineering
& Technical
Services

Road Maintenance
Contracts for Councils
(RMCC) ordered works
completed

100%

Director of
Engineering
& Technical
Services

Road Maintenance
Contracts for Councils
(RMCC) ordered works
completed

100%

Progress
Indicator

Services

Design and
maintain roads to
provide safe and
efficient transport
of goods and
services locally
and also State and
regional routes

Construction of Regional
Roads

Design and
maintain roads to
provide safe and
efficient transport
of goods and
services locally
and also State and
regional routes

State Road ordered
works undertaken

Design and
maintain roads to
provide safe and
efficient transport
of goods and
services locally
and also State and
regional routes

State Road Ordered
Works specific projects
undertaken

6

Executive
Responsible


All projects completed.


All projects completed.
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Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

1.4.1.e

Design and
maintain roads to
provide safe and
efficient transport
of goods and
services locally
and also State and
regional routes

Roads to Recovery
Federal Local Roads
program undertaken

Director of
Engineering
& Technical
Services

Roads to Recovery
Program completed

100%

All projects complete.

Lobby for the
retention and
renewal of the rail
infrastructure
system

Undertake lobbying
activities

Director of
Engineering
& Technical
Services

Maintain membership of
relevant committees and
alliances

100%

Support the
National Local
Roads Congress
(Auslink Program)

Council provides
Delegates to the
Congress

Director of
Engineering
& Technical
Services

Attendance at meetings

100%

1.4.2.a

1.4.3.a

Progress
Indicator


Clr Durkin attended 23 May
2015

National Local Roads
congress held in Tamworth un
November 2014. Attended by
DETS and Clr Ian Gosper




Transport infrastructure meets agricultural needs to get goods to and from market.
Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

1.5.1.a

Support Centroc in
lobbying for the
improvement of
tourism access

Support the Bells Line
Expressway Action
Group

Director of
Engineering
& Technical
Services

Level of support

100%

Continued support

7

Progress
Indicator
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: Build Business and Generate Employment
A strong and vibrant local business sector.
Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

2.1.1.a

Implement
Council's
Economic
Development Plan

Develop a current
Economic Development
Plan for Cabonne

General
Manager

Engage consultant

20%

EDM and CEGO met with
WRI in this quarter. A
proposal was developed and
is now being considered by
Council GM.
WBC Executive Officer had
WRI undertake a Socio
economic profile and
economic impact of council
employment for the Cabonne
Council Fit For Future
submission to IPART.

Implement strategies

Progress
Indicator



Coordinated tourism product and a thriving visitor industry in Cabonne.
Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

2.2.1.a

Promote Council's
Tourism Plan

Promote strategies listed
in the Tourism Plan

General
Manager

Number of and type of
strategies promoted

100%

EDM and PTO reviewed
progress of Tourism Plan. 93
of 106 activities completed in
the Plans first year. 84 of 106
activities completed in the
Plans second year. The third
year is being compiled.

Number of Cabonne
Country website visits
Work with regional &
State tourism groups

8

Progress
Indicator
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Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Implement Tourism Plan
marketing strategy in
conjunction with CTAC

9

Progress

Comment
CCTAC committee
membership now determined
and Committee will meet
28.4.15.
Tradeshow - Taste Orange @
Watson Bay attended with
Taste Orange, Orange City
Council and Cabonne. AOFM
attended tradeshows in
Canberra, Bathurst and
Sydney.
Projects - Village Destination
Guide, Wine of the Month,
What's On Calendar, Unearth
Central NSW, NPWS Tourism
Master Plan, Banjo Paterson
Festival held regional and
national magazine features
secure. Hosted meeting with
Australian Museums at the
Age Of Fishes Museum to
collaborate on projects.
Website visitation continues to
increase with 343,510 hits.
Major Events - Canowindra
Balloon Challenge and FOOD
Week. Strangerland movie
premier in Orange with a
special screening for
Canowindra residents.

Progress
Indicator

Quarterly Review 2014-15
Increased viable, sustainable and value adding businesses in Cabonne.
Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

2.3.1.a

Implement
Council's
Economic
Development Plan

Review the Business
Development Assistance
Program

General
Manager

Number of inquiries
responded to

100%

BDAP has been cancelled and
funding ceased.
Council continues to receive
inquiries - developer sourcing
land for feedlot/ abattoir and
processing plant in Eugowra
and local agricultural business
sourcing land for milk
processing plant in Eugowra.
New shopfront business in
Molong requiring location.

New guidelines
developed
New guidelines adopted
by Council

Progress
Indicator



Jobs for Cabonne people in Cabonne.
Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

2.4.1.a

Support the
development of
and programs that
increase jobs in
Cabonne

Support local
employment initiatives

General
Manager

Promote available job
creation initiatives

100%

Planning is underway for the
2015 Country and Regional
Living Expo.
Planning underway for the
2015Cabonne Daroo
Business Awards to be held 6
November in Cudal.
1 Small Towns Development
Group meetings held.
NBN roll out commenced in
the Shire, with fixed wireless
services now available in
Molong surrounds, Windera
and Nashdale, Cargo,

10

Progress
Indicator
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Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment
Canowindra surrounds and
Cumnock surrounds. NBN
staff have met with Council
regarding the roll out of fixed
wireless NBN in Molong,
specifically heritage and LEP
matters.
Central West Economic
Development Forum attended.
Certificate III Micro Business
Management being held
Canowindra with 12 people
participating.
Staff instructed to organise
valuations of Council land and
report findings to Council. 2
lots in Canowindra and 1 lot in
Eugowra.

11

Progress
Indicator

Quarterly Review 2014-15

: Provide and Develop Community Facilities
Pre school, play group, child care and youth facilities are available across Cabonne.
Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

3.1.1.a

Facilitate the
provision of
children's services

Services reviewed and
reported on half yearly

Director of
Finance &
Corporate
Services

Level and range of
services provided and
usage

100%

Reports submitted to April and
May Council meetings

3.1.1.b

Facilitate the
provision of
children's services

Recruit, train and
monitor educators for
Family Day Care

Director of
Finance &
Corporate
Services

Recruitment of
Educators

100%

3 new educators recruited and
Service has passed all
sections of quality assurance
appraisal

Level of service provided

Progress
Indicator




Retention of educators
3.1.1.c

Facilitate the
provision of
children's services

Implement the Family
Day Care Program

Director of
Finance &
Corporate
Services

Program implemented
and reported to Council
2nd and 4th quarters

100%

Reported to April Special
Meeting

3.1.1.d

Facilitate the
provision of
children's services

Review alternatives for
After School (AS) Hours
care

Director of
Finance &
Corporate
Services

Review opportunities

100%

Childcare services reported to
April meeting

3.1.1.e

Facilitate the
provision of
children's services

Review financial
sustainability of FDC, IH
and AS Care services

Director of
Finance &
Corporate
Services

Review complete

100%

Changed funding
arrangements for Family Day
Care and financial implications
of this reported to September

12
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Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

Progress
Indicator

Council Meeting. After School
Hours Care Services showed
a small surplus for 2013 /14
financial year.
3.1.2.a

3.1.2.b

3.1.2.c

3.1.2.d

Provide and
facilitate
opportunities,
facilities and
events for young
people

Operate Youth of the
Month (YOM) awards

Director of
Finance &
Corporate
Services

Number of YOM
nominations and award
presentations

100%

Provide and
facilitate
opportunities,
facilities and
events for young
people

Organise for young
people to address
Council annually

Director of
Finance &
Corporate
Services

Young people address
Council

100%

Provide and
facilitate
opportunities,
facilities and
events for young
people

Feedback provided on
matters raised by young
people with Council

Director of
Finance &
Corporate
Services

Provide feedback

100%

Provide and
facilitate
opportunities,
facilities and
events for young
people

Hold Youth Week
activities

Director of
Finance &
Corporate
Services

Activities held and level
of participation

13

100%

Target met for 14/15 year. It
is noted obtaining nominations
is challenging.
Program continues into next
year.

Organised for Students to
address August Council
meeting

Letters sent to individual
students in July 2014 and
matters raised by them
followed up.





Youth Week Activities
successfully held in Yeoval


Activities held and level
of promotion

Quarterly Review 2014-15
Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

3.1.2.e

Provide and
facilitate
opportunities,
facilities and
events for young
people

Operate a Youth
Ambassador of the Year
award

Director of
Finance &
Corporate
Services

Award presented

100%

Youth Ambassador
determined by Council in
December.

Provide and
facilitate
opportunities,
facilities and
events for young
people

Youth services are
promoted across
Cabonne

Director of
Finance &
Corporate
Services

Number of newsletters
developed

Provide and
facilitate
opportunities,
facilities and
events for young
people

Provide transport to
events for young people

3.1.2.f

3.1.2.g

100%

Youth planning day attended
at Canowindra, Youth Week
Activities held and Youth
Newsletters published

Progress
Indicator




Newsletters distributed
Director of
Finance &
Corporate
Services

Number of events
transport provided for

100%

Young people from Yeoval
and Canowindra have utilized
the brokerage buses provided
to venture to larger centres in
the school holidays. Youth
Disco trips in previous notes
did not take place due to
cancellation of Disco.



Health and aged care facilities meet local community needs.
Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

3.2.1.a

Facilitate the
provision of aged
care facilities

Undertake monitoring
and reporting

Director of
Finance &
Corporate
Services

Reported to Council

100%

Transition of HACC Services
to the New Commonwealth
Home Support Program
reported to Council May 2015

14

Progress
Indicator
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Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

Progress
Indicator

3.2.1.b

Facilitate the
provision of aged
care facilities

Facilitate retirement and
aged care projects

Director of
Finance &
Corporate
Services

The level at which need
in the community is met

100%

Progress made on projects to
build additional aged units at
Molong and Canowindra.



3.2.2.a

Facilitate the
provision of aged
care services

Facilitate services for the
aged

Director of
Finance &
Corporate
Services

Timely assistance
provided

100%

Canowindra Retirement
village addressed Council and
was supported.



3.2.2.b

Facilitate the
provision of aged
care services

Promote HACC services
within Cabonne

Director of
Finance &
Corporate
Services

Number of services
provided

100%

Freezer room has been
ordered and will be installed
during July 2015



Number of services
provided
3.2.3.a

Facilitate and
advocate for the
provision of Health
& Medical services

Undertake review of
Health services

Director of
Finance &
Corporate
Services

Review completed and
reported to Council

100%

Report on State of Heath
Services was presented to
August 2014 Community
Services Committee.



3.2.3.b

Facilitate and
advocate for the
provision of Health
& Medical services

Advocate on behalf of
health services in
Cabonne as identified

Director of
Finance &
Corporate
Services

Level of response to
advocacy as identified

100%

Participated in consultations
and had input into the
restructure of health services.



3.2.3.c

Facilitate and
advocate for the
provision of Health
& Medical services

Participate in Cabonne
Health Council (CHC)

Director of
Finance &
Corporate
Services

Attendance at meetings
by the delegate

100%

Delegate appointed at
September Council meeting.

15
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Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

3.2.3.d

Facilitate and
advocate for the
provision of Health
& Medical services

Participate in CENTROC
Workforce Committee

Director of
Finance &
Corporate
Services

Attendance at meetings
by delegates

100%

CENTROC Health Workforce
meeting in Oberon Attended
on 20 May

Progress
Indicator



Sporting, recreational, council and community facilities and services are maintained and developed.
Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

3.3.1.a

Maintain and
manage public
cemeteries

Develop a Management
Plan for Cabonne
Cemeteries

Director of
Environmental
Services

Management Plan for
Cemeteries developed

10%

Preliminary work to
commence in financial year to
gain aerial mapping for main
cemeteries as base work for
further asset management
plan preparation.

3.3.1.b

Maintain and
manage public
cemeteries

Engage in
communication between
Council and the
community

Director of
Environmental
Services

Feedback from users

100%

Liaise with community as
opportunity arises.

3.3.1.c

Maintain and
manage public
cemeteries

Maintain annual records
of burials, reservations,
placement of ashes and
memorials

Director of
Environmental
Services

Annual records
maintained

100%

Records maintained.

3.3.1.d

Maintain and
manage public
cemeteries

Maintain cemeteries to a
high standard

Director of
Environmental
Services

Cemeteries are at a
presentable level on key
high visitation dates Christmas, Easter,
Mothers day and
Fathers days based on

100%

Cemeteries maintained.

16

Progress
Indicator
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Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

Progress
Indicator



majority of feedback
3.3.1.e

Maintain and
manage public
cemeteries

Complete cemeteries
capital works program

Director of
Environmental
Services

Program completed

100%

Program completed.

3.3.2.a

Facilitate the
provision of library
services to
Cabonne residents
through
participation in
Central West
Libraries

Review level of usage of
libraries

Director of
Finance &
Corporate
Services

Report to Council

100%

Reported to February Council

Facilitate the
provision of library
services to
Cabonne residents
through
participation in
Central West
Libraries

Participate in decision
making processes and
initiatives of Central
West Libraries (CWL)

Director of
Finance &
Corporate
Services

CWL meetings attended

Facilitate the
provision of library
services to
Cabonne residents
through
participation in
Central West
Libraries

Undertake Annual
Libraries tour

Director of
Finance &
Corporate
Services

Library Tour conducted

3.3.2.b

3.3.2.c

17


100%

100%

Central West Libraries
Committee meeting attended
on 26 June 2015 by
delegates.



Libraries Tour conducted 6th
March 2015
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Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

3.3.3.a

Maintain existing
sporting,
recreational,
cultural, council
and community
facilities, to the
levels defined in
the Recreation
Asset
Management Plan

Maintain pools to an
operational and safe
standard

Director of
Engineering &
Technical
Services

Operate Pools in
accordance with the
Operation and
Maintenance Manual

100%

Swimming pools are
maintained - pool still closed
over winter months.

Maintain existing
sporting,
recreational,
cultural, council
and community
facilities, to the
levels defined in
the Recreation
Asset
Management Plan

Maintain sporting
facilities to safe
operational standards

Director of
Engineering &
Technical
Services

Maintain Sporting
facilities in accordance
with the Asset
Management Plan

100%

Maintain existing
sporting,
recreational,
cultural, council
and community
facilities, to the
levels defined in
the Recreation
Asset
Management Plan

Maintain parks and
gardens to safe
operational standards

Director of
Engineering &
Technical
Services

Maintain parks and
gardens in accordance
with the Asset
Management Plan

100%

3.3.3.b

3.3.3.c

18

Progress
Indicator


Sporting facilities are
maintained in accordance with
AMP and budget.


All Parks and Gardens are
maintained in accordance to
the AMP and budget.
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Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

3.3.3.d

Maintain existing
sporting,
recreational,
cultural, council
and community
facilities, to the
levels defined in
the Recreation
Asset
Management Plan

Maintain playgrounds to
safe operational
standards

Director of
Engineering &
Technical
Services

Maintain playgrounds in
accordance with the
Asset Management Plan

100%

Playgrounds are maintained
to safe operational standards.

Maintain existing
sporting,
recreational,
cultural, council
and community
facilities, to the
levels defined in
the Recreation
Asset
Management Plan

Maintain Shire
properties to safe
operational standards

Director of
Engineering &
Technical
Services

Carry out inspections
and maintenance in
accordance with the
Asset Management Plan
and Risk Management
Plan

100%

Maintain existing
building facilities to
the levels defined
in the Building
Asset
Management Plan

Maintain Council
administration buildings

Director of
Engineering &
Technical
Services

Annual Building
Maintenance Program
completed

100%

Maintain existing
building facilities to
the levels defined
in the Building
Asset

Maintain Council depots
and workshops

Director of
Engineering &
Technical
Services

Annual Building
Maintenance Program
completed

100%

3.3.3.g

3.3.4.a

3.3.4.b

19

Progress
Indicator


Shire properties are
maintained to safe operational
standards.


Annual routine maintenance
of buildings have been
completed.



Completed. No issues.
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Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

Meet the changing
need of the
community for new
and upgraded
sporting,
recreational,
council and
community
facilities

Review community need
for new and upgraded
facilities

Director of
Engineering &
Technical
Services

Review undertaken and
reported to Council

100%

The budget has adopted the
items from the review
process.

Meet the changing
need of the
community for new
and upgrades to
building facilities

Construct budgeted
improvements

Director of
Engineering &
Technical
Services

Budgeted improvements
constructed

Progress
Indicator

Management Plan
3.3.5.a

3.3.6.c


100%

Improvements are ongoing.



Cabonne has the education services and facilities to be a contemporary learning community.
Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

3.4.1.a

Advocate for
education and
learning facilities in
Cabonne

Monitor level of
education services
provided in Cabonne

Director of
Finance &
Corporate
Services

Reported to Community
Services Committee

100%

Report prepared for July
Council meeting

20

Progress
Indicator
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: Grow Cabonne's Culture and Community
A successful balance of village and rural living.
Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

4.1.1.a

Develop and
implement the
Land Use Plan,
Development
Control Plan and
other relevant
plans

Prepare comprehensive
Development Control
Plan (DCP)

Director of
Environmental
Services

DCP prepared

0%

Remains on hold based on
previous advice from DoPI.

Develop and
implement the
Land Use Plan,
Development
Control Plan and
other relevant
plans

Prepare Section 94 Plan

Director of
Environmental
Services

Section 94 Plan
prepared

Develop and
implement the
Land Use Plan,
Development
Control Plan and
other relevant
plans

Prepare planning
proposal seeking
amendment to land from
community to
operational

Director of
Environmental
Services

Planning proposal
prepared and submitted
to Council then Dept of
Planning

100%

Develop and
implement the
Land Use Plan,
Development

Review standard
instrument draft
provisions for intensive
agriculture

Director of
Environmental
Services

Review completed

100%

4.1.1.b

4.1.1.c

4.1.1.d

21

Progress
Indicator


60%

Consultant appointed. Initial
information review currently
taking place.

Completed in Quarter 1.
Rezoning exhibition
completed. Request to
prepare final plan submitted to
parliamentary counsel.

Continues to participate in
CENTROC and DoP regional
planning project based on
agriculture.
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Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

Progress
Indicator

Progress
Indicator

Control Plan and
other relevant
plans

A network of viable, relevant and cultural facilities exists in Cabonne.
Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

4.2.1.a

Provide financial
support and
buildings for
cultural facilities
and activities in
Cabonne

Review current
arrangements and level
of support to museums
in Cabonne

Director of
Environmental
Services

Review completed and
reported to Council

100%

Maintain current program.
Noting consultants appointed
to prepare Aboriginal heritage
study and Chinese heritage
study.

Provide financial
support and
buildings for
cultural facilities
and activities in
Cabonne

Promote visitation and
tourism activity within
Cabonne through
accessing and
showcasing local
museum

Director of
Environmental
Services

Promote through
Council's Tourism
publications

100%

Provide financial
support and
buildings for
cultural facilities
and activities in
Cabonne

Participate in Regional
Museum program and
sustainable collections
program

Director of
Environmental
Services

Meeting and events
attended

100%

Provide financial
support and
buildings for

Encourage collection,
display and preservation
of local history

Director of
Environmental
Services

History of Cabonne
promoted

100%

4.2.1.b

4.2.1.c

4.2.1.d

22

Local museums participated in
joint weekend open museums.
Molong also promoted the
history of Packham Pear.




DES attending museum
meetings on behalf of
Cabonne and Blayney
councils and reporting to
council's accordingly.



Support provided through
liaison with regional museum
advisor and heritage advisor.
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Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

cultural facilities
and activities in
Cabonne

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

Progress
Indicator

Progress
Indicator

Local Historical societies
supported in their work
to preserve Cabonne's
history

Beautiful towns and villages with historic assets cared for and preserved.
Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

4.3.1.d

Manage Council's
urban maintenance
and improvement
programs

Operate Community
Assistance Program
(CAP)

General
Manager

CAP budget allocated

100%

Funding allocated for 2014/15.
Next funding round is August
2015. Staff are administrating
the appropriate
documentation and providing
support to community groups
to complete CAP funded
projects within timeframes and
provide Council with an
acquittal when project is
completed.



4.3.1.e

Manage Council's
urban maintenance
and improvement
programs

Undertake street &
gutter cleaning and town
entrance mowing

Director of
Engineering &
Technical
Services

Continual process, as
required

100%

Town maintenance for the
budget year has been
completed. No issues.



4.3.1.f

Manage Council's
urban maintenance
and improvement
programs

Complete annual tree
maintenance and hazard
removal program

Director of
Engineering &
Technical
Services

Annual tree
maintenance and hazard
removal program
completed

100%

Tree maintenance completed
for the financial year. No
issues



23

Quarterly Review 2014-15
Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

Progress
Indicator

4.3.1.h

Manage Council's
urban maintenance
and improvement
programs

Ensure development
complies with Heritage
conservation

Director of
Engineering &
Technical
Services

Level of development
compliance with
Heritage Conservation
Guidelines

100%

Historic assets cared for and
compliant

4.3.2.a

Continue to
implement the
Heritage Program

Facilitate annual
Heritage Assistance
Program (HAP)

Director of
Environmental
Services

Level of take up on HAP

100%

Promoted 2015/16 program.
Annual report provided to
NSW Heritage Office.



4.3.2.b

Continue to
implement the
Heritage Program

Facilitate Heritage
Advisory Service

Director of
Environmental
Services

Level of take up of
service

100%

Advisor attends council one
day per month . Annual report
submitted to NSW Heritage
Office.



4.3.2.c

Continue to
implement the
Heritage Program

Prepare heritage asset
plan for Connolly's Store
in Bank Street, Molong

Director of
Environmental
Services

Draft report prepared

70%

Continue to provide heritage
advice/support to council



4.3.2.d

Continue to
implement the
Heritage Program

Maintain representation
at Central West Heritage
network

Director of
Environmental
Services

Meetings attended

100%

Membership of Central West
Heritage Network maintained



4.3.2.e

Continue to
implement the
Heritage Program

Ensure items and places
of heritage significance
are adequately protected

Director of
Environmental
Services

Items of Local Heritage
significance are
identified

100%

Monitor database





Community events build visitation, generate investment and strengthen community well being.
Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

Progress
Indicator

4.4.1.a

Facilitate the
responsible
management of

Implement the
procedure manual for
Planning a Public Event

General
Manager

Submit a plan that
complies with Manual

100%

Advice of preliminary events
forms completed and events
manual procedures
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Task
Code

4.4.1.b

4.4.1.c

DP Action

Operational Task

events and provide
funding support
where appropriate

in Cabonne Country with
the event coordinators

Facilitate the
responsible
management of
events and provide
funding support
where appropriate

Implement funding
opportunities through the
Events Assistance
Program

Facilitate the
responsible
management of
events and provide
funding support

25

Provide assistance to
community groups

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

Progress
Indicator

implemented for Pending
applications for
Forbes/Eugowra ASMAG Car
Rally, Meet U In Molong,
Leukaemia Foundation "Light
the Night Event Canowindra"
and various cycling events.
Assisted Canowindra Balloon
Challenge Committee.
General
Manager

General
Manager

Number of enquiries
responded to

Available programs
promoted
Number of enquiries
responded to

100%

100%

4 applications considered by
Council. Meet U In Molong
received $1,000, Wine Week
2015 received $3,500,
Cowra/Cabonne Science Hub
received $5,000 and
Canowindra Baroquefest
received $2,869
2015 Orange Apple Festival
received $1,500 , Canowindra
100 Mile Dinner received
$1,315 and inking support to
the value of $1,450, 2015
FOOD Week received $3,000,
2015 Taste Orange @
Watson Bay received $2,000
and Molong 100Mile Dinner
received $750.



CEGO distributed GrantsBlast
newsletters. The ED team
assisted 81 community and
business groups.
CEGO applied for $764,000 in
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Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

where appropriate

4.4.1.d

Facilitate the
responsible
management of
events and provide
funding support
where appropriate

Comment

Progress
Indicator

external funding. The
outcomes are all pending.
All enquiries responded to.
Review events
management procedure
manual

General
Manager

Review completed

100%

Review undertaken with
CCTAC.



A Council that is effective and efficient.
Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

4.5.1.a

Provide ethical,
open, accountable
and transparent
decision making
processes

Provide quality
administrative support and
governance to Councillors
and Residents

Director of
Finance &
Corporate
Services

Level of actioning of
Council resolutions

100%

Nil red lights last quarter

Provide ethical,
open, accountable
and transparent
decision making
processes

Maintain strong relationships
and liaise effectively with all
relevant Government
agencies and other councils

Director of
Finance &
Corporate
Services

Appropriate
communications and
representations are
made on relevant
issues

100%

4.5.1.b

Number of invitations to
State and Federal
members to address
Council meetings

26

Progress
Indicator


Member for Calare attended
April Council meeting.
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Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

4.5.1.c

Provide ethical,
open, accountable
and transparent
decision making
processes

Provide appropriate
mechanisms for democracy
and participation for
Cabonne residents

Director of
Finance &
Corporate
Services

Level of attendance at
Council meetings and
Community
Consultation meetings
and other forums

100%

11 Council meeting held in
2014/15.

Provide ethical,
open, accountable
and transparent
decision making
processes

Maintain effective
membership of Centroc,
WBC Strategic Alliance,
Hawkesbury City Council,
Weddin Shire Council and
Cabonne Council CountryCity Alliance, LGSA and
other forums

General
Manager

Attendance at meetings

100%

Provide ethical,
open, accountable
and transparent
decision making
processes

Provide adequate training &
professional development
opportunities for Councillors

General
Manager

Level of training made
available and level of
take up

100%

Provide ethical,
open, accountable
and transparent
decision making
processes

Code of Conduct adhered to

General
Manager

Code of Conduct
complaints received
dealt with in accordance
with policy

100%

Provide ethical,
open, accountable
and transparent
decision making
processes

Code of Meeting Practice
adhered to

General
Manager

Code of Meeting
Practice adopted and
implemented

100%

4.5.1.d

4.5.1.e

4.5.1.f

4.5.1.g

27

Level of matters
brought forward by
Cabonne at these
forums

Participation in Centroc
Board & GMAC meetings
throughout the quarter and
reported to council.
WBC Board meeting
attended in June.

Progress
Indicator





Level of participation in
programs
Councillors notified of
relevant training
opportunities.

No complaints received this
quarter.

No breaches of policy this
quarter.
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Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

4.5.1.h

Provide ethical,
open, accountable
and transparent
decision making
processes

Submit Public Interest
Disclosure reports

Director of
Finance &
Corporate
Services

Annual report submitted
by October to Minister,
NSW Ombudsman and
Information
Commissioner

100%

Annual report submitted by
due date and PID reports
submitted in July & February.

Progress
Indicator



Six monthly reports
submitted in July and
February to NSW
Ombudsman
4.5.1.i

4.5.1.j

4.5.2.a

4.5.2.b

Provide ethical,
open, accountable
and transparent
decision making
processes

Policy on payments of
expenses and provision of
facilities for Mayors and
Councillors to be adopted by
29 November

Director of
Finance &
Corporate
Services

Policy advertised,
adopted and Office
Local Government
(OLG) advised

100%

Provide ethical,
open, accountable
and transparent
decision making
processes

Annual Report prepared

Director of
Finance &
Corporate
Services

Report posted on
Council's website and
OLG advised

100%

Make it easy to do
business with
Council and
deliver good
customer service

Ensure effective use of
customer service software

Director of
Finance &
Corporate
Services

Level of compliance
with Customer Service
policy response periods

100%

Make it easy to do
business with
Council and
deliver good
customer service

Operate Customer request
program system

Director of
Finance &
Corporate
Services

Number of customer
requests effectively
resolved

100%

28

Policy adopted at November
Council meeting. OLG
advised.

Finalised on 27 November
2014

Further fields added into
InfoXpert.





Details reported to CMT.
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Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

4.5.2.c

Make it easy to do
business with
Council and
deliver good
customer service

Engage with community to
determine future needs &
objectives

General
Manager

Councillors as
delegates assess
community feedback
relating to the Cabonne
Community Plan 2025
through attendance at
Progress Association
meetings

100%

Council delegates continue to
attend Progress Association
meetings.

Make it easy to do
business with
Council and
deliver good
customer service

Provide effective
communications and
information systems for
residents

General
Manager

Implementation of
Communication
Strategy

100%

4.5.2.d

Hold community
information meetings on
relevant matters

Progress
Indicator



49 media releases issued
during quarter. Fit for the
Future community information
sessions held at Molong and
Canowindra.



Distribute Council
media releases as
required
Prepare and distribute
Council quarterly
Community Newsletters
4.5.3.a

Meeting the
Council's statutory
obligations for
Development
Control,
Environmental
Health and Animal
Control

29

Provide efficient and
effective development
assessment

Director of
Environmental
Services

Level at which approval
procedures and
systems are
documented and
followed
Staff and systems in
place to implement
legislation and ensure
reporting to Council

100%

Development assessment
carried out in accordance
with legal requirements.
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Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

4.5.3.b

Meeting the
Council's statutory
obligations for
Development
Control,
Environmental
Health and Animal
Control

Ensure environment
monitoring in accordance
with the Protection of
Environment Operations Act
1997

Director of
Environmental
Services

Promptness of
response to complaints
of non compliance with
the Act

100%

Liaise with EPA as required.
Respond to community
complaints.

Meeting the
Council's statutory
obligations for
Development
Control,
Environmental
Health and Animal
Control

Administer statutory
requirements (Companion
Animals Act & Impounding
Act) in accordance with
community needs

Director of
Environmental
Services

Programs monitored
and compliance in
regards to companion
animals regulations
enforced

100%

4.5.3.c

Progress
Indicator



Program facilitated in
accordance with legislation.



Animals registered in
accordance with the Act
Public complaints of
domestic animal
problems attended to
Stock impounded

4.5.3.d

Meeting the
Council's statutory
obligations for
Development
Control,
Environmental
Health and Animal
Control

30

Manage contaminated lands

Director of
Environmental
Services

Draft Remediation
Action Plan (RAP),
Remediation Works
Schedule (RWS) and
Voluntary Management
Plan (VMP) re Molong
Gasworks lodged with
Environment Protection
Authority (EPA) for
endorsement

100%

Completed physical works on
Gasworks Remediation
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Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

4.5.3.e

Meeting the
Council's statutory
obligations for
Development
Control,
Environmental
Health and Animal
Control

Support public education
campaigns and responsible
pet ownership

Director of
Environmental
Services

Public provided with
information regarding
companion animal
requirements

100%

Existing programs continued.

Meeting the
Council's statutory
obligations for
Development
Control,
Environmental
Health and Animal
Control

Participate in relevant
reference groups and
meetings

Director of
Environmental
Services

Level of participation
and attendance at
meetings

100%

Manage the
present and long
term financial
sustainability of
Cabonne Council

Maintain a high level of rate
collection

Director of
Finance &
Corporate
Services

Level of rate of
collection

100%

Manage the
present and long
term financial
sustainability of
Cabonne Council

Maximise secure income
through investments

Director of
Finance &
Corporate
Services

Level of interest income
generated

100%

Manage the
present and long
term financial
sustainability of

Ensure long term viability of
Wellington/Blayney/Cabonne
(WBC) Strategic Alliance

General
Manager

The level of attendance
at meetings

100%

4.5.3.f

4.5.4.a

4.5.4.b

4.5.4.c

31

Communication of

Progress
Indicator


Staff participated in relevant
workshops, Netwaste
meetings, illegal dumping
meetings. Council also now
participating in regional
contaminated land program.

Rate Collection for the
2014/2015 Financial Years is
94.8%




Performance exceeds target.


Regular updates to council
during the quarter.
Attendance at Board meeting
in June.
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Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Cabonne Council
4.5.4.d

4.5.5.a

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

100%

Reserve levels reported in
QBR.

Progress
Indicator

activities to Council

Manage the
present and long
term financial
sustainability of
Cabonne Council

Level of reserves and
provisions monitored

Director of
Finance &
Corporate
Services

Report to Council

Ensure the
continuity of
Council’s
operations and
minimise risk

Implement an Enterprise
Risk Management Program
in all relevant Council
activities

Director of
Finance &
Corporate
Services

Staff position
descriptions include risk
management & WHS
responsibility

100%

ERM has progressed. The
Policy and Framework are in
place and the Risk Register is
being maintained and added
to regularly.




Number of Council
activity related risk
assessments completed
4.5.5.b

4.5.5.c

4.5.5.d

Ensure the
continuity of
Council’s
operations and
minimise risk

Review current Business
Continuity Plan (2003) to
ensure Council is able to be
fully operational within a
designated timeframe

Director of
Finance &
Corporate
Services

Develop a disaster
recover and Business
Continuity Plan that
complies with Australian
Standard AS/NZS
5050:2010 - Business
Continuity

60%

Ensure the
continuity of
Council’s
operations and
minimise risk

Comply with internal audit
requirements

Director of
Finance &
Corporate
Services

Review and monitor the
Internal Audit Process

100%

Ensure the

Improve Work Health and

Director of

Number of reported

100%

32

The BCP has been
contracted to Echelon. The
initial meetings with senior
management and Managers
have been undertaken and
various risk issues identified
for the development of sub
Plans. The Draft is expected
to be provided to Council by
August 2015
Three meetings held in
2014/15.

Incidents involving injury
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Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

continuity of
Council’s
operations and
minimise risk

Safety

Finance &
Corporate
Services

incidents

Progress

Comment

Progress
Indicator

have reduced. This has
provided a reduction in WC
claims with the resulting
premium decreasing from
past values.

Review Council's WHS
Management System
Number of Workers
Compensation claims
Number of reviewed
safe work method
statements
4.5.5.e

Ensure the
continuity of
Council’s
operations and
minimise risk

Integrate risk management
into all areas of Council's
activities

Director of
Finance &
Corporate
Services

Develop Council's Risk
Management
procedures and
promote Council's Risk
Management Action
Plan (RMAP)

100%

4th quarter claims reduced.
RMAP objectives being met,
some will be carried over to
the next year due to the
complexity of the objective.
All events comply with policy
and procedures.

Number of claims Public Liability, Motor
Vehicle, Property, Other
and cost each claim
type



Number of events
management procedure
compliant events held in
Cabonne
4.5.5.f

Ensure the
continuity of
Council’s
operations and

33

Provide a records
management system which
meets statutory and

Director of
Finance &
Corporate

Compliance with the
State Records Act,
Level at which user
needs are met,

100%

New standard to be
introduced by December
2015.
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Task
Code

4.5.5.g

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

minimise risk

organisational demands

Services

Disposal/digitisation of
Administration files
1977-1999 completed

Ensure the
continuity of
Council’s
operations and
minimise risk

Provide, maintain and
develop financial services
and systems to accepted
standards - satisfying
regulatory and customer
requirements

Director of
Finance &
Corporate
Services

Statutory reporting
completed on time

Progress

Comment

100%

Over Expenditure did not
exceed 10% of total budget.
However the final result will
not be able to be reported to
council until after the annual
financial statements are
completed in September. All
reporting of the annual
financial statements were
reported to the Office of Local
Government within the
statutory requirements.
Council received 6 out of the
7 green indicators for it
Annual Financial Health
Check.

Financial Health check
outcome
Degree of budget
control and level of over
expenditure

4.5.5.h

4.5.5.i

Ensure the
continuity of
Council’s
operations and
minimise risk

Provide effective information
systems for all of Council

Director of
Finance &
Corporate
Services

Maintain new IT system

Ensure the
continuity of
Council’s
operations and
minimise risk

Provide external advice
regarding Council's financial
situation

Director of
Finance &
Corporate
Services

Annual address to
Council by external
auditors

34

100%

Progress
Indicator



No down time in final quarter.


100%

Auditor addressed October
Council meeting.
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Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

4.5.6.a

Develop, maintain
and retain a
balance and
skilled workforce

Performance measures are
in place

Director of
Finance &
Corporate
Services

"* Proposed
performance measures
are discussed at
Consultative Committee
meetings

90%

Consultant still gathering
background information.

4.5.6.b

Develop, maintain
and retain a
balance and
skilled workforce

Review structure and
adequacy of staffing levels

General
Manager

Review Workforce Plan

100%

Implementation of
organisation review
recommendations has been
held up due to FFF process.

4.5.6.c

Develop, maintain
and retain a
balance and
skilled workforce

Skill requirements of all
Council staff reviewed
annually and targeted
training plan
developed/actioned

Director of
Finance &
Corporate
Services

"*Training plan
developed and
implemented annually

100%

Training plan developed after
appraisals have been
completed, training plan
submitted to Directors
meeting and has been
adopted.

Staff Development
Appraisals are
conducted
4.5.6.d

Develop, maintain
and retain a
balance and
skilled workforce

Provide regular opportunities
for management to meet and
discuss contemporary issues

General
Manager

Networking
opportunities made
available

100%

Develop, maintain
and retain a
balance and
skilled workforce

35

Provide effective
communication and
information systems for staff

Director of
Finance &
Corporate
Services

Opportunities for
communication with
staff





Management meeting
maintained over the quarter.



Networking
opportunities made
available
4.5.6.e

Progress
Indicator

100%

Staff meetings held monthly
and newsletter distributed
monthly.
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: Manage our Natural Resources
All villages have a secure and quality water supply.
Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

5.1.1.a

Manage secure
water supply
schemes

Implement and amend
Best Practice for Water
Supply within Cabonne
water operations

Director of
Engineering
& Technical
Services

Best Practice for Water
Supply implemented and
amended

100%

100% compliance with
Australian Drinking Water
Guidelines. Ongoing
implementation to comply with
Drinking Water Management
Plan. Water assets maintained
in accordance to AMP.



Council was successful in
securing a 70% funding to
construct regional network of
pipelines to secure town water
for Molong and provide
drinking water to Cumnock
and Yeoval through Restart
NSW Water Security for
Regions. Council will continue
to seek funding to complete
the project.



Best Practice for Water
Supply implemented and
amended
5.1.2.a

5.1.3.a

Investigate
provision of
potable water to
Molong, Cumnock
and Yeoval

Construct new Cabonne
Water projects

Promote
responsible water
use across the
community

Cabonne Water
responsible use
promoted

36

Director of
Engineering
& Technical
Services

Director of
Engineering
& Technical
Services

Approved annual
projects completed by
Qtr 4

Participation in water
resource management
activities CENTROC
water utility alliance and
undertake water wise
education program

100%

100%

Cabonne Council Water and
Sewer staff participated in
Centroc activities.

Progress
Indicator
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Flood mitigation processes are in place.
Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

5.2.1.a

Provide systems
for stormwater and
pollution
management &
control

Environmental
Protection Operations
undertaken

Director of
Engineering
& Technical
Services

Works required to
comply with Protection
of the Environment
Operations Act 1997
(POEO Act) and
supporting legislation
undertaken

100%

No issues.

Provide systems
for stormwater and
pollution
management &
control

Undertake creek and
river operations

Director of
Engineering
& Technical
Services

Creek and river environs
clearing completed

100%

5.2.2.a

Implement Flood
Risk Management
Plans

Implement Eugowra
Floodplain Management
Plan

Director of
Engineering
& Technical
Services

Progressively implement
plan and obtain state
and/or Federal funding

75%

Still waiting on funding
success for the puzzle flat
creek levee

5.2.2.b

Implement Flood
Risk Management
Plans

Implement Molong
Floodplain Management
Plan

Director of
Engineering
& Technical
Services

Progressively implement
plan and obtain state
and/or federal funding

60%

Review taken place. Next
phase to begin next year

5.2.1.b

Progress
Indicator


Completed. No issues.





Progressively implement
plan and obtain state
and/or federal funding
5.2.2.c

Implement Flood
Risk Management
Plans

37

Action voluntary
purchase applications

Director of
Engineering
& Technical
Services

Voluntary purchase
applications actioned

90%

Funding for VP has just come
through and progressing
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Sustainable solid and liquid waste management practices are in place across Cabonne.
Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

5.3.1.a

Provide a solid
waste
management and
recycling service to
the communities

Undertake monitoring of
waste collection and
disposal contracts

Director of
Environmental
Services

Monitoring undertaken

100%

Continue to monitor monthly
JR Richards reports.

Provide a solid
waste
management and
recycling service to
the communities

Ensure management of
former and current
landfill sites

Director of
Environmental
Services

Management in
accordance with Best
Practice standards and
Council's Quardo reports

5.3.1.b

100%

Site management in
accordance with adopted
strategies. Through Netwaste
program reviewing strategic
plans for each landfill site.

Management in
accordance with Best
Practice standards and
Council's Quardo reports
5.3.1.c

5.3.1.d

5.3.2.a

Provide a solid
waste
management and
recycling service to
the communities

Participate in Regional
forums in waste
management and
minimisation

Director of
Environmental
Services

Forums attended

Provide a solid
waste
management and
recycling service to
the communities

Monitor Septic Tanks
installations

Director of
Environmental
Services

Septic Tanks approved
and registered

100%

Develop long term
strategic plan for
the development,

Review and audit
Council's liquid waste
management unit's

Director of
Engineering &
Technical

Review completed and
reported to Council

100%

38

100%

Progress
Indicator




Attended Netwaste meetings.


Inspections undertaken in
association with S68 and
registration applications.
Advice provided to
Engineering departments
during four tons sewer project.



Council has adequate
capacity at its sewage
treatment plants for at least
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Task
Code

5.3.3.a

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

operation and
closure of sites

operations against the
developed strategies
and operational plans

Services

To provide and
maintain
environmentally
sustainable, high
quality sewerage
facilities

Undertake Cabonne
Sewer Operations

Director of
Engineering &
Technical
Services

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

Progress
Indicator

the next 21 years.

Maintained in
accordance with relevant
standards and practices

100%

Sewer Operations and
Maintenance in accordance to
the AMP.



Maintained in
accordance with relevant
standards and practices
Maintained in
accordance with relevant
standards and practices

5.3.4.a

5.3.4.b

Ensure adequate
sewage treatment
and effluent
management
schemes in
Cabonne

Undertake Small Towns
Sewer Scheme project
purchases

Director of
Engineering &
Technical
Services

Complete Small Towns
Sewer Scheme projects

Ensure adequate
sewage treatment
and effluent
management
schemes in
Cabonne

Undertake Cabonne
Sewer Project
purchases

Director of
Engineering &
Technical
Services

Complete Cabonne
Sewer projects

39

85%

90%

85% of the properties in
Yeoval have been connected
to the Council's Sewerage
System,
61% of the properties in
Cumnock have been
connected to the Council's
Sewerage System.
Capital renewals completed.
Augmentations are ongoing.
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Primary producers use best practice methods and systems that respect the environment.
Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

5.4.1.a

Maintain an
effective campaign
of noxious weed
control

Undertake Weeds
destruction operations

Director of
Engineering
& Technical
Services

Implementation of
Council's Noxious
Weeds policy

100%

Weeds destruction operations
done in accordance with
councils management plan

5.4.1.b

Maintain an
effective campaign
of noxious weed
control

Undertake Weeds asset
purchases

Director of
Engineering
& Technical
Services

New Weeds assets
purchased

100%

Weeds asset purchases
undertaken

5.4.1.c

Maintain an
effective campaign
of noxious weed
control

Maintain invasive
species operations

Director of
Engineering
& Technical
Services

Implementation of
Council's Noxious
Weeds policy

100%

Noxious weeds control
maintained

5.4.1.d

Maintain an
effective campaign
of noxious weed
control

Undertake Weeds
Private Works

Director of
Engineering
& Technical
Services

Private Works
undertaken

100%

Private works done when
required

5.4.1.e

Maintain an
effective campaign
of noxious weed
control

Maintain Macquarie
Valley Weeds
Operations

Director of
Engineering
& Technical
Services

Macquarie Valley Weeds
Operations maintained

100%

Macquarie Valley weeds
Operations maintained

Progress
Indicator







All natural resources are managed sustainably in a planned way.
Task
Code

DP Action

40

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

Progress
Indicator
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Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

5.5.1.a

Participate in
Environmental
sustainability
programs

Support community
education programs in
environmental
stewardship and
management

Director of
Environmental
Services

Complete State of
Environmental Report

100%

Participate in NetWaste
programs as opportunity
arises.

Participate in
Environmental
sustainability
programs

Participate In Local Land
Services (LLS) Local
Government reference
group discussions and
initiatives

Director of
Environmental
Services

Meetings attended

100%

5.5.1.c

Participate in
Environmental
sustainability
programs

Participate In Local Land
Services (LLS) salinity
water alliance meetings

Director of
Environmental
Services

Meetings attended

5.5.1.d

Participate in
Environmental
sustainability
programs

Participate in annual
environmental review Cadia Mine

Director of
Environmental
Services

Meetings attended

5.5.1.e

Participate in
Environmental
sustainability
programs

Participate in Cadia
community consultative
committee

Director of
Environmental
Services

Meetings attended

100%

All meetings attended.

5.5.1.f

Participate in
Environmental
sustainability
programs

Participate in East
Guyong Quarry
consultative committee

Director of
Environmental
Services

Meetings attended

100%

Attended May meeting

5.5.2.a

Operate Council's
Limestone Quarry

Maximise return on
Council's Limestone

Director of
Engineering &

Financial return

100%

Reorganising the staffing
levels, operating hours and

5.5.1.b

41

Progress
Indicator



Attended Local Government
Reference Group meetings.
(salinity Action Group
combined with LG reference
meeting).



100%

Salinity Action Group
meetings attended (LG
reference group combined
with salinity action group)



100%

Meeting attended. Also
attended CCC site inspection
subsequent to completion of
the annual monitoring report
phase
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Task
Code

5.5.2.b

5.5.3.a

5.5.3.b

5.5.3.c

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

in an
environmental
responsible and
financially
sustainable
manner.

Quarry Asset

Technical
Services

Operate Council's
Limestone Quarry
in an
environmental
responsible and
financially
sustainable
manner.

Operate in accordance
with Mine Safety
regulations

Director of
Engineering &
Technical
Services

Number of breaches

Operate gravel pits
in an
environmental
responsible and
financially
sustainable
manner

Ensure guidelines and
approval conditions
complied with

Director of
Engineering &
Technical
Services

Level of compliance

Operate gravel pits
in an
environmental
responsible and
financially
sustainable
manner

Renew lease
agreements

Director of
Engineering &
Technical
Services

Lease agreements
renewed

Operate gravel pits
in an
environmental

Operate in accordance
with Mine Safety
regulations

Director of
Engineering &
Technical

Number of breaches

42

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

Progress
Indicator

rosters at the quarry to
achieve greater plant
utilisation.
Maximised alternative
products and production
measures
100%

Nil Breaches


100%

95%

100%

No issues at small mines. All
environmentally compliant.
Ongoing inspection of sites.

10 of 12 lease agreements
signed. 1 not resigning as
they are leasing to a new
client and 1 yet to send back
signed agreement.

Nil breaches from Mine
regulators. Regular
inspections undertaken.
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Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

responsible and
financially
sustainable
manner

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

Progress
Indicator

Progress
Indicator

Services

Risk management processes are in place for natural disaster events.
Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

5.6.1.a

Support the
appropriate
emergency
management lead
agency in the
planning and
management of
emergency events

Review of Local Disaster
Plan (DISPLAN)

Director of
Engineering
& Technical
Services

Review completed and
Plan adopted

100%

Displan completed and
approved at LEMC meeting

Support the
appropriate
emergency
management lead
agency in the
planning and
management of
emergency events

Implement Emergency
Risk Management ERM)
Plan

Director of
Engineering
& Technical
Services

ERM Implemented

Support the
appropriate
emergency
management lead
agency in the
planning and

Review Standard
Operating
Procedure(SOPs)

Director of
Engineering
& Technical
Services

SOPs reviewed and
updated as required

5.6.1.b

5.6.1.c

43


100%

ERM completed and approved
at LEMC meeting


100%

SOP's reviewed and updated.
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Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

Progress
Indicator

Support the
appropriate
emergency
management lead
agency in the
planning and
management of
emergency events

Support education of
community by
Emergency Services

Director of
Engineering
& Technical
Services

Support provided for
requests from
emergency services fo
support for community
education

100%

Support provided

Support the
appropriate
emergency
management lead
agency in the
planning and
management of
emergency events

Conduct Local
Emergency
Management Committee
LEMC)as required

Director of
Engineering
& Technical
Services

Meetings convened

100%

5.6.2.a

Support the
management of the
local emergency
services

Actively maintain
support of the
Canobolas Rural Fire
Zone management

Director of
Engineering
& Technical
Services

Meetings attended as
required

100%

Meeting not attended by
cabonne in May due to
community fit for future
meeting



5.6.2.b

Support the
management of the
local emergency
services

Actively maintain
support of the State
Emergency Services

Director of
Engineering
& Technical
Services

Meetings attended as
required

100%

Support maintained Cabonne could not attend
May meeting due to there
being community fit for future
meetings at the same time



management of
emergency events
5.6.1.d

5.6.1.e

44


June meeting hosted by
Cabonne successful and
working well
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Alternative energy development is considered and utilised where appropriate.
Task
Code

DP Action

Operational Task

Executive
Responsible

Performance Measure

Progress

Comment

5.7.1.a

Encourage the
development and
use of alternative
energy

Implement outcomes of
CENTROC's
Sustainability Group

General
Manager

Energy Efficient and
Sustainable Group
outcomes implemented

100%

Involvement in Centroc
electricity tender.
Regular Centroc meeting
agenda item.

5.7.1.c

Encourage the
development and
use of alternative
energy

Report on level of Grid
connect/solar electricity
generated by Council

Director of
Engineering
& Technical
Services

Report to Council

20%

Still no progress with this

Progress
Indicator




Report to Council
5.7.2.a

Review the energy
efficiency of
Council's
operations

Re-establish Council's
Energy Efficiency
Committee

Director of
Engineering
& Technical
Services

Committee established

No meeting established


Meetings held

45

0%
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